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NOTICE OF THE 27TH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Askari Bank Limited (the “Bank”) will be held
on Monday, March 25, 2019 at 10:00 am at Topi Rakh Complex (Galaxy Hall), Army Heritage Foundation, Ayub National Park, Jhelum
Road, Rawalpindi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm the minutes of the 26th Annual General Meeting held on March 30, 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018 together with the
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To appoint statutory auditors of the Bank and Wholesale Banking Branch (Bahrain) for the year ending December 31, 2019
and to fix their remuneration. The present auditors of the Askari Bank Limited and Wholesale Banking Branch (Bahrain), M/s
A. F. Ferguson &. Co., Chartered Accountants and PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) respectively, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

4. To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, payment of final cash dividend @ 10% i.e., Re. 1 per share for the
financial year ended December 31, 2018.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and approve amendments / alterations in the Articles of Associations of the Bank with or without any amendments,
modifications or alterations, in light of the changes in the Companies Act, 2017, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and
the applicable Prudential Regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

The Statement of Material Facts providing the information as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 is
appended below.

OTHER BUSINESS:

6. To consider any other business as may be placed before the meeting, with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

-
Rawalpindi Shahid Abbasi
March 1, 2019 Company Secretary
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NOTICE OF THE 27TH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS
AGENDA ITEM 5: STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 — AMENDMENTS / ALTERNATIONS IN THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE BANK

The statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be transacted at the 27th Annual General Meeting of
the Bank to be held on Monday, March 25, 2019.

The existing Articles of Association (AoA) of Askari Bank Limited were required to be revised to align it with legislative changes and
requirements brought about by the Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017,
Securities Act 2015, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations, other applicable rules & regulations and ensure its conformity with
the Banking Companies Ordinance 1962, and various other requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Accordingly, the existing document has been amended / altered and the revised AoA will be laid before the members in the Annual
General Meeting scheduled on March 25, 2019. In accordance with the requirements of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2017, the revised AoA along with the proposed special resolutions pertaining to the alteration in the AoA and comparative table of
amendments are provided in the DVD, as integral part of this notice and are also placed on the Bank’s website at https://akbl.com.pk/
investor-relations/shareholders.

If approved by the members, the proposed Special Resolution(s), with or without modifications, will be adopted to approve revisions
in the AoA.

INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES

None of the directors or their relatives have any personal interest in alternation / amendments / substitution of Articles of Association
of the Bank except in their capacity as Shareholder or Directors of the Bank.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

Copies of Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Bank, Statement under section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, financial
statements and other related information / documents of the Bank which may be inspected / procured during business hours on any
working day at the Head Office of the Bank from the date of publication of this notice till conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

NOTES

1. The Share Transfer books of the Bank will remain closed from March 19, 2019 to March 25, 2019 (both days inclusive).
Transfers received at the Bank’s Share Registrar Department, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Mezzanine
Floor, South Tower, LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore the Registrar and Share Transfer Office of the Bank at
the close of the business hours on March 18, 2019 will be treated in time.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him / her. No person
shall act as a proxy, who is not a member of the Bank except that Government of Pakistan [GoP] or SBP or corporate entity may
appoint a person who is not a member.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or his / her attorney duly authorized in writing. If the
member is a corporate entity (other than GoP and SBP), its common seal should be affixed on the instrument.



The instrument appointing a proxy, together with attested copy of Power of Attorney or Board Resolution, if any, under which
it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited, with the Company Secretary, Askari Bank Limited, 4th
Floor, NPT Building, F-8 Markaz, Islamabad not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

If a member appoints more than one proxy, and more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by a member, all such
instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses
and Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

Copy of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form. The proxy shall produce his / her
original GNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

In case of individual shareholder, original CNIC or original passport while for the CDC account holder or sub-account holder
and or the person whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, his
/ her authentication would be made by showing his / her original CNIC or original passport along with participant(s) ID Number
and their account numbers. In case of GoP / SBP / corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Bank.

The Government of Pakistan through the Finance Act, 2018 has made certain amendments in terms of Section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the rates are enhanced for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid
by the companies / banks. These rates are as follows:

a) Forfilers of income tax returns 15.00 %
b)  For non-filers of income tax returns 20.00 %

And to enable the Bank to make tax deductions on the amount of cash dividend @ 15.00 % instead of 20.00% all shareholders,
whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR),
despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment
of the cash dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend (as and when declared) will be deducted @ 20.00% instead of
15.00%.

According to FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on filer / non-filer status of principal shareholder as well as joint-
shareholder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts, shareholders, who hold shares jointly, are requested
to provide shareholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar
M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Lahore, in writing as follows:

Shareholder/Joint Holders

Name of Principal ) )
Shareholding (%age) CNIC No. (copy attached) Signature

The required information must reach our Share Registrar by March 15, 2019 otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally

held.
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NOTICE OF THE 27TH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

SPECIAL NOTES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
9. Submission of Copies of CNIC (Mandatory)

Please note that as per SECP directives the payment of dividend to the shareholders whose CNIC are not available with the
Share Registrar are being withheld. All shareholders having physical shareholding are, therefore, once again advised to submit
a photocopy of their valid CNICs to our Share Registrar.

10.  Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (e-Dividend)

Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017, requires that in case of a listed company, any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid
through electronic mode directly into the bank account (International Bank Account Number-IBAN) designated by the entitled
shareholders. Please note that provision of IBAN for cash dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply with this
regulatory requirement of direct credit of dividend amount in shareholder’s IBAN detail, shareholders are requested to provide
the relevant information to:

1. Their respective CDC Participant / CDC Investor Account Services (in case their shareholding is in Book Entry form); OR

2. Our Share Registrar M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Share Registrar Department, Mezzanine
Floor, South Tower, LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-lgbal, Lahore (in case their shareholding is in Physical Form)

11.  Transmission of Audited Financial Statements and Notices to Members through email (Optional) or CD / DVD / USB

Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the financial year ended December 31, 2018 have also been placed on
the Bank’s website i.e. www.akbl.com.pk.

In accordance with the Shareholders’ approval accorded in 25th AGM of the Bank held on March 31, 2017, DVDs have been
dispatched to all shareholders. In addition, hard copies of Annual Report 2018 have also been dispatched to Shareholders as
per their demand.

12.  Consent for Video Conference Facility

In compliance of Circular No. 10 dated May 21, 2014 of SECP read with section 134(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2017,
shareholders of the Bank are informed that they can avail video conference facility in Karachi and Lahore. In this regard
please fill the following form and submit the same with the Company Secretary, Askari Bank Limited, 4th Floor, NPT Building,
F-8 Markaz, Islamabad at least ten (10) days before holding of general meeting. If the Bank receives consent from members
holding in aggregate ten percent (10%) or more shareholding, the Bank will arrange video conference facility in that city
subject to availability of such facility in that city.

I/We, of being a Member of Askari Bank Limited, holder of --------- Ordinary Share(s) as
per Registered Folio No / CDC Sub-Account No.----------- hereby opt for video conference facility at ------------------- .

Signature of Member



13.

14.

15.

16.

Change of Address / particulars

Members are requested to immediately notify any change in their addresses to the Bank’s Shares Registrar, M/s Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Mezzanine Floor, South Tower, LSE Plaza, 19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-lgbal, Lahore. To
facilitate the shareholders, a Form for Change of Particulars of Shareholders has been made available on the website of the
Bank.

Zakat Declaration (CZ-50)

Zakat will be deducted from the dividends at source at the rate of 2.5 % of the paid-up value of the share (Rs. 10/- each) and
will be deposited within the prescribed period with the relevant authority. In case of claiming exemption, please submit your
Zakat Declarations under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 and Rule 4 of Zakat (Deduction and Refund) Rules, 1981, CZ-50
Form with our Share Registrar mentioning Askari Bank’s name and their respective Folio and CDC Account Nos.

Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend and Share Certificates

In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, a Final Notice was given by the Bank on January 26, 2018 that
the shares of Askari Bank Limited / dividends declared by Askari Bank Limited; details whereof are appearing on the Bank’s
website www.akbl.com.pk have remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date these have become
due and payable. In case of non-receipt of any claim by respective shareholder(s) to above referred final notice, the Bank shall
proceed to deposit the unclaimed / unpaid amount with the Federal Government pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (2)
of section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Postal Ballot / E-voting:

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for any agenda item subject to the requirements of
Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017, shareholders will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal
ballot i.e. by post or e-voting, in the manner and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid regulations.
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SIXYEARS'’ STATISTICS

Rupees in million

December 31 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
(Assets |
Advances - net 163,557 170,496 199,931 235,164 258,693 343,107
Investments - net 165,863 217,214 268,021 295,846 314,957 260,234
Cash, short term funds and statutory deposits with SBP 37,666 29,626 38,794 55,250 49,683 53,281
Fixed / intangible assets 8,567 8,299 9,230 11,020 10,729 13,533
Assets held for sale - 54 - 262 81 81
Other assets 19,174 21,392 19,891 21,597 22,566 36,296
Total assets 394,827 447,083 535,867 619,139 656,708 706,532
Non-performing loans 33,120 31,376 31,484 28,535 26,753 26,657
Provisions for non-performing loans 28,614 28,169 28,482 26,959 25,647 26,152
Deposits and other accounts 335,241 387,587 433,172 472,811 525,808 573,636
Refinance borrowings from SBP 8,953 7,954 10,327 12,891 16,839 18,967
Subordinated debts 3,994 7,993 4,997 4,995 4,993 9,994
Borrowings / other liabilities 27,911 19,841 60,518 95,866 76,632 70,426
Total liabilities 376,099 423,375 509,014 586,562 624,273 673,023
Share capital 12,603 12,603 12,603 12,603 12,603 12,603
Reserves 4,030 6,686 9,209 12,755 14,798 19,257
Surplus on revaluation of assets — net of tax 2,096 4418 5,041 7,219 5,035 1,649
Total shareholders’ funds 18,729 23,707 26,853 32,577 32,435 33,509
Interest income 27,961 34,604 36,592 35,512 36,267 43,670
Interest expenditure 19,363 22,711 21,690 20,497 20,072 25,060
Net interest income 8,597 11,893 14,902 15,016 16,195 18,610
(Reversal) / provision and impairment against non-performing assets 11,103 322 879 (659) (1,205) 1,461
Fee and commission income 1,169 1,435 1,732 2,156 2,707 3,116
Other income 2,429 3,882 4,958 4,951 3,549 2,506
Non mark-up expenses 9,533 11,107 12,281 14,304 15,164 15,892
Profit / (loss) before taxation (8,441) 5,781 8,432 8,477 8,492 6,879
Taxation 2,961 1,766 3,388 3,256 3,224 2,448
Profit / (loss) after taxation (5,480) 4,015 5,043 5,221 5,268 4,431
Operating profit 2,663 6,103 9,311 7,818 7,287 8,340
Total income 31,559 39,921 43,283 42,619 42,523 49,292
Total expenditure 39,999 34,140 34,850 34,142 34,031 42,412
cashflows ... |
Operating activities 22,906 36,639 67,461 42,479 26,131 (43,591)
Investing activities (21,638) (47,918) (51,636) (30,476) (23,277 43,701
Financing activities 1,479 2,752 (5,481) (1,563) (3,115) 4,989
Changes in cash & cash equivalents 2,864 (8,537) 10,355 10,433 (231) 5,098
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year 33,299 36,163 27,626 37,981 48,414 48,183
Cash & cash equivalents at end of the year 36,163 27,626 37,981 48,414 48,183 53,281
Business transacted (Rupees in billion)
Imports 196 177 200 279 358 394
Exports 111 140 144 124 155 215
Guarantees 82 64 78 132 137 150




Percentage
December 31 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Profitability ratios

Profit / (loss) before tax (30.19) 16.71 23.04 23.87 23.41 15.75
Gross yield on average earning assets 8.67 9.25 7.90 6.71 6.42 7.14
Return on average assets (RoA) (1.47) 0.95 1.03 0.90 0.83 0.65
Gross spread 30.75 34.37 40.72 42.28 44.66 42.62
Cost to income (CIR) 7817 64.54 56.88 64.66 67.54 65.58
Return on average shareholders equity (RoE) (31.94) 22.35 24.54 2214 19.97 14.98
Return on average capital employed (24.20) 16.76 18.65 18.27 16.79 11.95
Advance to deposits (CDR) 48.79 43.99 46.16 49.74 49.20 59.81
Current - times 1.91 1.79 1.62 1.38 1.59 2.03
Cash to current liabilities - times 0.23 0.17 0.19 0.20 0.21 0.23

Investment / market ratios

Price earning (PE) - times (2.37) 7.23 5.44 6.03 462 6.80
Price to book - times 0.04 0.07 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.04
Dividend yield - 8.67 10.35 6.01 5.18 418
Dividend payout - times - 0.63 0.56 0.36 0.24 0.28
Cash dividends - Interim (%) - 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 -

- Final* (%) - 10.00 12.50 15.00 - 10.00
Earnings per share (EPS)** - Rupees (5.90) 3.19 4.00 4.14 418 3.52
Market value per share - year end - Rupees 14.00 23.07 21.74 24.95 19.31 23.92
Market value per share - high - Rupees 19.69 23.14 25.54 25.61 28.03 26.59
Market value per share - low - Rupees 10.76 13.37 16.26 17.50 17.75 19.20

Capital structure ratios

Income / expense - times 0.79 117 1.24 1.25 1.25 1.16
Capital Adequacy (CAR) 10.39 13.03 12.51 12.50 12.09 12.51
Earning assets to total assets - gross 87.32 89.66 89.52 88.28 88.63 86.65
Weighted average cost of deposits 5.62 5.90 4,64 3.70 3.42 3.97
Net assets per share - Rupees 14.86 18.81 21.31 25.85 25.74 26.59
Fixed / intangible assets to average shareholders’ funds 44.60 39.12 36.51 37.08 33.01 41.04
Other information (Number)
Number of employees (Regular) 4411 5,581 6,133 6,428 6,591 6,640
Number of branches 281 321 424 501 516 516

*post balance sheet event  **based on weighted average number of shares outstanding at each year end
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

Askari Bank’s results for 2018 reflect a strategy with focus on balance sheet discipline, core earnings, optimal risk tolerance and
performance against the overall corporate objectives. The Board provided oversight of this strategy and advice to management
throughout the year, as the Bank’s plans continue to deliver sustainable results and value to the shareholders.

2018 was a difficult year for Pakistan’s economy amidst external and domestic challenges that were responded by an ongoing
macroeconomic stabilization program, exchange rate adjustment and interest rate hike to curb inflation, reduce current account
deficit and trade imbalance. In an environment of monetary tightening, macroeconomic uncertainty and low GDP growth, a strong
competition persisted for securing credible and viable projects as banks were less keen on investing in long term paper and focused
more on expanding private loan portfolios to park ample liquidity in the system.

Askari Bank proactively adapted to changes in the policy framework and financial markets while moving forward to leverage on
available opportunities. Askari Bank reported an asset growth of 7 percent with a major change in the asset mix where loans and
advances accounted for almost half of the total assets compared to 39 percent at last year end; the Bank pursued a sound approach
to deploy capital ensuring to invest in line with the lending strategy. However, despite a notable 16 percent rise in operating profits, the
EPS declined by 16 percent mainly due to a large provision on investments in stock market, which remained subdued for the second
consecutive year. The Bank will continue to improve assets quality while growing the business portfolios within the leeway available to
the Bank, effectively develop operations and processes, while promoting innovation balanced with prudent risk management.

The banking landscape is undergoing a major transformation with emerging technologies to embrace the digital realm in the
financial sector; along with the change of mind sets, culture, habits, and smart-customer engagement. Our Bank is mindful of these
developments and is continually assessing technological infrastructure to excel customer service, expand the scope of secured digital
offerings, enhance efficiencies and increase the diverse business portfolios.

The Board welcomes Mr. Abid Sattar as our new President & Chief Executive from August 2018. The Board is confident that Mr. Sattar’s
leadership combined with his strategic thinking and extensive experience locally and overseas in the financial services industry will
drive Askari Bank to success in the coming years.

| take this opportunity to convey my sincere gratitude to all our Customers who we consider our most valuable asset. | am also thankful
to the State Bank of Pakistan for their continued support, to my colleagues on the Board for their valuable guidance, and to the entire
team of employees led by the President, whose talents, unreserved effort and commitment propels the Bank to greater heights.

"73;49'

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani HI (M) (Retd)
Chairman Board of Directors

February 21,2019



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors present the 27th Annual Report of Askari Bank Limited along with the audited unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and Auditors’ reports thereon, for the year ended December 31, 2018.

ECONOMY:

Pakistan’s economy experienced a slowdown during fiscal ‘18; the pace of revenue growth decelerated compared to expenditure,
along with increased dependence on imports to meet growing demand which led to widening of twin deficits. The resulting record
current account deficit increased pressures on foreign exchange reserves and exchange rate. At the same time, fiscal deficit remained
high and was financed by domestic borrowing, which not only led to a faster accumulation in public debt, but also stoked inflation.

The economic challenges further intensified as the start of the new fiscal saw a rise in oil prices; which reinforced the already strong
underlying inflationary pressures in the economy, and also eclipsed emerging improvements in the external sector along with the
much needed balance of payment support. Fiscal pressures remained high as expenditure rigidities allowed limited space to the new
Government to maneuver despite reduction in oil price in later part of the year.

Monetary policy shifted gears during 2018 with a cumulative 425 basis points increase since January 2018, after remaining at historic
lows for a continued period of around 20 months. Credit to private sector saw a net expansion largely attributed to high cost of raw
materials, capacity expansion in power and construction-allied industries particularly cement and steel.

The stabilization measures implemented during the recent months by the new political Government are taking shape as key monthly
indicators are showing visible signs of deceleration in domestic demand. The current account deficit is narrowing, albeit slowly.
Alongside, an increase in financial inflows is contributing to reduced pressures on external accounts. The Government is pursuing
a fiscal consolidation program and has negotiated bilateral inflows to address foreign currency and ease pressures on the external
front. A clear direction towards reduction in expenditures, focus on broadening the tax base instead of increasing burden on current
tax payers and curtailment of losses and revival of PSEs through the initiative of a dedicated holding company are steps in the right
direction to bolster macroeconomic stability. These developments indicate that the key factors have been identified and plans are
in place to manage priorities. As the domestic demand decelerates, it appears that the economy will continue to move along with
macroeconomic adjustment path for some time.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

Askari Bank posted 16.5 percent growth in profits before provisions and taxation at Rs. 8.3 billion from Rs. 7.2 billion last year. This
growth was supported by the rising interest rates resulting in improved margins. Business verticals contributed increase in fee based
income with successful implementation of strategies in trade finance, transaction banking and a strong growth in foreign exchange
income in an intensely competitive market. Profit after taxation declined by 15.9 percent to Rs. 4.4 billion primarily due to a net
aggregate provision charge amounting to Rs. 1.5 billion on Bank’s portfolio of equity investments and certain non-performing loans
and advances. Consequently, the earnings per share for the current year declined and were reported at Rs. 3.52 as against Rs. 4.18
last year.

The Bank reported a net mark-up income amounting to Rs. 18.6 billion, registering a growth of 14.9 percent during the year under
review. Mark-up earned increased by 20.4 percent with main contribution from loans and advances that registered a healthy increase
of 40.1 percent, whereas revenue from investments declined by 3.0 percent reflecting a yield enhancement strategy coupled with a
shift towards the shorter end of the curve — the Bank’s portfolio of long term Pakistan Investment Bonds declined by 36.4 percent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Net mark-up income was also supported by 13.3 percent increase in aggregate current accounts along with efforts to shed expensive
deposits in order to optimize the deposit profile and maintain cost of deposit at efficient levels, while building a sustainable low cost
deposit base.

Trade and transaction related fee based income increased by 15.1 percent during the year and constituted 55.4 percent of the
aggregate NFls. Trade business related commissions increased by 9.1 percent as the Bank actively pursued corporate and commercial
clientele. Commissions on ATMs / plastic cards witnessed a healthy 54.3 percent increase during the year in review. Income from
foreign exchange registered almost a two fold increase to Rs. 1.6 billion amidst exchange rate volatility and well-managed trading
positions, as well as improved clients’ FX flows through the treasury desk. The increase of 89.3 percent income in foreign exchange
during the year largely compensated for the 87.3 percent decline in gain on sale of securities.

Operating expenses increased by only 8.6 percent to Rs. 16.2 billion during the year. Property expense increased by 10.4 percent,
mainly due to rent and utility expense escalations across the branch network. Other operating expenses increased by 16.7 percent in
line with the build-up in business across all segments. Employees’ compensation increased by 5.4 percent year on year. Other charges
increased sharply from Rs. 23.6 million to Rs. 191.1 million on account of premium to Deposit Protection Corporation levied during the
current year. The aggregate cost to income ratio improved from 67.9 to 65.6 percent.

During the year under review, the Bank recognized overall net provision charge of Rs. 1.5 billion against a net reversal of Rs. 1.3 billion
last year. A provision of Rs. 1.0 billion was recorded on equity investments as the declining trend of the stock market continued for the
second consecutive year with KSE 100 index losing 8.9 percent by close of the year. Also, the Bank recorded a net charge against non-
performing loans amounting to Rs. 467 million. Specific coverage against non-performing loans improved from 93.3 to 94.2 percent.
The adverse swing of Rs. 2.8 billion in overall provisions, (from a net reversal to a net charge) was the main reason for a year on year
decline in profit before and after taxation of 18.9 and 15.9 percent, respectively.

The balance sheet for 2018 reflects rebalancing of the asset portfolios with a major shift towards credit expansion in selected areas
in line with the Bank’s corporate strategy amidst a changing macroeconomic environment; gross advances grew by 29.9 percent to
Rs. 369.3 billion while investments declined by 17.4 percent to Rs. 260.2 billion. The loan growth strategy maintained focus on acquiring
high quality assets, enhancing relationship yields and maintaining an efficient and optimal profile of risk weighted assets. Investment
portfolio also remained concentrated in capital efficient government securities. Customer deposits increased by 9.1 percent to
Rs. 573.6 billion while the aggregate current accounts increased by 13.3 percent reflecting the focus of branch banking strategy that
seeks to drive efficiencies in the deposit portfolio by actively expanding current accounts and shedding expensive, non-core deposits.

The total assets grew by 6.6 percent reflecting a consolidation phase in view of the impact of capital ratios on the overall growth.
While the trend of Bank’s capital ratios belie the effective implementation of capital management initiatives, the same is mainly
attributed to a sharp rise in market rates that came after the issue of Tier 1 capital during the year and was mainly the reason to
dilute the positive impact enabled by such issue (the Bank issued its first ever additional Tier 1 capital in the form of listed, perpetual,
unsecured, subordinated and non-cumulative debt instrument amounting to Rs. 6.0 billion). The Bank recognizes strengthening the
capital structure as a key priority and efforts have already been initiated to improve capital ratios in the ensuing year.



APPROPRIATIONS:

The Board of Directors recommends the following appropriations for the year ended December 31, 2018:

Rs. in’000
2018 2017 Year Ended December 31, 2018 2017
Consolidated Unconsolidated
4,429,310 5,121,863 Profit after taxation 4,431,278 5,267,887
2,001 (113,963) Effect of recognition of actuarial gain / (loss) 3,095 (113,996)
165,812 9,824 Transfer from surplus on revaluation 165,812 9,824
4,597,123 5,017,724 Profit available for appropriation 4,600,185 5,163,715
- (1,260,260) Interim cash dividend - 10 percent - (1,260,260)
(886,256) (1,053,577) Transfer to statutory reserve (886,256) (1,053,577)
3,710,867 2,703,887 Accumulated profit carried forward 3,713,929 2,849,878
3.51 4.06 Earnings per share - Rupees 3.52 418
DIVIDEND:

In addition to the above, the Board has recommended a final cash dividend of 10 percent for the year ended December 31, 2018.

BRANCH NETWORK:

The branch network comprises of 515 branches across the country; 421 conventional branches (including 40 sub-branches), 94
Islamic branches (including 3 sub-branches) and a Wholesale Bank Branch in Bahrain. The branch network is supported by digital
channels to extend the outreach to our customers spread across the country and further to unbanked areas to serve the national
agenda of financial inclusion.

The Bank recognizes that enhancing customer experience is an area of strategic focus, whether they walk into our branches or engage
remotely through the phone and digital channels. A pre-requisite is to ensure a comprehensive range of products and service offerings
relevant to the needs of specific customer segments, and valuable insights are continually gained as to how value is delivered to the
customers in a conducive environment. The Bank has initiated pragmatic customer engagement at multiple levels to initiate actions
from these learnings for enhancing customer value proposition.

The digital journey continues with the use of technology to address stakeholder needs through a range of innovative products and
also for process transformations. Growth of digital transaction volumes confirms the ease of use of our online platforms and customer
confidence in using these for transactions. The Bank takes this responsibility very seriously, investing in enhancing cyber security to
strengthen our systems to maintain confidentiality and discharge our responsibilities as custodians of trust. The digital banking will
aggressively pursue initiatives to transform the systems to deliver enhanced analytical capability, process efficiencies and better
customer experience.

RATINGS:

During the year, the Bank’s entity ratings were maintained at ‘AA+’ by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), the ratings
reflect relative position of the Bank, driven by AKBL's strong sponsors, continuous improvement in cost of funds and assets quality
supplemented by comfortable liquidity position. The short term rating was maintained at ‘A1+’, being the highest rating.
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RISK MANAGEMENT:

Risk management is fundamental to banking and is therefore embedded in everyday management of our business. Achieving the
optimal trade-off between risk and return is the ultimate goal of our risk management strategies. Thus a sound risk management
framework has been developed encompassing all areas of banking activities. The Risk Management Framework encompasses Board
and senior management supervision, risk appetite guidelines, along with efficient policies and procedures. The Board of Directors have
established oversight of the risk management function of the Bank through the Board Risk Management Committee and provides the
strategic direction for effective risk management and ensures that a robust risk management framework remains in place.

The Bank continues to employ processes and methodologies to meet international and local best practices. The security of information
and technology infrastructure is important in maintaining the integrity of banking processes, applications and to protect internal and
external data.

The Bank will continue to strengthen its risk Infrastructure, through acquisition of risk automation solutions and IT security tools, in
order to streamline risk processes and to bring these in line with regulatory guidelines and industry best practices. Continuous efforts
are being made to implement security awareness programs and to create capacity to prevent, detect, and respond to cyber security
threats.

The Bank is taking all necessary steps to remain fully compliant with the Basel Il transition plan, which includes raising the capital
adequacy ratio threshold to 12.5 percent by end 2019, along with the management of the leverage ratio as an additional capital
standard. Capital management is regularly reviewed at the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) to ensure that the Bank
remains compliant with the requirements.

COMPLIANCE:

The compliance focus is dominating the global banking industry and our Bank is also proactive in ensuring that it remains compliant
with the global standards. Compliance function strives to strengthen the compliance environment in collaboration with the management
and strives to minimize compliance risks across the institution.

Compliance function has taken number of initiatives to improve the compliance standards in the Bank by implementing robust AML
/ CFT policy and procedures including but not limited to identification and reporting of suspicious transactions, compliance of UNSC
resolutions & FATF recommendations, provision of appropriate training and awareness to the employees.

The Bank aims to build on existing compliance culture and seeks to further strengthen controls and governance with focus on people,
processes and technology (PPT). In order to achieve the highest standards of compliance in PPT and to comply with the regulatory
requirements, the Bank will implement automated compliance risk management solution and upgrade sanctions screening system.
Also, the Bank is evaluating available solutions in the area of fraud detection and prevention.

OUR PEQPLE:
Askari Bank remains committed to investing and building its human capital by attracting talent, investing extensively in developing /
enhancing people skills, and creating an enabling environment. During the year, Human Resource function kept focus on induction of
high quality talent pool by recruiting batches of Management Trainee Officers in addition to the induction of experienced and skilled
resources.



Training and Development witnessed compliance to regulatory requirement and focus on technical skills as the priority for the year
2018. Keeping in view the importance of self-paced learning, new computer based training programs were developed and added to
the in-house E-learning portal. As part of sustained focus on training and development 356 training programs were conducted during
the year.

The Bank’s strategic imperatives such as service excellence and sales focus, for which the primary conduit will be our people,
underscored the importance of investments in training and development to enhance the value of our most valued asset. The re-
engineering of our processes and the infusion of technology has begun to facilitate people empowerment. The ensuing year will
witness our HR initiatives gaining more traction with focus on facilitating greater dialogue, encouraging innovation, charting paths for
career advancement and mentoring; for individuals to take on more responsibility and become leaders in the industry.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As a socially responsible corporate entity, Askari Bank believes in taking initiatives which add value to peoples’ lives and the
communities around them. The Bank understands its obligation towards social development activities and is committed to contribute
in CSR initiatives mainly in the areas of health, education, sports and culture. During the year, the Bank and its employees contributed
towards the Diamer Bhasha and Mohmand Dams Fund. To support our national game, the Bank continued to provide honorary
employment to the players and trainers of national hockey team. Contributions were also made for Care for Special Persons Foundation
and Armed Forces Institute of Cardiology.

CUSTOMER COMPLAINT MANAGEMENT:

Askari Bank promotes a culture that values customer experience and customer satisfaction as absolute business imperatives.
Complaint Management function at the Bank plays a vital role in achieving the objective of fair and timely resolution of customer
complaints. The Bank has deployed a centralized Complaint Management System (CMS) to ensure proper monitoring and timely
resolution of complaints. Each complaint registered in CMS is assigned a unique complaint number and an auto acknowledgement
SMS is sent to the complainant at registered number. The turnaround time for complaint resolution is rigorously monitored and is
supported by the escalation matrix defined in the system to ensure that complaints resolved in an efficient manner. A total of 44,594
complaints were registered during 2018 with an average resolution time 3.6 working days.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Board of Directors of Askari Bank is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance which has underpinned the
Bank’s long-term competitiveness, growth and sustainability. The requirements of Code of Corporate Governance as set out in the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations in the rule book for the year ended December 31, 2018 have been fully adopted and
have been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed in annual report.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:
e The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Bank present its state of affairs fairly, the results of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Financial Reporting, Islamic and Shariah Standards, as applicable to banking companies in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of these financial statements and there is no departure from the said standards.
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e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
e There are no significant doubts upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
e  Key operating and financial data for the last six years, in a summarized form, is included in the annual report.

e There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as of December 31, 2018,
except as disclosed in annexed financial statements.

e Following is the fair value of investments as at December 31, 2018:
- Provident Fund: Rs. 4,433 million, based on un-audited financial statements (December 31, 2017: Rs. 3,974 million, based
on audited financial statements)

- Gratuity Fund: Rs. 2,557 million, based on un-audited financial statements (December 31, 2017: Rs. 2,039 million, based
on audited financial statements)

e During 2018, seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each existing Director was as follows:

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani, HI (M) (Retd) (Chairman)
Lt Gen Tariq Khan, HI (M) (Retd)

Lt Gen Javed Igbal, HI (M) (Retd)

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Kamal A Chinoy

Brig Saleem Ahmed Moeen, Sl (Retd)
Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf

Mr. Mushtaq Malik

0. Mr. Abid Sattar (President & CE)

S| LN wIMd
wiN(N I AN (N oo

Attendance by Directors resigned / retired during the year was as follows:

1 Lt Gen Khalid Nawaz Khan, HI (M) (Retd) (Resigned on January 09, 2018) 1

2. Lt Gen Shafqaat Ahmed, HI (M) (Retd) (Resigned on March 26, 2018) Nil
3. Justice (Retd) Sarmad Jalal Osmany (Resigned on March 28, 2018) 2
4
5

Syed M. Husaini (President & CE) (Resigned on March 28, 2018)
Mr. Qaiser Javed (Resigned on December 1, 2018) 6

e During the year 2018, eight meetings of Board Audit Committee, four meetings of Board Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee, four meetings of Board Risk Management Committee and one meeting of Board Information Technology Committee
were held. Detail of attendance by each Director is attached with Directors’ report.

OUTGOING CHAIRMAN:

Lt Gen Khalid Nawaz Khan, HI (M), Sitara-i-Esar (Retd) resigned as the Chairman of the Board w.e.f. January 9, 2018. On behalf of the
Board of Directors, we wish to place on record our sincerest appreciation for the contributions made by Lt Gen Khalid Nawaz Khan as
Chairman of the Board of Askari Bank Limited.



BOARD EVALUATION:

The Bank has put in place an evaluation framework for evaluation of the board, its committees, individual directors and the chairman
of the board, as a good governance practice and also to comply with relevant regulatory guidance. The evaluation is undertaken
through a comprehensive questionnaire, bifurcated into different sections; board’s composition, scope, functions, performance and
process monitoring and objective contributions by individual directors. The evaluation of the board committees is primarily based on
the assessment of the compliance with the terms of reference of each committee. The evaluation criteria for individual directors, is
based on their participation, contribution and offering guidance to and understanding of the areas which were relevant to them in their
capacity as Board members. The evaluation criteria for the Chairman of the Board in addition to the general criteria, also encompasses
leadership abilities and effective management of meetings.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:
The pattern of shareholding at the close of December 31, 2018 is included in the annual report.

TRADING IN SHARES:

No trades in the shares of the Bank were carried out by the President & CE, CFO, Company Secretary their spouses and minor children
during the year 2018.

STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS:

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for ensuring that an adequate and effective internal control system exists in the Bank
and that the management of the Bank assumes responsibility of establishing and maintaining effective internal controls throughout the
Bank and has made a statement on internal control in this annual report. The management’s statement on internal control has been
endorsed by the Board of Directors.

AUDITORS:

The present auditors, M/s A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants have completed their assignment for the year ended December
31, 2018 and shall retire at the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for
reappointment. As advised by the Board’s Audit Committee, the Board recommends appointment of M/s A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as auditors for the year ending December 31, 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
There have not been any material events that occurred subsequent to the date of the Statement of Financial Position that require
adjustments to the attached financial statements.

LOOKING AHEAD:

The economic growth is expected to pick up pace gradually over the medium term as the stabilization measures implemented so far
gradually unfolds and confidence improves. In the shorter term, fiscal deficit and current account deficit are areas of concerns to fuel
inflationary pressures and making 2019 a challenging year. These factors along with a net contraction in large-scale manufacturing
and slowdown in agriculture will take toll on the economic performance and the real GDP growth is likely to be lower than the target.

Banking earnings will continue to be driven by interest rate dynamics, demand for advances, banks’ investment strategies, and
movement in money, capital and foreign exchange markets. The rising rates and USD / PKR parity will adversely impact the borrowing
segment, particularly import based. While improving the banking spreads, the interest rate hike increases the risk of default
particularly in the commercial, SME and consumer segments, with a relatively longer term adverse impact warranting stringent and
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holistic measures to address asset quality concerns emanating from borrowers’ repayment capacities. Funding cost will remain a key
determinant for banking profits. Growth of agriculture and SMEs have been rightly assigned as areas of strategic priority for provision
of credit to small and marginalised borrowers, while addressing the geographical and sectoral imbalances. The capacity building for
SMEs is also vital to incubate the next generation of corporates who will have stronger support stimulating growth in exports and
import substitution ventures, facilitating the socioeconomic progress of the country.

The Bank is buoyant on the prospects for the business segments and will continue to optimize and reallocate assets and resources
to harness their full potential. Appreciating that technology is an imperative to enhance value creation and sustained competitiveness
amidst rapidly changing life styles and landscapes of the financial industry; technology will continue to be leveraged for enhanced
customer convenience and satisfaction.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

On behalf of the Board, we express our sincere appreciation to the State Bank of Pakistan and other regulatory bodies for the guidance
and support extended to Askari Bank during the year. We are also thankful to our investors for the trust that they have placed in the
Bank. The results for 2018 would not have been possible without the loyalty of our customers who have continued to build stronger
relationships and patronize our products and service offerings. On behalf of the Bank, we express our appreciation to all our customers
and most importantly we would like to acknowledge our employees whose painstaking commitment, hard work and dedication has
enabled successful delivery of our promise to all our stakeholders.
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Abid Sattar Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani

President & Chief Executive HI (M) (Retd)
Chairman Board of Directors

February 21,2019

Rawalpindi



ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

DATES OF MEETING

Board Committees BAC BHR & RC BRMC BITC
5 @
Selzlele|elgle 2o 2|8 2222 %
Committee Members é § E c;u ;-. % 3? (%— S g :(z?. :;) O‘S é § g § § S
EE ||| e 28] | 2 Y| = S 8| |8 2
Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf 8/8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
o | Mr. Qaiser Javed 7/8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 y
S | Dr. Nadeem Inayat 8/8 I EE R EEE
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed 7/8 1 1 1 X 1 1 1 1
Lt Gen Javed Igbal, HI (M) (Retd) 414 1 1 1 1
Q Dr. Nadeem Inayat 414 1 1 1 1
o3 | Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy 2/4 X X 1 1
| Syed Ahmed Iqbal Ashraf 44 ENERE
Mr. Mushtaq Malik 3/4 X 1 1 1
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed 4/4 1 1 1 1
Mr. Qaiser Javed 3/4 1 1 1 y
Dr. Nadeem Inayat 2/4 z z 1 1
Justice (Retd) Sarmad Jalal Osman
o (Resign(ed on)zs‘os,ws) Y1 e Ty oy |y
=i
5| oa waneaon oy | 2 |z |2 |2
Syed M. Husaini (Resigned on
2sys.03.18) (Festo L& Ty |y |y
Mr Abid Sattar (President & CE
Joined o: 14.0é.18) 5e o z z 1 1
Brig Salegm Ahmed Moeen, S| 117 1
(Retd) (Joined on 27.07.18)
£ | Dr. Nadeem Inayat 7 1
M Abid Sattar (President & CE T )
Joined on 14.06.18)
Leave of Absence X BITC was constituted on October 8, 2018
No more member y
Was not member at that time z

© Annual Report 2018



Askari Bank Limited

()
o

(el AL B S S S
) ;‘J L./L-’,k; e |;“":’3§-'L.¢“’ﬁ; iusé st E‘:;ﬁ'.!...-r’? U@ﬁj{ J-;- liz u‘:';:.rﬁbr? | JfC'_J_J

7 lg-{:,f'p

LK LS QL s e G TSP st BT L & it bt S\t E7 85 9150 ST L i s
J.w.r'mth:.vu:uId{{;fw_ff;:‘uﬁ.gg..z;L;LJ!ful-u[:z.hduﬁ._gf 2019 st ESb L =il CiL oA p Luli
e N s T A ISIEE AL Ut LKA

LA L gkl ﬁsz}ﬁwE;,lﬂ_-fzsﬁtemiufﬁwm Uk S Pt KL s P\ U ST e
AP e n L ben AL Sk B LS 2 E P U JSaTaler® U F et e (IR A L v
Cen TNl i fad ML L Z e il L I 30e e oo SE NS U fi blemrr SVt U P A
LIV o P Irirdmd st sl S 703 debn §o12 b s AL £ B f S e WS K e AL S M
Srondngrdbae mid LHIS B bR cobod I A - e VAT L P LT 2A 3o N Resiid

P occn§ St i U e T sl Tose o

JLJLJJIJ&--J:"U ;'i)_-calj}:l E,é-z s ?ﬂ;'ﬁﬁ(LﬁL 1 !’LMILJHIJ-‘JQJ!J Jiru.! '.:.-lgﬁL‘|J;‘.‘L.tf‘{4.£.:-tb-'c;u_i£¢f‘d.fl,u K..\??
QS fop e £ 3t e A BB b B L it b ATE L B L et ol oo

..L;Jg.e

e

U A IPIL bl i A S Qi S B P un g L ot Pe ¥R E AL ST e S A b
gz _,fu’a,uufuiw_-,u;-"dmnli.h.-,mﬁm"‘é..uﬁig‘;’cﬁ&Jﬁ&@m_,mféc-q AL 201 BLJL-‘-E:QEWJPIZE..'{J}L;?L
el Ve e Pt il e 3§ L i1 e gl e e filoi e S il
NI ST A

e 7%

Wi barai¥ e

GAe ANy EE s
I TL R

Sadsls

201942421



ajﬁjgjﬁ;'sc.ﬁje’ﬁ')féhﬁ#

e Lt AL e dE ml v

1 (w7 20185#9) GADAEAVG i zass 1
2 (L7 20188.428) J&Uies L) 2
2 (LT 20185428) (EL Izow) Fhlrcts .3
Iy (end" 720183426 GG e ) 2o 4
6 (end V20185 e Btz 5

e st AL L el v
LT d)l:-?ﬁlﬁﬁ.duihﬂlgbgﬁg?’ ._-;Jf-'._ﬂ,Lu:ru’ﬂpIJL,LJ*'rcr"‘-;':f;iaruﬁ:u’:jmuuerﬁiﬁ( 23Tt 2018J0 -
-‘L:ﬁ;‘uﬂ;/{;J}E}FJJFJJ;*bJ}fﬁliﬁ-bﬂ’;“:‘dll?'

Wl AL ey
NG 2 e By L o L b L2 S i Tt 2B 20185,2 90 (A1 e 6 7w
LS B e hd e e S T AR L A S

Jeybledia

L oAk 3l b K ) B Letinfe) L by Bl L Ao & SISt AL s s S Prud Sl &
L arbe e SIEMEAP SIS I ol P e it JE S S b i e W Ce G by B -ttt e
Sehg e AL Stk e bl SE I Gy PR SES SRS Fop g Sotg S ble Sudk it s st
Bty L H el s S Gso L 6 Bl & Lt L Gy d F FES ey S P sire ol
- b ofpad

i 7
e SO e S e 2 9122018 2531

ELNLIF
UM ST Ge SIUEL A b ML itk S g rssmtnsd 20181

Wy AP UE
S5 S lnsl B L LJ;;-'J'J}'r}‘?;xli-é.,‘»ml"iu’._.@mq.;l,.a3u’.Lhd?fpﬁzr{(“d;ﬂjﬁv}?mgv_g@_@;}.f;rj..ir"h;: K
e JE i A AT S g I P U e e L s U g s I sl st

T

Lo eag B Pl St f 3 b il gfd‘?m:;!d_.idw_ui_xﬁrzm 8 #3150 Sl I P s e Tory
Linin 20102531/ 8 S o P A8 L ey ST g SPBSS P L uegebcdi G L
LSSl St aL L

=X Annual Report 2018



Askari Bank Limited

~nNo
~no

Lf;}f _*c.r,#..-f

#2018, 1-cdesbrdrerun Seil-Gu J0G L Ve prpd L jud el IIE P ee sy M ITIN GBS S
Lﬂtﬁ‘uﬂ;ﬂy‘,&[‘;l{gﬂ}{‘_qbL;-E._ﬁ_;faf.::'éuﬁdjﬁ_L..Triﬁfqz_;';b’u}:}‘;d}ﬂ%’ézﬁ“"&:g_fbuPrihﬁ_fdg;d_LJL,.}_J,‘T_H
e oIt Lt Rt

2Js f—j—ﬁt{;(}_ﬂluu‘;;{;b’

e b b i B Bl eL AL Nz b\ LS f s SNEL L e e e -
QI S -
-ty B SUAL U B St e
WV e e bamyiale. S a2 S B F e Sl (P W {E quﬁ:buiu;:‘:{ﬁéhﬂuvf} =
e Sy baiie B pive e FRPri wéh s
—e A B o b e e oS K
e Sttt UM g 2
e VYU QU SAL il 2 LIRS R a S e szl 23 £4 20182931 -
e f3lusdsbae SUs KA £ 201845931 -

LS St T he 14,433 5y

Cpobifuntty Wl ST s 3,974:2017+531)

U Bt T d 2,567 58 £

Cpobrdusi®y Bt LT 2,039 :2017531)

e 5SS pnn i S A LA el 2018 Jb -

6 (RACAIEA I IS 2e™ 4
2 (28080 b S res® 2
5 AL o) 20 3
7 ecbli s 4
7 Ao 5
4 LUtz 6
2 (GO S PR ¢
4 SAGec e 8
7 HLieet: 9
3 (HE Iz s bkt 10



9T AP o S olyls pa

S
L::"“JU:"LL ._,-'"Jir(;. CJ!L;L’.-J-‘;.F.:Q:EUF:;&{‘LL,ILg“}ru:;“.‘_lJk’c‘:J'}Lydliﬁp:u-élih)![l&j}}{;)uﬁ';ﬂc v‘da@uikﬁijwlw/
NI AN SR AL P PO R

N TR I R I M-S A enZ Salofy ka paF Pl ibificinet A
ST AL Tty 7 b ol FATF sl siast JUNSCe By =32 S et

NS, VA Gd-atShod i pA AT AR AL L Sifp A (S EAL 3 fesf o BEA S W s
u:d-:é:;i;{‘ﬂiya{:Lf}lrl"’_f'_;-MU-F&CJLE’L__);:;T’}FLULL;_;}QN 'Lﬂi’g’e}'-‘-«";: J&’ijﬁf—t_‘é-iugd}#kdﬁdﬁ!{uﬂdrl
-4l ey bedAr

:-J;'L-Jh'

a7 L8320\ QI L SIES I ANLL LS d b KB LUt L zip$ule i tor il G F
Ay e bt S SerdUr Bls g, ool AL SISAAL N L SB35 22 P sl i
&

it Gy bt n2E FidenpSE o i3 AL b EAO TN IS I L ik i B hgumL 20181
L LS 1356uml Jein L Silpd S s iidiin B s L L e Sy NS s Ligp)y

G g oo §E £ b S L U dS dad L e & 5E e dar gt Y K SHOA S pslnfr ol o
L Il T L s T e TR b N IUIE 2 P S EAeBot S 1S et Yitlesmiget ST
L et e ik in S g S8 L pun 378l S hor S

'-Lf;h..»]ljk‘é-c.r{;b’

3G EIG B Lol AR Ui 2 L U3 SE i e Gy L MG b L i iy s G
el bl 2L Sl Byl g ¢ Pyt o Lt TR U L = S P PR S N
STt d0 T 6 7 A e LI s S 2 ot UL £V SF B8P L s S e sa o
i LG

:rlﬂf.:.-l_-fﬁifg-,é.ah

Lo S Santsbarl oSt JCg bl el fENKE Wertbunie £ AL At B ulz 2 kot A :f_-'-f’—@dﬂ
S WA RIS st G G £ LG FBrim DIt et S Bt s £ UL s
LS e bl imifimn BALIL ZEwdy % Ve Ay ..ﬂ.;saau_;.rgg.j‘-’ﬁ,{' et ;}-gf-tafﬁﬁ & St A
6 Tz 844,508 S in L 2018 bl P IA 35K s STt bt e Qb Qe FUSbnd
USRS 3. 6hsl

o3 Annual Report 2018



Askari Bank Limited

N
~

%
e SBS L BT L B10L LIl 201825318 suteastel i

:.J::e;f‘ &Lc
wdHEIF e P Jundity Fuk Fud13Ur) Aegiroad Zlud 14005 #1152 £151508 Ak Sner bl
-.:..JJ'L.".;;“’;";_ ’*@U;’:::;J“}JQL_L:LJ;U&JJJ:&:J:'?.L?&”J :rJLaJJwéJbé..xh_E.tht;JéLcuﬁﬂJc-

& Lute tdve e tmmae 3L FSF NG LT RGeS hontbe JoK A St Koo FL e i PPl 1
BUPLA LS Sl SIS b B e L St bn ) Bt s L chnf B Sl o S s
e VTRl A eyt B L8 Sy e\ B d Ll bnhibip il B Sedriicl il

BT R AL D E I S SIS e et L UKL st GBS E s s
e L i3 t L L i1 G e Jon SIL Sl e E el £ Einte S 1ol VL pb e T
S L Lo S it S Sz b QU Bt Be P biie i nsmas g lbb pfdubiv st

-Jﬁ'ﬁﬁ;:—t!.ﬁuh@i

:Lfa'c._w

L& Frevbdeiyded s ﬁ;,-&"ofu}x;'ﬁ..o.#ﬁi Sl Pe S (PACRA) 1B e L Sl b
o fe Bosf 7B M BB S P 3 L e L UG L & L Pl by Ao S0 R SV 5505 P a
il

(2L

L,!, I T 5 /"-":-.ﬁuéhf-uﬁml.ﬂ;-q_ sy by il K e o Lisle Sl J&Kpﬂ;w&’.’-'-f.‘.:..ﬂx
S o s St ot g WA o2 p UL e e TV Infe st P 0L 1o siife F
L2 G WISt Ll B 5Lt L SIS e b S Il e B 5 st el S 0 L
e b e st fo e L fite b pr o L acde

};E;ZLZ!J!}EJ_}[JM;b!IJLWFs m}[—l{f”f‘ﬁdﬂ;‘i{élﬁjﬁ&f@;ﬂ& LP_CL-@JA.DJ.‘LJUH;JV:E ,J'q,:': UVLJL&#J L:*ledi}ﬂluf_’ L{’H{_ﬂ_{
_..:_f“r_J_i.a’_‘.’/J',;.(f

Jf&l}’ |,j’.' ...Cz'%.h_ﬂ.t.iz. j;&;f&d'dnfﬁ#ﬁ; T..J;.:..J%. _&i i U&WLJVJJQ}C‘L =l aﬁ’{dﬁ:t’:g,‘:‘;l;.sl';/(ﬁif—"{é s
Fube T 41.J._Jlr?"f.:-._—*auu’;g.;JiuI.i.fﬂf,yriavﬁa..w.yﬁ&fﬁ’wuu;ﬁ oy L€ Tl e SOy R kb
vt

Ll frsii 12,55 (CAR) o B E L IF LI 201008 s | AU £ et M Lo Pl
(ALCONF 2ot (¥ nie e St P £ LG BN L 61360 G- 8 3 JF LA sl B G ALal
...Lr‘kryn):lrnﬁﬁlhﬁ



90 5 AP o S ulylo paa>

Laloc sspfdnFe & o n L i 0148932 st LnPoe EAEStnd Jn il FAL s 62
JSoridaisraz il

Rt bl g S s L 10.4.,&;!._*#}'&3{!{-1_#)__.&,..411 6.2 5L 8 6 Sz bl A Tl b
sl MU LU KadB AL ol 5 e B8, T A T QL s L Ur PL s K TS Ll
679 L ISl b 1911 Jone S e gt 23 62U o 20§ 5y L fiﬂi;.h_.;wfﬁf;irﬁi et

_dnytdes.6

a0 E LGS B oy SFL & i 5 oL JidsGAL s i BE N2 T e JrF o
sl 1 (e Ol g n a8 SEENO0SIAIL B Sty e b b M o b LS I TS0 008
L 28Uy A (TS A6 Eird08. 20 933U G ST HE 2037 )6 B STile PSA S P ABTHE o3/ ) 2L

Ens eSS rgnidiidi st o B EnF A L i 15.9.n8 K FLup e S LAFS

entnd s L B Sidie s £ elstri LA Soferdet tu FavE e PG kSt o L2018
AL BTGt T AP L L s 12602 R UL N o L oasd29. 8.5V L & s 136938 b sl L Jo b
L LA STy 1503y o Jd Firgiof Ao 35 S o 31 s sl oy e 800 T r oL o 201 S e 1Y P
ARSI SR 3133 RIS S e s & 1 STR6 AL 5 491 ‘ﬂ‘gs/"‘: Guidpp 2 S H

e PSS P b S S i s 3L SRS S

oS MBI L FE e N ESEL e SO Sl p L P\ P BL L L FE P32 Sy skl 6t o2t B
6.0 L UFL It Lol FE 1 Ryl Mo Sre bl P AL SRR A ety Ak e 50T
S I S S L S A 5L (A1 RONL S P s B tas B3 JF srl o

e s bt d L1 0§pt R S Tl S L Sy L G

el
e b/ At At ad LUl il wfY 201825315505 0
(L2uys.'000)
2017 2018 Jirste 531 2017 2018
i st
5267887 4,431,278 Beml*® 5121863 4429310
(113,3986) 3,005 :urz,)’ﬁ’(.-_rmr&m@ (113,963) 2,001
9,824 165,812 Fe A ybs 9,824 165,812
5163715 4,600,185 Coetnd Lo 5017724 4,597,123
(1,260,260) wB10- A Pei Gf (1,260,260) .
(1.053,577)  (886,256) Fhpdie  (1,053577)  (886,256)
2,849,878 3,713,929 Cenitl 2,703,887 3,710,867
4.18 3.52 PRV W oghl 4.06 3.51

& Annual Report 2018



Askari Bank Limited

~n
(@)}

D983y 55 P18 o S Wyl e

B3 Tte s Ot e it fs b TS B ot agustg E o S BUF L £ Il i nFH2018,45315:551
. 9 1

O

RSN 2 luTod L& S I S G LB ST R B L AN et Syt uimd 2018k JY
u:"'jdxuui'J'LJL—‘;JLL‘J“L).‘:ﬁ;ﬂ:L-JL'JJ.'J"_Lﬂ.‘:?|_..t.;¢.c;é‘:ﬁ;ﬂfI.s'-;'r:.JJE—'J}gFffa_,;sJr_)L—"'j.fléuﬁ&iflﬁfcﬁliﬁaégJHLﬂ&z
S rde Al lmibie SEt el st S LAy

e ubise & petre alraip e oA S LR ATLI SN S STty p st A5 e
£dzfu}'gu(ﬁgﬂidﬁTZ.LJP;:"FJL@JG;UC':-@F} LJ’L;‘?P{_ t:lﬂ:il_.:dl.. Jﬂdffu\f L:J.F';U;:/"Jl?'.ﬁ LEJ.; leds b’zsl.:—'!.fﬁéﬂ Jj“ I
SIS eFors,

Wille 201852 K425 o8 2 2018 b §Td it e i L ie P T es§ bibml capl il P
e SIS g L st o (07U S P S U o T i 3y S A S U e by

—_—

v

el eSSl Ao i e S PYBF L Ll 0 dee e SerPs
S nietas oy £ peidarfe wio st LI LI 5K 8sa 51 QAP A A L1 s B Z sl
Sl siperr b e L L g oo fassicc Sl St cb gt £ & el nbiud L1 Sy
= B0 MBI Seraend LJber ST 1 lin PSEs .;'_J;z:rl.&rzsf_fﬂmyu“{gﬁr_;_fagmﬁ
DL ot For e pdy 2ot AN NS P S Syt Pl L8 TP e S s S et

e smie

2K

OIS ptAr BB e Byg 0 b g 183 AL 16 5 L st T2L IS 8P
Fol g B2 S QuTEE i B8 P JOL IR L AF U DL e b M L o ST L AL EL
B SR b Sy SN N S S S Pl s AL Ju 15,9 B oSt i LI DTy AL ST
£ 13.52 45 0L o 2418 L2 LaSnEnd f s P B CIunalE e PYE P ntine j ) P K L 1L
s

I Ll P 3 add 20.4 0 I Lot o S B sT ST 1 18.6 AL 50189 0mE Jinio il Gy
«.‘-—“"”:‘Iul:fgi_@uifa-‘&’.i.bz OIAT: rJTq,ﬁ&::d:-é3 Ol GL Tl Poe U st 3112 PG Kadd 40,1 2 P K100
FAS o2 s 5F AL i L GLai13.3 A AR T S e 6 k36 .4 Uiy Qi P 5

P N 1~ ) }g:bffu':.ﬁ.;l;jgfﬁ?é,nz-f,:ag&..*_;k;.-...f Crgudl muh&’p(inn(_)ﬁjgguz_ﬁi_b_

ey KL S tee_dsr B0 Non Fund Income (455 4 s 3iiusd 1512 u;-'l'd’-,;;,f.il.-h—.. FEAAL Jmd i
oB PS54 3 AT UK ERIATMS sl Jinlo s it o0 A2 25050 e Ak Qe ST e Sl LR8N
Tt Poe B S aS ¥ BB L UR b E 383 IE Ay Mgy b Htile Z,rl,,,c.-c,é-’,’ﬁ_Jf,._,r:a;’ A



UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

ASKARI BANK LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018



Askari Bank Limited

~nN
o

STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Management of Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) assumes full responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective system
of internal controls throughout the bank to ensure reliable, accurate and fair financial reporting, effectiveness of operations and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. Management understands that the effective maintenance of the internal controls
system is an ongoing process under the ownership of the management. All significant policies and procedural manuals are in place; and
the review, revision, and improvement to keep them updated to cope with latest challenges is actively pursued by the management.

Architecture of the Bank’s internal control system involves different levels of monitoring activities i.e. line management, Compliance
Division (CD) and Internal Audit Division (IAD). The Bank’s IAD is independent from line management and reviews the adequacy and
implementation of control activities across the Bank as well as implementation of and compliance with all the prescribed policies and
procedures.

All significant and material findings pointed out by the internal, external auditors and regulators are addressed on priority basis by CD.
The function also actively monitors implementation of the corrective / remedial measure to ensure that identified risks are mitigated
to safeguarding the interest of the Bank.

In compliance with the SBP’s directives, the Bank had completed the implementation of road map regarding Internal Controls over
Financial Reporting (ICFR) on September 30, 2012. This included detailed documentation of the existing processes, comprehensive
evaluation of controls both at entity as well as activity level, development of detailed remedial action plans for the gaps identified as a
result of such evaluation and devising comprehensive testing plans of the controls of all processes. Consequent to grant of exemption
by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) from the requirement of submission of Long Form Report (LFR), the documentation including the
testing results have been reviewed by internal auditors of the Bank, on the basis of which Annual Assessment Report duly approved by
the Audit Committee was submitted to the SBP. Annual Assessment Report for the year 2018 is due for submission by March 31, 2019.

During the year under review, we have endeavored to follow the guidelines issued by SBP on internal controls for evaluation and
management of significant risks and we will continue to endeavor for further improvements in the Internal Controls System.

While an internal controls system is effectively implemented and monitored; however, due to inherent limitations, internal controls
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the desired objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

@3 s

Saleem Anwar Abid Sattar
Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive

February 21,2019
Islamabad



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

The Bank has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manners:

1.

2.

The total number of directors is 11 as per the following detail:

a. Male: 11
b. Female: 0

The composition of Board is as follows:

Category Name

Independent Directors Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf
Mr. Mushtaq Malik
Brig Saleem Ahmed Moeen, SI (Retd)

Non-Executive Directors Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani, HI (M) (Retd) - Chairman

Lt Gen Javed Igbal, HI (M) (Retd)
Lt Gen Tariq Khan, HI (M) (Retd)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Rehan Laiq

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed - Nominee NIT

Executive Director / President & CE Mr. Abid Sattar

3

10.

11.
12.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including Askari
Bank Limited (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable) except Mr. Manzoor Ahmed
(Nominee NIT), who is holding directorship in more than five listed companies and has been allowed relaxation by Securities
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

The Bank has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout
the Bank along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and has approved significant policies of the
Bank. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended
has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board /
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating the minutes of meeting of Board.

The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.

All directors hold certifications under Directors’ Training program offered by institutions that meet the criteria specified by the
SECP. The Board has also arranged a Directors’ Orientation Session for all directors during the year.

The Board has approved the appointments of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

The CFO and the President & CE duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
The Board has formed following committees comprising of members given below:
Board Audit Committee (BAC)

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Chairman

Dr. Nadeem Inayat Member

Mr. Rehan Laiq Member

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Member

S Annual Report 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (BHR & RC)

1 Lt Gen Javed Igbal, HI (M) (Retd) Chairman
2 Dr. Nadeem Inayat Member
3 Mr. Kamal A Chinoy Member
4 Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Member
5 Mr. Mushtaq Malik Member

Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)

1 Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Chairman

2 Dr. Nadeem Inayat Member

3 Mr. Rehan Laiq Member

4 Brig Saleem Ahmed Moeen, S| (Retd) Member

5 Mr. Abid Sattar Member / President & CE

Board Information Technology Committee (BITC)

1 Brig. Saleem Ahmed Moeen, Sl (Retd) Chairman
2 Dr. Nadeem Inayat Member
3 Mr. Abid Sattar Member / President & CE

The composition of the Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (the Committee) is in line with the Revised
Guidelines on Remuneration Practices 2017 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan which allows a non-executive director to be
the Chairman in case the majority members of the committee are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is
not an independent Director, however, as per the guidelines majority members of the Committee are independent directors.

13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for
compliance.

14.  The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the committees were as per following:

Board Committees Frequency of meeting
Audit Committee Quarterly

Risk Management Committee Quarterly

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee Twice in a year
Information Technology Committee Quarterly

15.  The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Bank.

16.  The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Bank and that
the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics
as adopted by the ICAP.

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirements and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.  We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

For and on behalf on the Board

. S

b

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani, HI (M) (Retd) Rawalpindi
Chairman February 21,2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ASKARI BANK LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Askari Bank Limited for the year ended December 31,2018 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our responsibility is to review
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of
the Bank’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Bank’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before
the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of
the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not
carried out procedures to assess and determine the Bank’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Bank’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable
to the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference
where it is stated in the Statement of Compliance:

S.NO Paragraph Reference Description

. 12 The composition of the Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (the Committee) is
in line with the Revised Guidelines on Remuneration Practices 2017 issued by the State Bank
of Pakistan which allows a non-executive director to be the Chairman in case the majority
members of the committee are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is not
an Independent Director, however, as per the guidelines majority members of the Committee
are independent directors.

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad:

Engagement partner: S. Haider Abbas
February 21,2019

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PWC network
PIA Building. 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60/ 2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924, <www.pwc.com/pk>

KARACHI .LAHORE ISLAMABAD

= Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASKARI BANK LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Askari Bank Limited (the Bank), which comprise the unconsolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the branches except for twenty two branches which have been
audited by us and Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain which have been audited by auditor’s abroad and notes to the unconsolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of
financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and unconsolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Bank’s affairs as at December 31, 2018 and of the profit and loss and the comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER(S)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the unconsolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PWC network
PIA Building. 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60 / 2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; <www.pwc.com/pk>

-KARACHI .LAHORE ISLAMABAD
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FOLLOWING ARE THE KEY AUDIT MATTER(S):
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S.NO

NATURE OF THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

1

Provision against advances
(Refer note 9.4 to the unconsolidated financial statements)

The Bank makes provision against advances on a time
based criteria that involves ensuring all non-performing
loans and advances are classified in accordance with the
ageing criteria specified in the Prudential Regulations
(PRs) issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

In addition to the above time based criteria the PRs
require a subjective evaluation of the credit worthiness
of borrowers to determine the classification of advances.
The PRs also require the creation of general provision for
the consumer portfolio.

Provision against advances of Wholesale Bank Branch,
Bahrain is made as per the requirements of the regulatory
regime in Bahrain.

The Bank has recognized a net provision against advances
amounting to Rs. 467 million in the unconsolidated profit
and loss account in the current year. As at December 31,
2018, the Bank holds a provision of Rs. 26,152 million
against advances.

The determination of provision against advances based on
the above criteria remains a significant area of judgement
and estimation. Because of the significance of the impact
of these judgements/estimations and the materiality of
advances relative to the overall statement of financial
position of the Bank, we considered the area of provision
against advances as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to verify provision against advances,
amongst others, included the following:

We reviewed the design and tested operating effectiveness
of key controls established by the Bank to identify loss
events and for determining the extent of provisioning
required against non-performing loans.

The testing of controls included testing of:

e automated (IT system based) controls over correct
classification of non-performing advances on time
based criteria;

e controls over monitoring of advances with higher
risk of default and correct classification of non-
performing advances on subjective criteria;

e controls over accurate computation and recording of
provisions; and

e controls over the governance and approval
process related to provisions, including continuous
reassessment by the management.

n accordance with the regulatory requirement, we
sampled and tested at least sixty percent of the
total advances portfolio and performed the following
substantive procedures for sample loan accounts:

e verified repayment of loan/ mark-up installments
and checked that non-performing loans have been
correctly classified and categorized based on the
number of days overdue.

e examined watch list accounts and, based on
review of the individual facts and circumstances,
discussions with management and our assessment
of financial conditions of the borrowers, formed
a judgement as to whether classification of these
accounts as performing was appropriate.

We checked the accuracy of specific provision made
against non-performing advances and of general
provision made against consumer finance by recomputing
the provision amount in accordance with the criteria
prescribed under the Prudential Regulations.

We issued instructions to auditors of overseas
branch, highlighting ‘Provision against advances’ as a
significant risk. The auditors of this branch performed
audit procedures to check compliance with regulatory
requirements and reported the results thereof to us.

& Annual Report 2018
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FOLLOWING ARE THE KEY AUDIT MATTER(S):

A-F-FERGUSON&CO.

S.NO

NATURE OF THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

2

Taxation in respect of provision against non -
performing loans and advances

(Refer note 33.2
statements)

to the unconsolidated financial

The Bank has been contesting the matter of allowability
of provision against Non-Performing Loans (NPLs)
during tax years 1995 — 1996 to 2008, the period prior
to enactment of the Seventh Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 at the Supreme Court of Pakistan. The
Islamabad High Court (IHC) had previously disallowed
these provisions. During the year, the Supreme Court of
Pakistan upheld the decision of the Islamabad High Court
of Pakistan (IHC) to disallow such provision. Consequently,
the tax demand raised in re-assessment orders has been
paid by the Bank. The Bank has recognized prior year
tax charge against this disallowance net off actual write
offs and recoveries in tax years 2009 to 2019 related to
NPLs disallowed. In this respect, aggregate prior year tax
expense recorded during the period was Rs. 1,660 million
net of related deferred tax asset of Rs. 1,497 million.

Due to the nature of this matter, size of amounts involved
and significant development during the year, we consider
it as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e  obtained and reviewed the certified copy of order
dated March 13, 2018 passed by IHC in respect of
taxation related to provision against NPLs;

e  obtained and reviewed legal opinion from Bank’s tax
advisors related to treatment of outcomes arising as
a result of IHC Order.

e verified the amount of add back related to NPLs
used in calculation of prior year tax charge from
respective year audited unconsolidated financial
statements and returns filed by the Bank.

e recomputed prior year tax charge arising as a result
of Order passed by IHC.

e  obtained the Order of the Supreme Court of Pakistan
upholding the decision of IHC.

e checked the appropriateness and realizability of
deferred tax asset based on projections provided by
the Bank.

e checked that appropriate accounting treatment and
disclosures have been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Change in format of the financial statements

(Refer note 4.1.3 to the unconsolidated financial
statements)

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has amended the format
of annual financial statements of banks. All banks are
directed to prepare their annual financial statements on
the revised format effective from the accounting year
ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Bank has
prepared these unconsolidated financial statements on
the new format prescribed by SBP.

As part of this transition to the new requirements, the
management performed a gap analysis to identify
differences between the previous and current format. The
adoption of the new format required certain recognition
requirements and reclassification of certain financial
information. The amended format also introduced
certain new disclosures in the unconsolidated financial
statements.

In view of the significant impact of the first time adoption
of the revised format on these unconsolidated financial
statements, we consider it as a key audit matter.

We reviewed and understood the requirements of the
SBP’s amended format of annual financial statements for
banks. Our audit procedures included the following:

e reviewed the management’s process to identify the
changes required in the unconsolidated financial
statements to comply with the new format; and

e  obtained relevant underlying supports relating to
changes required in the unconsolidated financial
statements consequent to the adoption of the new
format to assess their appropriateness and verified
them on a test basis.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

U Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns
referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the purpose of our audit;

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated profit and loss account and the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and unconsolidated cash flow
statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in accordance with the objects and
powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the
Bank; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Bank and

deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total loans and advances of
the Bank.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is S. Haider Abbas.

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad:
Dated: February 21, 2019



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
2018 2017 2016
Rupees in ‘000 Note (Restated) (Restated)
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 49,187,645 44,239,325 42,568,141
Balances with other banks 6 4,093,402 3,193,835 5,845,748
Lendings to financial institutions 7 - 2,250,000 6,836,584
Investments 8 260,233,987 314,956,748 295,846,254
Advances 9 343,107,147 258,693,086 235,163,922
Fixed assets 10 12,791,827 9,885,958 10,132,940
Intangible assets 11 741,361 842,869 886,615
Assets held for sale 12 80,720 80,720 261,762
Deferred tax assets 13 3,773,779 100,755 -
Other assets 14 32,522,174 28,448,099 25,326,733
706,532,042 662,691,395 622,868,699
Liabilities
Bills payable 15 15,512,880 10,769,262 8,579,809
Borrowings 16 52,702,323 71,587,311 89,261,788
Deposits and other accounts 17 573,635,856 525,808,308 472,811,335
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - - -
Subordinated debts 18 9,993,600 4,992,800 4,994,800
Deferred tax liabilities - - 526,430
Other liabilities 19 21,178,476 17,098,223 14,117,587
673,023,135 630,255,904 590,291,749
Net assets 33,508,907 32,435,491 32,576,950
Represented by
Share capital 20 12,602,602 12,602,602 12,602,602
Reserves 15,543,179 11,840,757 8,670,686
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 21 1,649,197 5,142,254 7,327,114
Unappropriated profit 3,713,929 2,849,878 3,976,548
33,508,907 32,435,491 32,576,950
Contingencies and commitments 22

The annexed notes 1 to 49 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Go. PN ame

Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Rehan Laiq
Director

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf
Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani

Chairman
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
Mark-up / return / interest earned 24 43,669,883 36,267,220
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 25 25,059,925 20,071,965
Net mark-up / interest income 18,609,958 16,195,255
Non mark-up / interest income
Fee and commission income 26 3,116,070 2,706,794
Dividend income 231,312 302,894
Foreign exchange income 1,596,027 843,032
Income / (loss) from derivatives - -
Gain on securities 27 260,103 2,055,293
Other income 28 418,081 200,341
Total non-markup / interest income 5,621,593 6,108,354
Total income 24,231,551 22,303,609
Non mark-up / interest expenses
Operating expenses 29 16,240,514 14,948,796
Workers’ Welfare Fund 30 (540,060) 169,833
Other charges 31 191,067 23,568
Total non-markup / interest expenses 15,891,521 15,142,197
Profit before provisions 8,340,030 7,161,412
Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net 32 1,460,575 (1,330,390)
Extraordinary / unusual items - -
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,491,802
Taxation 33 (2,448,177) (3,223,915)
Profit after taxation 4,431,278 5,267,887
Rupees
Basic earnings per share 34 3.52 418

The annexed notes 1 to 49 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

o BN de ae

Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Director Chairman



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 (Restated)
Profit after taxation for the year 4,431,278 5,267,887
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:
Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 186,164 30,336
Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax (4,488,014) (2,378,635)
(4,301,850) (2,348,299)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan - net of tax 3,095 (113,996)
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net of tax 709,447 107,658
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 285,510 193,775
998,052 187,437
Total comprehensive income 1,127,480 3,107,025

The annexed notes 1 to 49 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

o PN e

Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani

Chairman
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

Exchange Share
Share  translation premium Statutory General  Investments  Fixed /non - Unappropriated Total
Rupees in ‘000 capital reserve account reserve reserve banking assets  profit/ (loss)
Balance as at January 1, 2017 - as previously reported 12,602,602 93,511 234669 6755314  1587,192 2,769,126 4450330  4,084206 32,576,950
Effect of retrospective change in accounting policy
with respect to accounting for surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets - - - - - - 107,658 (107,658) -
Balance as at January 1,2017 - as restated 12,602,602 93,511 234669 6755314  1587,192 2,769,126 4,557,988 3976548 32,576,950
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31,2017
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 - - - - - - - 5267887 5,267,887
Other comprehensive income related to equity - 30,336 - - - (2378,63) 193,775 (113,996)  (2,268,520)
Transfer to:
Statutory reserve - - - || 1,083,577 - - - || (1,053,577) -
General reserve - - - - || 3,976,548 - - 1| (3,976,548) -
- - - 1,083577 3,976,548 - - (5,030,125 -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to
unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - 9,824 9,824
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend 2016: Rs. 1.50 per share - - - - (1,890,390) - - - (1,890,390
Interim dividend 2017: Re. 1 per share - - - - - - - (1,260,260) (1,260,260)
Balance as at January 1,2018 12,602,602 123,847 234669 7808891 3,673,350 390491 4751,763 2,849,878 32,435,491
Impact of IFRS 9 of Wholesale Bank Branch - (850) - - (219,026) - - - (219,876)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 after impact of IFRS 9
of Wholesale Bank Branch 12,602,602 122,997 234669 7,808,891 3,454,324 390,491 4751763 2,849,878 32,215,615
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31,2018
Net profit for the year ended December 31,2018 - - - - - - - 4431278 4431278
Other comprehensive income related to equity = 186,164 = = - (4,488,014 994,957 3,095  (3,303,798)
Transfer to:
Statutory reserve - - - 886,256 - - - (886,256) -
General reserve - - - - || 2849878 - - || (2,849,878) -
- - - 886,256 2,849,878 - - (3736,134) -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to
unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - 165,812 165,812
Balance as at December 31, 2018 12,602,602 309,161 234669 8695147 6304202 (4097,523) 5746720 3,713,929 33,508,907

The annexed notes 1 to 49 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Lt Gen (R) Syed Tarig Nadeem Gilani
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Director Chairman



UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,491,802
Less: dividend income (231,312) (302,894)
6,648,143 8,188,908
Adjustments:
Depreciation 1,022,835 1,326,873
Amortization 195,294 196,038
Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net 1,603,111 (1,183,261)
Gain on sale of asset held for sale - (216,000)
Charge for defined benefit plans 586,359 378,032
Loss on sale of fixed assets 5,253 10,551
3,412,852 512,233
10,060,995 8,701,141
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions 1,500,000 5,336,584
Advances (85,084,938) (22,233,996)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) (3,375,295) (17,183)
(86,960,233) (16,914,595)
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 4,743,618 2,189,453
Borrowings (18,884,988) (17,674,477)
Deposits 47,827,548 52,996,973
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) 4,246,359 486,725
37,932,537 37,998,674
Cash (used in) / flow from operations (38,966,701) 29,785,220
Payment made to defined benefit plan (730,670) (350,884)
Income tax paid (3,894,037) (3,303,583)
Net cash (used in) / flow from operating activities (43,591,408) 26,130,753
Cash flow from investing activities
Net investments in available for sale securities 51,626,569 (20,160,979)
Net investments in held to maturity securities (5,030,369) (2,747,351)
Sale proceeds of assets held for sale - 551,000
Dividend received 236,639 311,839
Investments in operating fixed assets - net of adjustment (3,334,399) (1,249,674)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 16,104 18,133
Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 186,164 30,336
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 43,700,708 (23,246,696)
Cash flow from financing activities
Receipts / (payments) of subordinated debts - net 5,000,800 (2,000)
Dividend paid (12,203) (3,112,786)
Net cash flow / (used in) financing activities 4,988,597 (3,114,786)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,097,897 (230,729)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 35 48,183,160 48,413,889
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 53,281,057 48,183,160

The annexed notes 1 to 49 and Annexures | and Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf
Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1991 as a Public Limited Company and is listed
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Bank is situated at AWT Plaza, the Mall, Rawalpindi. The Bank
is a scheduled commercial bank and is principally engaged in the business of banking as defined in the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and
Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 percent shares of the Bank as on December 31, 2018. The
ultimate parent of the Bank is Fauji Foundation. The Bank has 516 branches (2017: 516 branches); 515 in Pakistan and Azad
Jammu and Kashmir (including 91 (2017: 91) Islamic Banking branches and 43 (2017: 43) sub-branches) and a Wholesale
Bank Branch (WBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements of format prescribed by
the State Bank of Pakistan’s BPRD Circular No. 2 dated January 25, 2018.

These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Bank in which the investments in
subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost and have not been accounted for on the basis of reported results and net assets
of the investees which is done in consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the SBP
has issued various circulars from time to time. One permissible form of trade related mode of financing comprises of purchase
of goods by the Bank from its customers and resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on a deferred payment basis. The
purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements as such
but are restricted to the amount of facilities actually utilized and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.

The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these unconsolidated financial statements for
reporting purposes, after eliminating material inter-branch transactions / balances. Key figures of the Islamic banking branches
are disclosed in Annexure Il to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Bank operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak. Rupee, which is
the Bank’s functional and presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

— International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

— Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

— Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

— Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by
the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.



SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard
39,”Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40,”Investment
Property” (IAS 40), for banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated April
28, 2008, the International Financial Reporting Standard 7,”Financial Instruments: Disclosures” (IFRS 7), has not been made
applicable for banks. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various
circulars issued by SBP.

The International Financial Reporting Standard 9, “Financial Instruments” (IFRS 9), was notified by the SECP, through SRO
1007(1)/2017 dated October 4, 2017, as applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

During the current year, IFRS 9 became applicable for Wholesale Bank Branch of the Bank. The impact of the adoption of IFRS
9 on the Bank’s financial statements is disclosed in note 4.1 below.

22 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE EFFECTIVE IN THE CURRENT YEAR
EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 2 Share-based payment (Amendments) January 1, 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts January 1,2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration January 1, 2018
23 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS T0 PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
a) Following standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to
be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of their applicability in
Pakistan:
EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendments) July 1, 2009
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
b) Following standards and amendments to published accounting standards will be effective in future periods and have
not been early adopted by the Bank:
EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 1,2019
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments July 1,2018
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2019
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 1,2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1,2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 1,2019
IAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1, 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 1, 2019
IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) January 1,2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1,2019

The management does not anticipate early adoption of above standards and amendments and is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting these standards.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

24 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The Bank uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follow:

i) classification of investments (note 4.5)

ii) provision against investments (note 4.5), advances (note 4.6), fixed assets (note 4.7)
and other assets (note 4.16)

iii) valuation of available for sale securities (note 4.5)

iv) impairment of available for sale securities (note 4.16)

V) useful life of property and equipment, intangible assets and revaluation of land (note 4.7) and
non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (note 4.17)

vi) staff retirement benefits (note 4.12)

vii) taxation (note 4.15)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for certain
investments and compensated absences which are carried at fair value, non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims,
freehold and leasehold land which are shown at revalued amounts and staff retirement gratuity which is carried at present
value of defined benefit obligations net of fair value of plan assets.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these unconsolidated financial statements.

4.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1.1  Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), the Bank has changed its accounting policy for treatment
of deficit on revaluation of fixed assets wherein any decrease in carrying amount of fixed asset as a result of revaluation is
charged to profit and loss account, however the decrease shall be recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of
any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. Previously, any decrease in the carrying amount
of fixed assets was netted off against surplus on revaluation of any other fixed assets. The effect of this change in accounting
policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, is summarized below:

December 31, January 1,

2017 2017

Rupees in ‘000 (Restated) (Restated)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Increase in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of tax 107,658 107,658

Decrease in unappropriated profit 107,658 107,658

4.1.2  As perthe accounting policy of the Bank, provision against investments, balances with other banks, advances, other assets and
off-balance sheet obligations of Wholesale Bank Branch is made as per the requirements of the respective regulatory regimes
in which the branch operates. During the current year, IFRS 9 became applicable for Wholesale Bank Branch of the Bank.
Under this financial reporting standard, provision against investments, balances with other banks, advances, other assets and
off-balance sheet obligations is determined under the expected credit loss model whereas previously, it was determined under
the incurred loss model. Accordingly, in respect of Wholesale Bank Branch, the Bank has changed its accounting policy and has
followed the requirements of IFRS 9 while determining the requirements for recording provision against investments, balances
with other banks, advances, other assets and off-balance sheet obligations.



The adoption of this standard by Wholesale Bank Branch resulted in an additional provision of Rs. 348,202 thousand (net of
deferred tax amounting to Rs. 226,331 thousand) as at December 31, 2018. The amount of additional provision has been
adjusted in the opening retained earnings (General reserve) as allowed under IFRS 9. The impact of change in policy is
summarized as below:

As at
December 31, January 1,
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2018
IMPACT ON STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Balances with other banks 10 24
Investments 166,679 173,151
Advances 181,066 164,947
Other assets 447 149
348,202 338,271
Less: related deferred tax (121,871) (118,395)
226,331 219,876

For the year ended
December 31,2018

IMPACT ON PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
- Profit before tax would have been higher by - Rupees in ‘000 9,931

- Earnings per share would have been higher by - Rupee 0.01

413

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No. 2 of 2018 dated January 25, 2018 has amended the format of
annual financial statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their annual financial statements on the revised format
effective from the accounting year ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Bank has prepared these unconsolidated
financial statements on the new format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan. The adoption of new format required
remeasurement and reclassification of comparative information and accordingly a third unconsolidated statement of financial
position has been presented at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e. January 1, 2017) in accordance with the requirement
of International Accounting Standard 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements. The adoption of revised format has resulted in
following significant changes:

- Acceptances amounting to Rs. 8,735,265 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,976,910 thousand, 2016: Rs. 3,723,390 thousand)
which were previously shown as part of contingencies and commitments are now recognized on balance sheet
both as assets and liabilities. They are included in ‘Other assets’ (note-14) and ‘Other liabilities’ (note-19) to these
unconsolidated financial statements;

- Surplus on revaluation of assets amounting to Rs. 1,649,197 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,142,254 thousand, 2016:
Rs. 7,327,114 thousand) which was previously shown below equity has now been included as part of equity;

- Intangibles (note-11) amounting to Rs. 741,361 thousand (2017: Rs. 842,869 thousand, 2016: Rs. 886,615 thousand)
which were previously show and part of fixed assets (note-10) are now shown separately on the unconsolidated
statement of financial position; and

- Certain reclassifications have been made in the unconsolidated profit and loss account which are summarized below:

For the year ended
December 31,
Reclassification from Reclassification to 2018 2017
account head account head Rupees in ‘000

42

Other income Provisions and write offs - net 142,536 147,129
Other provisions / write offs Provisions and write offs - net 87,006 21,832

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks and call money lendings.
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43 LENDINGS (REVERSE REPD)

Consideration for securities purchased under resale agreement (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions.
The difference between purchase and resale price is recognized as mark-up / return earned on a time proportion basis.
Reverse repo balances are reflected under lending to financial institutions.

44 BAI MUAJJAL RECEIVABLE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

In Bai Muajjal, the Bank sells sukuk on deferred payment basis to other financial institutions. The deferred price is agreed at the
time of sale and such proceeds are received at the end of the credit period. Bai Muajjal balances are reflected under lending
to financial institutions.

45 INVESTMENTS
Investments are classified as follows:
HELD FOR TRADING

These represent securities acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market / interest rate
movements.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE
These represent securities which do not fall under ‘held for trading’ or ‘held to maturity’ categories.
HELD TO MATURITY
These represent securities acquired with the intention and ability to hold them upto maturity.
45.1  INITIAL MEASUREMENT

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognized at trade date, which is the date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the investments
except for money market and foreign exchange contracts, other than ready market transactions, which are recognized at
settlement date.

In case of investments classified as held for trading, transaction costs are expensed through profit and loss account. Transaction
costs associated with investments other than those classified as held for trading are included in the cost of investments.

452  SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
HELD FOR TRADING

These are marked to market and surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of ‘held for trading’ investments is taken to profit and
loss account in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP’s BSD Circular No. 20 dated August 4, 2000 and BPRD Circular No. 6 dated June
26, 2014, available for sale securities for which ready quotations are available on Reuters Page (PKRV) or Stock Exchanges are
valued at market value and the resulting surplus / deficit is taken through “Statement of Comprehensive Income (0Cl)” and is
shown in the shareholders’ equity in the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is calculated
with reference to the net assets of the investee as per the latest audited financial statements. If the break-up value is less
than cost the difference is included in profit and loss account. Unquoted debt securities are valued using the market value of
secondary market where available.

Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses.
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HELD TO MATURITY

These are carried at amortized cost less impairment, determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations
issued by the SBP.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

ADVANCES

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Provision for advances is determined in accordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP from time to time. In addition, a general provision
is maintained for advances other than consumer and small entities advances. General and specific provisions pertaining to
overseas advances are made in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities of the respective countries.

The provisions against non-performing advances are charged to the profit and loss account. Advances are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

ljarahs booked under Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ljarah (IFAS - 2) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any, and are shown under advances.

Depreciation on ljarah assets is charged to profit and loss account by applying the straight line method whereby the depreciable
value of ljarah assets is written off over the ljarah period. The Bank charges depreciation from the date of delivery of respective
assets to Mustajir upto the date of maturity / termination of ljarah agreement.

Leases where the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee are
classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payments including
any guaranteed residual value. Finance lease receivables are included in advances to the customers.

In Murabaha transactions, the Bank purchases the goods after taking the physical / constructive possession, sells the same to
the customer on cost plus profit basis.

In Salam, the seller undertakes to supply specific goods to the Bank at a future date in consideration of a price fully paid in
advance at the time the contract of sale is made.

In Musharaka a relationship is established under a contract by the mutual consent of the Bank and the customer for sharing
of profits and losses arising from a joint enterprise or venture.

Diminishing Musharaka (DM) is a form of co-ownership in which the Bank and the customer share the ownership of a tangible
asset in an agreed proportion and customer undertakes to buy in periodic installments the proportionate share of the Bank
until the title to such tangible asset is completely transferred to the customer.

In Istisna, a contract of sale is made whereby the Bank places an order, to manufacture, assemble or construct, specific
commodity to be delivered at a future date.

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed assets are stated at cost less impairment losses and accumulated depreciation except for freehold / leasehold land. Land
is carried at revalued amounts which is not depreciated. Land is revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value.

Surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of assets account and is shown under the
shareholders’ equity in the unconsolidated statement of financial position. Except to the extent actually realized on disposal of
land which are revalued, the surplus on revaluation of land shall not be applied to set-off or reduce any deficit or loss, whether
past, current or future, or in any manner applied, adjusted or treated so as to add to the income, profit or surplus of the Bank
or utilized directly or indirectly by way of dividend or bonus.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION

Depreciation / amortization is computed on a monthly basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets at the
rates set out in notes 10.2 and 11.1 respectively on a monthly basis. The cost of assets is depreciated / amortized on the
diminishing balance method, except for computer equipment, vehicles, carpets, renovations, other assets and intangibles
which are depreciated / amortized on a straight line basis. Depreciation / amortization is charged for the full month of purchase
/ acquisition / availability for use of an asset while no depreciation / amortization is charged in the month of disposal of an
asset. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account.

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization, the management uses useful life and residual value which reflects
the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The useful life and the residual value are
reviewed at each financial year end and any change in these estimates in future years might effect the carrying amounts of
the respective item of fixed assets with the corresponding effect on depreciation / amortization charge.

48 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and associated liabilities are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable. Assets designated as held for
sale are carried at the lower of carrying amount at designation and fair value less costs to sell, if fair value can reasonably be
determined.

49 BORROWINGS (REP0)

Consideration received against securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are included in borrowings from financial
institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is recognized as mark-up / return expensed on a time proportion
basis.

410  DEPOSITS

Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on deposits is recognized separately as part of
other liabilities and is charged to profit and loss account on a time proportion basis.

The Bank generates deposits in two modes i.e. “Qard” and “Modaraba” under Islamic Banking Operations. Deposits taken on
Qard basis are classified as ‘Current Accounts’ and deposits generated on Modaraba basis are classified as ‘Savings Accounts’
and ‘Fixed Deposit Accounts’.

411 SUBORDINATED DEBTS

Subordinated debts are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on subordinated debts is charged to the
profit and loss account over the period on accrual basis.
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STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. Contributions are made in accordance
with the actuarial recommendation. The actuarial valuation is carried out periodically using “Projected Unit Credit Method”.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal monthly contributions are
made both by the Bank and by the employees at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary of the employee.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Bank provides compensated absences to all its regular employees. Liability for unfunded scheme is recognized on the
basis of actuarial valuation using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision for the year is charged to unconsolidated profit
and loss account. The amount recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of
defined benefit obligations.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Outstanding foreign bills purchased are valued at the rates applicable to the remaining maturities. Exchange
gains and losses are included in unconsolidated profit and loss account currently.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

The assets and liabilities of Wholesale Bank Branch are translated to Pak. Rupee at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
unconsolidated statement of financial position. The results of foreign operations are translated at the average rate of exchange
for the year.

TRANSLATION GAINS AND LOSSES

Translation gains and losses arising on revaluation of net investment in foreign operations are taken to equity under “Exchange
Translation Reserve” through other comprehensive income and on disposal are recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss
account.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the rates applicable to the remaining
maturities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Mark-up / interest on advances and return on investments is recognized on accrual basis except on classified advances and
investments which is recognized on receipt basis. Mark-up / interest on rescheduled / restructured advances and investments
is recognized as permitted by the regulations of the SBP or overseas regulatory authority of the country where branch operates,
except where in the opinion of the management it would not be prudent to do so.

Fees and commission income is recognized at the time of performance of service.

Dividend income is recognized when Bank’s right to receive the income is established.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are included in income currently.
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Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease income
(excess of the sum of the total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased assets) is deferred and
taken to income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net
investment in lease. Repossessed vehicles on account of loan default are recorded in memorandum account.

Unrealized lease income is suspended on classified leases, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations
issued by the SBP. Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts, documentation charges, front-end fees and other lease
income are recognized as income on receipt basis.

Profit on Murabaha sale transaction not due for the payment is deferred by recording a credit to the “Deferred Murabaha
Income” account.

Profits on Musharaka and Diminishing Musharaka financings are recognized on accrual basis. Profit required to be suspended
in compliance with the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP is recorded on receipt basis.

Revenue on Salam finance is recognized at the time of sale of al-muslam fihi (salam goods).
The rentals received / receivable on ljarahs under IFAS-2 are recorded as income / revenue.
The Bank recognizes revenue on Istisna finance at the time of sale of Al-Masnoo (Istisna goods).

4.15  TAXATION

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the unconsolidated
profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or below equity.

CURRENT

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using tax rates applicable at the date of
unconsolidated statement of financial position.

PRIOR YEARS

The tax charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge for prior years, arising from assessments, change in
estimates and retrospectively applied changes to law, made during the year.

DEFERRED

Deferred tax is provided for by using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position.
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available and
credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Deferred tax, on revaluation of investments, if any, is recognized as an adjustment to surplus / deficit arising on such revaluation.

416 IMPAIRMENT
AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The Bank determines that available for sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of these investments below their cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
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judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price in case of
listed securities. Impairment loss on available for sale debt securities is determined in accordance with the requirements of
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amount of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at the reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the unconsolidated profit and loss account. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. These
assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that their net carrying value does not
differ materially from their fair value. Surplus arising on revaluation of such properties is credited to the ‘surplus on revaluation
of non-banking assets’ account and any deficit arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees,
transfer costs and direct costs of acquiring title to property are charged to profit and loss account and are not capitalized.

OTHER PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amounts can be made. Provision for guarantee claims and other off-balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated
and reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer accounts.
Charge to unconsolidated profit and loss account is stated net-off expected recoveries.

OFF-SETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only set-off and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Bank intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provision
of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires
or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specific in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and financial liability
is recognized in the profit and loss account of the current period. The particular recognition and subsequent measurement
methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with them.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account.

APPROPRIATIONS SUBSEQUENT TO DATE OF UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Appropriations subsequent to year end are recognized during the year in which those appropriations are made.
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423  DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION AND APPROPRIATION

Dividends and appropriations (except for the appropriations required by law), made subsequent to the date of statement of
financial position are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the year in which these are approved / transfers
are made.

424  EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

425  SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing products or services (business segment)
or in providing product or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Bank’s primary format of reporting is based on business
segments.

4.25.1 BUSINESS SEGMENT
BRANCH BANKING
This segment consists of loans, deposits and other banking services to commercial, SME, agriculture and individual customers,
including branchless banking services.
CORPORATE BANKING

Corporate banking includes project financing, trade financing and working capital to corporate customers. This segment is
also involved in investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisition, underwriting, privatization, securitization, IPQ’s
related activities and secondary private placements.

TREASURY

Treasury function is mainly engaged in money market activities, foreign exchange business and short term lendings and
borrowings from counter-parties.

CONSUMER BANKING

Consumer banking segment provides both secured and unsecured loans to retail customers.

ISLAMIC BANKING

This segment provides banking services to its customers in compliance with Shariah rules and directives, instructions and
guidelines issued by SBP.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Foreign operations consist of banking activities performed by Wholesale Bank Branch of the Bank.

HEAD OFFICE / OTHERS

This consists of activities not performed by any of above segments.

4.25.2 GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Bank operates in two geographic regions; Pakistan and the Middle East.



Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

IN HAND
Local currency 10,368,791 9,348,230
Foreign currencies 1,935,969 1,646,801
12,304,760 10,995,031
WITH THE STATE BANK OF PAKISTAN IN
Local currency current accounts 5.1 24,210,710 22,009,777
Foreign currency current account 5.1 2,829,226 2,781,713
Foreign currency deposit account 5.2 7,946,957 6,998,986
34,986,893 31,790,476
WITH NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN IN
Local currency current accounts 1,883,326 1,442,060
Prize bonds 12,666 11,758
49,187,645 44,239,325

5.1 These represent current accounts maintained with the SBP to comply with the statutory cash reserve requirements.

5.2 This represents special cash reserve maintained with the SBP and carries mark-up at the rate of 1.50% (2017: 0.56%) per
annum.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

IN PAKISTAN

In current accounts 354,396 337,755
In deposit accounts 6.1 291 1,000,152
354,687 1,337,907

OUTSIDE PAKISTAN
In current accounts 1,047,160 852,324
In deposit accounts 6.2 2,691,565 1,003,604
3,738,725 1,855,928
Provision held against balances with other banks 6.3 (10) -
4,093,402 3,193,835

6.1 These represent placements with local banks, carrying interest rate of 8.0% (2017: 2.0% to 5.8%) per annum.

6.2 These represent placements with international correspondent banks, carrying interest rates upto 1.78% (2017: upto 2.04%)
per annum.
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

6.3 PROVISION HELD AGAINST BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

Opening balance - _

Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 6.4 24 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 24 -
Reversal of provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 6.4 (14) -
Closing balance 10 -

6.4 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
41.2.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

1 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call / clean money lendings — 750,000
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - 1,500,000
Purchase under resale arrangement of equity securities 148,606 148,606

148,606 2,398,606
Provision held against lending to financial institutions (148,606) (148,606)
Lending to financial institutions - net of provision - 2,250,000

11 PARTICULARS OF LENDING
In local currency 148,606 2,398,606

12 SECURITIES HELD AS COLLATERAL AGAINST LENDING TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2018 2017
Further Further
Held by given as Held by given as
Rupees in ‘000 the Bank collateral Total the Bank collateral Total
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
= = - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
13 CATEGORY OF CLASSIFICATION
2018 2017
Classified Provision Classified Provision
Rupees in ‘000 lending held lending held
Domestic
Loss 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606




8. INVESTMENTS
2018 2017
Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying
Rupees in ‘000 amortized cost diminution (deficit) value amortized cost diminution (deficit) value
8.1 INVESTMENTS BY TYPE:
Available for sale securities
Federal Government Securities 244,060,807 (41,600)| | (6,125,979)| | 237,893,228 | | 295,321,140 - 1,503,492 | | 296,824,632
Shares 5,898,588 (1,437,160) (153,307) 4,308,121 4,546,848 (120,680) | | (1,022,869) 3,403,299
Units of open end mutual funds 1,032,012 (2,376) (58,190) 971,446 1,600,876 - 51,259 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 21,314 (7,139) 39,570 59,745 21314 (2,214) 41,620 66,720
Non Government Debt Securities 6,957,717 (1,540,848) (480) 5,416,389 8,300,057 (1,809,385) 21418 6,518,090
Foreign securities 421,818 (2,659) (5,496) 413,663 228,590 - (164) 228,426
258,398,256 (3,031,782)  (6,303,882) 249,062,592 310,024,825 (1,932,279 600,756 308,693,302
Held to maturity securities
Federal Government Securities 11,203,815 (122,420) - || 11,171,3% 6,263,446 - - 6,263,446
Non Government Debt Securities 110,000 (110,000) - - 110,000 (110,000) - -
11,403,815 (232,420) - 11,171,3% 6,373,446 (110,000) - 6,263,446
Total investments 269,802,071 (3264202 (6,303,882 260,233,987 316,398,271 (2,042,279 600,756 314,956,748
2018 2017
Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying
Rupees in ‘000 amortized cost diminution (deficit) value amortized cost diminution (deficit) value
82 INVESTMENTS BY SEGMENTS:
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills 124,708,053 = (10,339) | | 124,697,714 | | 129,957,532 - (632) | | 129,956,900
Pakistan Investment Bonds 105,470,628 = (6,430,011) | 99,040,617 | | 154,200,275 - 1,514,588 | | 155,714,863
Euro Bonds 4,806,143 (67,251) (10,724) 4,728,168 3,597,884 - (1,624) 3,596,260
ljarah Sukuks 20,369,798 (96,769) 325,095 | | 20,598,124 | | 13,828,895 - (8,841) | | 13,820,054
255,354,622 (164,020 (6,125979) 249,064,623 301,584,586 - 1,503,491 303,088,077
Shares
Listed companies 5,592,908 (1,431,480) (153,307) 4,008,121 4,522,808 (115,000) | | (1,022,368) 3,384,940
Unlisted companies 305,680 (5,680) = 300,000 24,040 (5,680) - 18,360
5,898,588 (1,437,160) (153,307) 4,308,121 4,546,848 (120,680)  (1,022,868) 3,403,300
Units of open end mutual funds 1,032,012 (2,376) (58,190) 971,446 1,600,876 - 51,259 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 21,314 (7,139) 39,570 59,745 21,314 (2,214 41,620 66,720
Non Government Debt Securities
Listed 1,433,411 (226,836) 3,706 1,210,281 1,700,205 (822,184) 26,500 904,521
Unlisted 5,634,306 (1,424012) (4,186) 4,206,108 6,709,852 (1,097,201) 918 5,613,569
7,067,717 (1,650,848) (480) 5,416,389 8,410,057 (1,919,385) 27418 6,518,090
Foreign Securities
Government securities 421,818 (2,659) (5,496) 413,663 228,590 - (164) 228,426
Total investments 269,802,071 (3,264202) (6,303,882 260,233,987 316,398,271 (2,042,279 600,756 314,956,748
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

8.2.1  INVESTMENTS GIVEN AS COLLATERAL

Market Treasury Bills 12,793,905 28,799,131
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 17,759,424
Euro Bonds 3,381,368 1,706,222
Bahrain International Bonds 144,747 -
Srilankan Investment Bonds 277,070 -
ljarah Sukuks 8,369,037 1,054,208

24,966,127 49,318,985

83 PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

8.3.1  Opening balance 2,042,279 1,933,928
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 8.3.1.1 173,151 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 2,215,430 1,933,928
Charge / (reversals)

Charge for the year 1,331,427 171,110
Reversal of provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 8.3.1.1 (6,472) -
Reversals for the year (268,539) (62,759)
Reversal on disposals (7,644) -
1,048,772 108,351
Closing balance 3,264,202 2,042,279

8.3.1.1 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
41.2.

8.3.2  PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST DEBT SECURITIES

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 NPL Provision NPL Provision
CATEGORY OF CLASSIFICATION
Domestic
Loss 1,650,848 1,817,527 1,919,385 1,919,385
Total 1,650,848 1,817,527 1,919,385 1,919,385




84 QUALITY OF AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

Details regarding quality of available for sale securities are as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - GOVERNMENT GUARANTEED
Market Treasury Bills 124,708,053 129,957,532
Pakistan Investment Bonds 105,023,310 154,200,275
Euro Bonds 1,049,793 573,033
ljarah Sukuks 13,279,651 10,590,300
244,060,807 295,321,140
SHARES
Listed Companies
Commercial banks 978,868 1,045,847
Chemicals 381,695 408,066
Fertilizer 382,188 307,471
Cement 660,776 461,571
Power generation and distribution 971,289 807,465
Investment banks / investment companies 12,956 12,956
Leasing companies 38,162 38,162
Paper and board 154,515 154,515
Glass and ceramics 80,915 80,915
Automobile parts and accessories 80,176 38,583
Cable and electrical goods 73,304 73,304
Automobile assembler 57,046 57,046
Engineering 194,793 76,213
Insurance 96,133 96,133
0il and gas marketing companies 455,040 238,592
Refinery 99,065 -
0Oil and gas exploration - 22,757
Textile composite 140,610 35,840
Pharmaceuticals 114,383 114,383
Real estate investment trust 580,242 421,305
Technology and communication 31,684 31,684
Vanaspati and allied industries 9,068 -
5,592,908 4,522,808
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Breakup value Cost Breakup value
UNLISTED COMPANIES
DHA Cogen Limited = = - -
Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee Agency Limited 5,680 - 5,680 -
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited 300,000 = 18,360 -
305,680 - 24,040 -
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2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Breakup value Cost Breakup value
UNITS OF OPEN END MUTUAL FUNDS
Unlisted Companies
NIT NIUT 500,000 444 531 500,000 494,882
NIT Islamic Equity Fund 50,000 41,621 50,000 49,976
Askari Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 53,226 50,868 53,226 56,381
Askari Asset Allocation Fund 100,846 101,668 100,846 110,429
Askari Equity Fund 53,988 45,691 53,988 52,978
Askari Islamic Income Fund 387 430 150,000 165,461
Askari High Yield Scheme 173,565 183,624 592,816 617,990
Askari Sovereign Yield Enhancer Fund 100,000 105,389 100,000 104,038
1,032,012 973,822 1,600,876 1,652,135
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost
FULLY PAID PREFERENCE SHARES
Listed Companies
Banks 2,214 2,214
Textile 25,100 25,100
27,314 27,314
NON GOVERNMENT DEBT SECURITIES
Listed
AAA 235,575 235,670
AA+, AA, AA- 771,000 1,017,128
A+, A, A- 200,000 -
CCC and below 226,836 447,407
1,433,411 1,700,205
Unlisted
AAA 2,604,170 2,669,170
AA+, AA, AA- 249,950 500,000
A+, A, A- 700,000 600,000
CCC and below 795,129 1,361,981
Unrated 1,175,057 1,468,701
5,524,306 6,599,852
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Rating Cost Rating
FOREIGN SECURITIES
Government Securities
Bahrain 144,748 B+ 116,297 B+
Sri Lanka 277,070 B 112,293 B+
421,818 228,590




2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost

85 PARTICULARS RELATING TO HELD TO MATURITY SECURITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS:
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - GOVERNMENT GUARANTEED

Pakistan Investment Bonds 447,318 -
Government of Pakistan Euro Bonds 3,756,350 3,024,851
ljarah Sukuks 6,059,093 3,238,595
GOP Bai Muajjal 1,031,054 -

11,293,815 6,263,446

NON GOVERNMENT DEBT SECURITIES

Listed
CCC and below 110,000 110,000

85.1  Market value of held to maturity securities other than classified investments as at December 31, 2018 is Rs. 11,029,123
thousand (2017: Rs. 6,342,916 thousand).

9. ADVANCES
Performing Non performing Total

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Loans, cash credits, running finances, efc. - note 9.1 279,232,463 213,846,455 26,166,223 26,260,410 305,398,686 240,106,865
Islamic financing and related assets - note 3 of Annexure 46,583,103 34,318,955 435,096 436,842 47,018,199 34,755,797
Bills discounted and purchased 16,786,319 9,421,233 55,767 55,775 16,842,086 9,477,008
Advances - gross 342,601,885 257,586,643 26,657,086 26,753,027 369,258,971 284,339,670

Provision against advances
- Specific - - (25,113,169)| | (24,962,069)| | (25,113,169) (24,962,069)
- General (1,038,655) (684,515) - - (1,038,655) (684,515)
(1,038,655) (684,515)  (25,113169)  (24,962,069)  (26,151,824) (25,646,584)
Advances - net of provision 341,563,230 256,902,128 1,543,917 1,790,958 343,107,147 258,693,086

9.1 INCLUDES NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE AS DISCLOSED BELOW:

2018 2017
Later than later than
Non later  one and less Over five Non later  one and less Over five
Rupees in ‘000 than one year  than five year years Total  thanoneyear than five year years Total
Lease rentals receivable 3,090,048 3,165,598 8,224 6,263,870 2,946,733 3,440,986 26,830 6,414,549
Residual value 872,487 2,071,589 27,690 2,971,766 685,688 2,150,963 75,022 2,911,673
Minimum lease payments 3,962,535 5,237,187 35,914 9,235,636 3,632,421 5,591,949 101,852 9,326,222
Financial charges for future periods (364,904) (301,495) (375) (666,774) (339,257) (333,782) (1,153) (674,192)

Present value of minimum lease payments 3,597,631 4,935,692 35,539 8,568,862 3,293,164 5,258,167 100,699 8,652,030
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Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

9.2 PARTICULARS OF ADVANCES (GROSS)

In local currency 347,815,947 269,949,664
In foreign currencies 21,443,024 14,390,006
369,258,971 284,339,670

9.3 Advances include Rs. 26,657,086 thousand (2017: Rs. 26,753,027 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing
status as detailed below:

2018 2017
Non—performing Provision Non—performing Provision
Rupees in ‘000 loans loans
CATEGORY OF CLASSIFICATION
Domestic
Other Assets Especially Mentioned - note 9.3.1 90,038 1,883 137,409 -
Substandard 286,591 23,421 118,878 15,600
Doubtful 429,231 187,411 701,369 280,067
Loss 25,851,226 24,900,454 25,795,371 24,666,402

26,657,086 25,113,169 26,753,027 24,962,069

9.3.1  This represents classification for Agricultural, Mortgage and Small Entities finances.

94 PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST ADVANCES

2018 2017

Consumer Consumer

financing financing
Rupees in ‘000 Note Specific General - General Total Specific General - General Total
Opening balance 24,962,069 236,940 447575 25,646,584 26,353,791 236,944 368,599 26,959,334
Provision under IFRS 9 related toWBB ~ 9.4.1 - 164,947 - 164,947 - - - -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 24,962,069 401,887 447575 25,811,531 26,353,791 236,944 368,599 26,959,334
Charge for the year 2,413,023 81,302 102,568 || 2,596,893 891,105 37,450 90,267 || 1,018,822
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB ~ 9.4.1 - 16,119 - 16,119 - - - -
Reversals for the year (2,134,869) (879 (9,917)|| (2,145,665)| | (2,159,610) (37,454) (11,291)|| (2,208,355)
278,154 96,542 92,651 467,347 (1,268,505) @) 78976  (1,189,533)
Amounts written off 95 - - - - - - - -
Amounts charged off - agriculture financing 9.6 (127,054) = - (127,054 (123,217) - - (123217)
Closing balance 25,113,169 498,429 540,226 26,151,824 24,962,069 236,940 447575 25,646,584

94.1  This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
4.1.2.
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PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST ADVANCES

2018 2017
Consumer Consumer
financing financing
Rupees in ‘000 Specific General - General Total Specific General - General Total
In local currency 24,748,225 317,363 540,226 25,605,814 24,414,467 236,940 447575 25,098,982
In foreign currencies 364,944 181,066 - 546,010 547,602 - - 547,602

25,113,169 498,429 540,226 26,151,824 24,962,069 236,940 447,575 25,646,584

943 The net FSV benefit already availed has been reduced by Rs. 187,900 thousand, which has resulted in increased charge
for specific provision for the year by the same amount. Had the FSV benefit not reduced, before and after tax profit for the
year would have been higher by Rs. 187,900 thousand (2017: Rs. 295,191 thousand) and Rs. 122,135 thousand (2017: Rs.
191,874 thousand) respectively. Further, at December 31, 2018, cumulative net of tax benefit availed for Forced Sale Value
(FSV) was Rs. 598,068 thousand (December 31, 2017: Rs. 720,203 thousand) under BSD Circular No. 1 of 2011 dated October
21,2011. Reserves and unappropriated profit to that extent are not available for distribution by way of cash or stock dividend.

944 The Bank has availed the relaxation of Rs. 102,460 thousand (2017: Rs. 102,460 thousand) allowed by the SBP for maintaining
provisions as per time based criteria of Prudential Regulations.

9.5 DETAILS OF LOANS WRITTEN OFF - Rs. 500,000 AND ABOVE
In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in respect of written
off loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended
December 31, 2018 is given in Annexure I.

96 AMOUNTS CHARGED OFF - AGRICULTURE FINANCING
This represents agriculture loans charged off as per time based criteria prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan in Annexure
Il of Regulation R - 11 of Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

10. FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 10.1 53,738 121,294
Property and equipment 10.2 12,738,089 9,764,664

12,791,827 9,885,958

10.1  This represents advances to suppliers and contractors.
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102 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2018
Land- Land- Buildings on Buildingson Renovation  Fumiture ~ Carpets ~ Machine ~ Computer  Vehicles Other  Operating Total
freghold- leasehold-  freehold leasehold of and office and  equipment assets  lease-
Rupees in ‘000 note 103 note 10.3 [and land  premises equipment equipment vehicles
ASATJANUARY 1, 2018
Cost / revalued amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 966,160 3541624 1283421 50,395 3,083,133 2789319 201,400 45761 1,834 17,640,025
Accumulated depreciation - - 396072 302423 2445248 480126 30,110 1673358 2266753 144230 45207 1,834 7,875,361
Net book value 2909012 1,880,715 491,179 573737 1,096376 803295 20285 1409775 522566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Opening net book value 2909012 1,880,715 491,179 573737 1,096,376 803295 20285 1,409,775 522,566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
Additions - 2,585,004 - - 225257 102600 10002 266416 105387 13,061 - - 3307111
Movement in surplus on assets
revalued during the year 317,051 392,396 - - - - - - - - - - 709447
Disposals - - - - (7190) (6,269 (790)  (7,089) - (20) - - (21350
Depreciation charge - - (24002 (28039) (378407)  (82080)  (8781) (290,064) (186907) (24,421 (133) - (1,022,834)
Other adjustments / transfers - - - - 28 (305) 326 (68) 437 (26) - - 39
Closing net book value 3226063 4858175 467177 545698 936,084 817242 21,042 1378970 441483 45754 a2 - 12,738,089
AS AT DECENBER 31, 2018
Cost / revalued amount 3206063 4858175 887,251 966,160 3,693,653 1,366,715 52,558 32303655 2870807 206,147 45761 1,834 21,478,779
Accumulated depreciation - - 40074 420462 2757589 549473 31516 1924685 2429324 160,393 45340 1,834 8,740,690
Net book value 3206063 4858175 467177 545698 936,064 817242 21,042 1378970 441483 45754 vl - 12,738,089
RATE OF DEPRECIATION (PERCENTAGE) - - 5 5 2 10 2 20 2 2 2 2
17
Land- Land- Buildings on Buildingson Renovation ~ Furniture ~ Carpets ~ Machine  Computer  Vehicles Other ~ Operating Total
freghold- leasehold-  freehold  leasehold of and office and  equipment assets lease -
Rupees in 000 note 10.3  note 10.3 land land  premises equipment equipment vehicles
ASATJANUARY 1, 2017
Cost / revalued amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 901,110 3190332 1100889 51,488 2710384 2,656,190 202366 4519 1,834 16,536,767
Accumulated depreciation - - 371,265 363216 2153660 411,532 30,408 1454163 1730087 123830 45103 1,834 6,685,098
Net book value 2909012 1880715 515986 537,894 1,036,672 689357 21,080 1,256,221 926,103 78,536 %3 - 9,851,669
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Opening net book value 2909012 1,880,715 515986 537,894 1,036,672 689357 21,080 1256221 926,103 78,536 93 - 9,851,669
Additions - - - 65050 393887 194869 7996 437816 158,007 2,700 565 - 1,260,980
Movement in surplus on assets
revalued during the year - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - (9105 (6937 (1,148 (10,746 (748) - - - (28684)
Depreciation charge - - (4807) (29207) (324378  (76,103)  (7,764) (276974) (563,032)  (24,066) (104) - (1,326435)
Other adjustments / transfers - - - - (700) 2,109 121 3458 2,146 - - - 7,134
Closing net book value 2909012 1,880,715 491,179 573737 1,096,376 803295 20285 1,409,775 522,566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2017
Cost / revalued amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 966,160 3541624 1283421 50395 3083133 2789319 201,400 45761 1,834 17,640,025
Accumulated depreciation - - 396072 392423 2445248 480,126 30,110 1,673358 2,266,753 144230 45207 1,834 7,875,361
Net book value 2909012 1880715 491,179 573737 1096376 803295 20,285 1409775 522566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
RATE OF DEPRECIATION (PERGENTAGE) - - 5 5 20 10 2 20 2 2 20 20
Land- Land- Buildings on Buildingson Renovation ~ Furniture ~ Carpets ~ Machine ~ Computer  Vehicles Other ~ Operating Total
freehold- leasehold-  freehold leasehold of  and office and  equipment assets  lease -
Rupees in ‘000 note 103 note 10.3 [and land  premises  equipment equipment vehicles
1021 Cost of fully depreciated
property and equipment
2018 - - - - 174528 1974 11757 26094 1955689 78718 45100 1,834 3,866,408
217 - - - - 1720433 2,198 9,980 8375 1927367 79555 45100 1,834 3,794,842




103  The Bank’s freehold and leasehold land was revalued by the valuers approved by the Pakistan Banks’ Association on December
31, 2018 on the basis of their professional assessment of present market value. The amount of revaluation surplus after
valuation of land is Rs. 3,649,575 thousand. The information relating to location of revalued land is as follows:

Revalued
Amount
City Rupees in ‘000 Name of Valuers
Karachi 1,086,577 K.G. Traders (Pvt) Limited
Lahore 1,758,663 -do-
Islamabad 2,994,840 -do-
Rawalpindi 1,663,520 -do-
Peshawar 21,613 -do-
Quetta 559,025 -do-
8,084,238

104  Had the land not been revalued, the carrying amount of land as at December 31, 2018 would have been Rs. 4,542,321
thousand.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software 704,885 827,931

Less: Provision against intangibles (24,404) (24,404)
680,481 803,527

Capital work in progress 60,880 39,342
741,361 842,869

11.1  SOFTWARE

AS AT JANUARY 1,
Cost 2,070,599 1,968,448
Accumulated amortization 1,242,668 1,046,236
Net book value 827,931 922,212
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
Opening net book value 827,931 922,212
Additions

- directly purchased 72,248 102,195
Amortization charge (195,294) (196,476)
Closing net book value 704,885 827,931
AS AT DECEMBER 31,
Cost 2,142,847 2,070,599
Accumulated amortization 1,437,962 1,242,668
Net book value 704,885 827,931
RATE OF AMORTIZATION (PERCENTAGE) 10 10
USEFUL LIFE 10 years 10 years

11.1.1  Cost of fully amortized intangible assets still in use amounts to Rs. 139,831 thousand (2017: Rs. 75,927 thousand).
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12. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The Bank has only one subsidiary company namely Askari Securities Limited (ASL) representing 74% shareholding (17,020,000
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each) which is classified as held for sale as at December 31, 2018.

Rupees in ‘000 Cost Provision Held Carrying Value
2018 114,789 34,069 80,720
2017 114,789 34,069 80,720
2018
At January 1, Recognized in Recognized in At December 31,
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 P&L A/C ocl 2018

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible temporary differences on

- Post retirement employee benefits 165,267 - (1,667) 163,600
- Deficit on revaluation of investments - - 2,206,359 2,206,359
- Impact under IFRS 9 related to WBB 13.1 - 3,476 458 3,934
- Provision against advances, off-balance sheet 521,455 1,046,552 - 1,568,007

686,722 1,050,028 2,205,150 3,941,900
- Impact under IFRS 9 related to WBB 13.1 - - - 117,937

686,722 1,050,028 2,205,150 4,059,837
Taxable temporary differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of investments (210,265) - 210,265 -
- Accelerated tax depreciation (375,702) 89,644 - (286,058)
(585,967) 89,644 210,265 (286,058)

100,755 1,139,672 2,415,415 3,773,779

2017
At January 1, Recognized in Recognized in At December 31,
Rupees in ‘000 2017 P&LA/C 0cl 2017

Deductible temporary differences on
- Post retirement employee benefits 103,884 - 61,383 165,267
- Provision against advances, off-balance sheet 1,398,680 (877,225) - 521,455
1,502,564 (877,225) 61,383 686,722

Taxable temporary differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of investments (1,491,068) - 1,280,803 (210,265)
- Accelerated tax depreciation (537,926) 162,224 - (375,702)
(2,028,994) 162,224 1,280,803 (585,967)
(526,430) (715,001) 1,342,186 100,755

13.1  This represents deferred tax impact consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described
in note 4.1.2.



2018 2017

Rupees in ‘000 Note (Restated)
14. OTHER ASSETS
Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision 141 9,793,092 9,276,297
Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 477,756 323,568
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 1,321,871 1,343,586
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 5,918,572 5,612,384
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.3 3,201,319 3,189,936
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts - net 607,925 732,738
Suspense account 48,637 47,159
Stationary and stamps in hand 105,007 60,258
Dividend receivable 14.2 1,139 6,466
Acceptances 8,735,265 5,976,910
Others 472,257 339,727
30,682,840 26,909,029
Provision held against other assets 14.4 (257,811) (272,565)
Other assets - net of provision 30,425,029 26,636,464
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims 2,097,145 1,811,635
Other assets - total 32,522,174 28,448,099
141 This balance is net of interest in suspense amounting to Rs. 10,057,089 thousand (2017: Rs. 10,903,151 thousand).
142  This balance is net of dividend in suspense amounting to Rs. 81,020 thousand (2017: Rs. 81,020 thousand).
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
143 Market value of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 5,298,464 5,001,571

The Bank’s non-banking assets were revalued by the valuers approved by the Pakistan Banks’ Association on December 31,
2018 on the basis of their professional assessment of present market value. The amount of revaluation surplus after valuation
of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is Rs. 2,104,333 thousand. The information relating to location of
revalued non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is as follows:

Revalued
Amount
City Rupees in ‘000 Name of Valuers
Karachi 428,198 K.G. Traders (Pvt) Limited
Lahore 717,316 -do-
Islamabad 3,209,644 -do-
Faisalabad 540,723 -do-
Quetta 396,708 -do-
Sheikhupura 413,447 -do-
5,706,036
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

14.3.1  NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Opening balance 5,001,571 4,938,757
Additions 550,224 -
Revaluation 452,228 203,599
Disposals (629,580) (54,924)
Adjustments (16,907) (53,989)
Depreciation (99,072) (31,872)
Closing balance 5,298,464 5,001,571

14.3.2  GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Disposal proceeds 845,207 59,247
Less

- Carrying value (629,580) (54,924)

- Depreciation 11,165 -

(618,415) (54,924)

Gain 226,792 4,323

144 PROVISION HELD AGAINST OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - 506
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 142,470 148,695
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 15,952 15,952
Suspense account 34,408 34,308
Dividend receivable - 3,407
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 14.41.1 447 -
Others 64,534 69,697

257,811 272,565

1441 MOVEMENT IN PROVISION HELD AGAINST OTHER ASSETS

Opening balance 272,565 242,040
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 14.4.1.1 149 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 272,714 242,040
Charge for the year 230 36,571
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 14.41.1 298 -
Reversals for the year (15,431) (3,546)
Amount written off - (2,500)
(14,903) 30,525
Closing balance 257,811 272,565

14.4.1.1 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
41.2.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

15. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 15,512,880 10,769,262




Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

16. BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan under:
Export refinance scheme 16.1.1 12,455,680 12,029,461
Long term financing facility 16.1.2 6,281,267 4,673,546
Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 16.1.3 5,833 9,167
Renewable energy financing facility 16.1.4 224,077 126,427
18,966,857 16,838,601
Repurchase agreement borrowings
State Bank of Pakistan 16.1.5 - 40,522,945
Financial institutions 16.1.6 20,766,755 8,622,609
20,766,755 49,145,554
Refinance from Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 16.1.7 1,000,000 -
Total secured 40,733,612 65,984,155
Unsecured
Call borrowings 16.1.8 10,851,663 5,599,688
Overdrawn nostro accounts 1,117,048 3,468
Total unsecured 11,968,711 5,603,156
52,702,323 71,587,311
16.1.1  This facility is secured against demand promissory note executed in favour of the SBP. The effective mark-up rate is 1% to 3%
(2017: 1% to 2%) per annum payable on a quarterly basis.
16.12  This facility is secured against demand promissory note executed in favour of the SBP. The effective mark-up rate is 2.0% to
8.4% (2017: 2.0% to 8.4%) per annum payable on a quarterly basis.
16.1.3  These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry mark-up of 3.25% (2017: 3.25%) per annum and have
maturities upto 2020.
16.14 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry mark-up of 2% (2017: 2%) per annum and have
maturities upto 2027.
16.15 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry mark-up of NIL (2017: 5.81% to 5.85%) per annum and
have maturities upto NIL (2017: 1 month).
16.1.6  These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry mark-up of 3.40% to 10.35% (2017: 2.55% to 5.85%)
per annum and have maturities upto 1 month (2017: 6 months).
16.1.7 This is secured against mortgage finance portfolio of the Bank and carry mark-up of 10.71% per annum and has maturity upto
2021.
16.18 These carry mark-up of 1.35% to 9.55% (2017: 2.50% to 5.85%) per annum and having maturity upto 6 months (2017: 7

months).
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Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

162 PARTICULARS OF BORROWINGS WITH RESPECT TO CURRENCIES

In local currency 40,876,145 65,123,725
In foreign currencies 11,826,178 6,463,586
52,702,323 71,587,311

17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2018 2017
In local In foreign Total In local In foreign Total
Rupees in ‘000 currency currencies currency currencies
CUSTOMERS
Current accounts - non-remunerative 146,665,829 16,404,508 | | 163,070,337 | | 129,425,106 14,256,608 | | 143,681,714
Current accounts - remunerative 589,527 = 589,527 751,535 - 751,535
Savings deposits 284,295,933 30,842,212 | | 315,138,145 | | 263,396,417 28,131,518 | | 291,527,935
Fixed deposits 80,061,600 5,961,134 86,022,734 76,680,258 4,854,849 81,535,107
Special exporters’ account - 236,081 236,081 - 150,636 150,636
Margin accounts 3,623,587 7,676 3,631,263 3,509,049 5,698 3,514,747
Others 1,218,199 = 1,218,199 1,163,372 - 1,163,372
516,454,675 53,451,611 569,906,286 474,925,737 47,399,309 522,325,046
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Current accounts - non-remunerative 840,366 - 840,366 665,983 - 665,983
Savings deposits 1,451,157 - 1,451,157 1,386,279 - 1,386,279
Fixed deposits 1,438,047 - 1,438,047 1,431,000 - 1,431,000
3,729,570 - 3,729,570 3,483,262 - 3,483,262
520,184,245 53,451,611 573,635,856 478,408,999 47,399,309 525,808,308
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

17.1  COMPOSITION OF DEPOSITS

- Individuals 225,474,253 202,145,869
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 187,851,067 168,770,000
- Public sector entities 41,581,294 40,344,475
- Banking companies 107 125
- Non-banking financial institutions 3,729,463 3,483,137
- Private sector 114,999,672 111,064,702

573,635,856 525,808,308

172 Total deposits include eligible deposits of Rs. 259,578,178 thousand (2017: Rs. 237,700,985 thousand) as required by the
Deposit Protection Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 dated June 22, 2018.



Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
18. SUBORDINATED DEBTS
Term Finance Certificates - IV - 997,600
Term Finance Certificates - V 3,993,600 3,995,200
Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1) 6,000,000 -
9,993,600 4,992,800
18.1  The Bank has raised unsecured subordinated loans through issuance of Term Finance Certificates to improve the Bank’s

capital adequacy. Liability to the TFC holders is subordinated to and rank inferior to all other indebtedness of the Bank
including deposits and is not redeemable before maturity without prior approval of the SBP. The salient features of outstanding

issues are as follows:

Term Finance Certificates - V

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1)

Outstanding amount -
Rupees in ‘000

3,993,600

6,000,000

Issue amount

Issue date

Maturity date

Rating

Security

Listing

Profit payment frequency

Redemption

Profit rate

Call option

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorption clause

Rupees 4,000 million
September 30, 2014
September 29, 2024
AA_

Unsecured

Unlisted

Payable six monthly

6 - 108th month: 0.36%
109 - 120th month: 99.64%

Base rate plus 1.20%

Base rate is the simple average of the ask
rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the base
rate setting date.

Exercisable after 60 months from the date of
issue subject to approval by the SBP.

NIL

NIL

Rupees 6,000 million
July 3,2018
Perpetual

AA_

Unsecured

Unlisted

Payable six monthly

Perpetual

Base rate plus 1.50%

Base rate is the simple average of the ask
rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the base
rate setting date.

Exercisable after 60 months from the date of
issue subject to approval by the SBP.

Payment of profit will be subject to the condition that
such payment will not result in breach of the Bank’s
regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement or Capital
Adequacy Ratio set by SBP from time to time. Any
inability to exercise lock-in-clause or the non-
cumulative features will subject these TFCs to
mandatory conversion into common shares / write
off at the discretion of SBP.

The instrument will be subject to loss absorption if
Bank’s Common Equity Tier (CET-1) ratio falls to or
below 6.625% of Risk Weighted Assets or at the
option of SBP.
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 3,167,365 2,601,197
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 166,309 139,760
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 558,086 255,495
Accrued expenses 1,125,210 935,879
Advance payments 439,176 389,031
Acceptances 8,735,265 5,976,910
Dividends payable 127,053 139,256
Branch adjustment account 310,170 285,884
Payable to defined benefit plan 52,851 489,526
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 191 108,025 6,116
Security deposit against lease / ljarah financing 4,473,848 4,156,902
Withholding taxes payable 134,361 84,679
Federal excise duty payable 68,562 48,507
Workers’” Welfare Fund 30 130,000 670,060
Switch fee payable 747,778 393,394
Others 834,417 525,627

21,178,476 17,098,223

19.1  PROVISION AGAINST OFF-BALANCE SHEET OBLIGATIONS

Opening balance 6,116 6,116
Charge for the year 101,909 -
Closing balance 108,025 6,116

20.  SHARE CAPITAL
20.1  AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of shares Rupees in ‘000
2,000,000,000 1,600,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 20,000,000 16,000,000

202  Pursuant to approval of shareholders in the 26th Annual General Meeting, the Bank’s authorized share capital has been
increased to Rs. 20,000,000 thousand from Rs. 16,000,000 thousand divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

20.3  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017

Number of shares Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each: Rupees in ‘000
514,689,096 514,689,096 Fully paid in cash 5,146,891 5,146,891
717,297,769 717,297,769 Issued as bonus shares 7,172,978 7,172,978
28,273,315 28,273,315 Issued on Askari Leasing Limited merger 282,733 282,733
1,260,260,180 1,260,260,180 12,602,602 12,602,602

204  The Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 percent of ordinary shares of the Bank as on December 31, 2018.



Rupees in ‘000

2018

2017
(Restated)

21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:
- Available for sale securities (6,303,882) 600,756
- Fixed assets 3,649,575 2,940,128
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 2,097,145 1,811,635
(557,162) 5,352,519
Deferred tax on (deficit) / surplus on revaluation
of available for sale securities 2,206,359 (210,265)
1,649,197 5,142,254
21.1  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January 1, 2,940,128 2,940,128
Recognized during the year 709,447 -
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31, 3,649,575 2,940,128
212 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED
IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS
Surplus on revaluation as at January 1, 1,811,635 1,617,860
Recognized during the year 452,228 203,599
Realized on disposal during the year (165,184) (3,278)
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax (628) (6,546)
Adjustment during the year (906) -
Surplus on revaluation as at December 31, 2,097,145 1,811,635
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
- Guarantees 221 177,859,159 147,353,703
- Commitments 22.2 311,761,473 275,268,665
- Other contingent liabilities 22.3 792,879 771,897
490,413,511 423,394,265
22.1  GUARANTEES
Financial guarantees 77,942,385 70,976,864
Performance guarantees 82,128,279 56,176,690
Other guarantees 17,788,495 20,200,149
177,859,159 147,353,703
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222 COMMITMENTS

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 212,101,045 173,837,361
Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts 22.2.1 58,918,497 35,438,198
- forward lending 22.2.2 40,682,738 65,592,271
Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets 28,565 80,182
- intangible assets 30,628 39,013
Other commitments 22.2.3 = 281,640
311,761,473 275,268,665

22.2.1  COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Purchase 36,434,542 26,354,478
Sale 22,483,955 9,083,720
58,918,497 35,438,198

The above commitments have maturities falling within one year.

22.2.2  COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF FORWARD LENDING

Forward repurchase agreement lending 20,806,907 50,765,763
Undrawn commitments 22.2.2.1 19,875,831 14,826,508
40,682,738 65,592,271

22.2.2.1 These represent commitments that are irrevocable because they cannot be withdrawn at the discretion of the Bank without
the risk of incurring significant penalty or expense.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

22.2.3  OTHER COMMITMENTS

This represents participation in the equity of a proposed Mortgage
Refinance Company - 281,640

22.3  OTHER CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

These represent certain claims by third parties against

the Bank, which are being contested in the courts of law.

The management is of the view that these relate to

the normal course of business and are not likely to

result in any liability against the Bank. 792,879 771,897




23.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Bank at present does not offer derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps, Cross Currency Swaps, Forward Rate
Agreements or Foreign Exchange Options. The Bank’s Treasury and Investment Banking Groups buy and sell derivative
instruments such as Forward Exchange Contracts (FECs) and Equity Futures (EFs).

23.1  FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
FECs is a product offered to clients to hedge foreign exchange risk. The traders use this product to hedge themselves from
unfavourable movements in a foreign currency, however, by agreeing to fix the exchange rate, they do not benefit from
favourable movements in that currency.
FECs is a contract between the obligor and the Bank in which both agree to exchange an amount of one currency for another
currency at an agreed forward exchange rate for settiement over more than two business days after the FECs is entered into
(the day on which settlement occurs is called the value date). FECs is entered with those obligors whose credit worthiness has
already been assessed, and they have underlined trade transactions.
If the relevant exchange rate moves unfavourably, the Bank will loose money, and obligor will benefit from that movement
because the Bank must exchange currencies at the FEC rate. In order to mitigate this risk of adverse exchange rate movement,
the Bank manages its exposure by hedging forward position in inter-bank foreign exchange.
232 EQUITY FUTURES
An equity futures contract is a standardized contract, traded on a futures counter of the stock exchange, to buy or sell a certain
underlying scrip at a certain date in the future, at a specified price.
The Bank uses equity futures as a hedging instrument to hedge its equity portfolio against equity price risk. Only selected
shares are allowed to be traded on futures exchange. Equity futures give flexibility to the Bank either to take delivery on
the future settlement date or to settle it by adjusting the notional value of the contract based on the current market rates.
Maximum exposure limit to the equity futures is 10% of Tier | Capital of the Bank, based on prevailing SBP Regulations.
The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s exposure in equity futures and forward exchange contracts. Positions
in equity futures and forward exchange contracts are marked-to-market and are included in measures of portfolio volatility
including Value at Risk (VaR). Forward exchange contracts and equity futures are also included in capital charge and Risk
Weighted Asset calculation in accordance with SBP Regulations.
The accounting policies used to recognize and disclose derivatives are given in note 4.21.
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
24. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED
On:
a) Loans and advances 23,859,186 17,035,031
b) Investments 18,436,042 18,854,826
¢) Lendings to financial institutions 93,870 189,798
d) Balances with banks 106,818 99,183
e) Securities purchased under resale agreements 1,173,967 88,382
43,669,883 36,267,220
25. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits 22,104,113 17,253,701
Borrowings 2,302,209 2,442,229
Subordinated debts 653,603 376,035

25,059,925 20,071,965
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Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
26. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 415,748 328,076
Consumer finance related fees 80,538 85,378
Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 809,492 524,761
Credit related fees 123,343 135,549
Investment banking fees 186,465 272,179
Commission on trade 592,296 509,239
Commission on guarantees 502,400 494,130
Commission on remittances including home remittances 96,994 73,319
Commission on bancassurance 228,946 231,821
Others 79,848 52,342
3,116,070 2,706,794
21. GAIN ON SECURITIES
Realized gain / (loss) on:
Federal Government securities 237,818 1,392,979
Shares (10,631) 598,758
Non Government debt securities 1,780 -
Mutual funds 31,136 63,556
260,103 2,055,293
28. OTHER INCOME
Rent of property 9,359 13,485
Loss on sale of fixed assets (5,253) (10,551)
Rent of lockers 38,525 30,228
Gain on sale of non-banking assets 226,792 4,323
Recovery of expenses from customers 148,658 162,856
418,081 200,341

28.1  This includes an amount of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. Nil) on account of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets realized on disposal.

28.2  GAINON SALE OF NON-BANKING ASSETS

2018
Revalued Cash Mode of
Name of party amount received disposal
Rupees ‘000
AH. International (Pvt) Limited 395,292 517,566 735,000 Buy back
Shafi Exports (Pvt) Limited 69,104 100,849 110,207 Buy back
464,396 618,415 845,207
2017
Revalued Cash Mode of
Name of party amount received disposal
Rupees ‘000
AH. International (Pvt) Limited 3,686 5,000 5,000 Buy back
Shafi Exports (Pvt) Limited 47,960 49,924 54,247 Buy back
51,646 54,924 59,247




Rupees in ‘000 Note

2018

2017

OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL COMPENSATION EXPENSES 291 8,502,023 8,064,405
PROPERTY EXPENSE
Rent and taxes 1,692,027 1,477,504
Insurance 93,144 94,814
Utilities cost 547,660 495,135
Security (including guards) 546,841 531,780
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 230,124 228,038
Depreciation 430,449 378,391
3,540,245 3,205,662
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EXPENSE
Software maintenance 256,653 (100,543)
Hardware maintenance 41,898 32,676
Depreciation 186,905 563,034
Amortization 195,294 196,476
Network charges 221,761 162,221
902,511 853,864
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Directors’ fees, allowances 8,250 6,494
Fees and allowances to Shariah Board 4,940 3,965
Rent, taxes, insurance etc. 186,866 162,357
Legal and professional charges 110,524 104,951
Brokerage and commission 81,567 55,523
NIFT clearing charges 53,463 57,494
Repair and maintenance 254,147 250,389
Communications 417,668 380,369
Stationery and printing 216,611 178,977
Marketing, advertisement and publicity 114,548 152,296
Donations 29.2 43,388 -
Auditors’ remuneration 29.3 13,126 11,319
Travelling and conveyance 872,272 703,591
Depreciation 405,481 385,010
Security service charges 204,716 148,125
Subscriptions 32,567 29,098
Training and development 19,305 19,767
Other expenditure 256,296 175,140
3,295,735 2,824,865
16,240,514 14,948,796
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

29.1  TOTAL COMPENSATION EXPENSES

Managerial remuneration

i) Fixed 4,007,601 3,934,080

ii) Variable
- Cash bonus / awards etc. 665,984 621,248
4,673,585 4,555,328
Charge for defined benefit plans 29.1.1 586,359 378,032
Contribution to defined contribution plan 38 263,112 255,175
Rent and house maintenance 1,578,787 1,535,987
Utilities 345,968 337,546
Medical 485,054 474,313
Conveyance 344,721 310,477
Other staff cost 29.1.2 224,437 217,547
8,502,023 8,064,405

29.1.1 This includes charge for gratuity fund and leave encashment.

29.1.2 This includes EOBI contribution by the Bank, incentive to consumer sales staff, dearness allowance, cash handling allowance
and staff group insurance etc.

29.2  This includes donation given for ‘Diamer Bhasha and Mohmand Dams Fund’ and contribution made to Armed Forces Institute
of Cardiology through Fauji Foundation amounting to Rs. 42,523 thousand and purchase of Suzuki Bolan along with allied
expense for ‘Care for Special Persons Foundation’ of Rs. 865 thousand. Donation was not given to any donee in which the Bank
or any of its directors or their spouses had any interest.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

293 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Statutory auditors of the Bank

Audit fee 3,795 3,300
Fee for the audit of provident and gratuity funds 300 220
Special certifications, half year review, audit of consolidated
financial statements and sundry advisory services 4,781 4,200
Out of pocket expenses 1,321 1,219
10,197 8,939
Auditors of Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain
Audit fee 2,929 2,380
13,126 11,319

30. WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

Opening balance 670,060 500,227
Charge for the year 159,940 169,833
Reversal during the year 30.1 (700,000) -

(540,060) 169,833
Closing balance 130,000 670,060

30.1 The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 held that the amendment made in the law introduced
by the Federal Government for the levy of Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) was ultra vires of the constitution. The Federal Board
of Revenue has filed review petition against this order which is currently pending. During 2015, the Sindh Workers’ Welfare
Fund Act, 2014 (the Sindh Act) was promulgated under which the applicability of WWF has only been affected in the Province
of Sindh. Based on legal advice obtained, the Bank has reversed outstanding provision of WWF amounting to Rs. 700,000
thousand pertaining to areas other than Sindh province and carried the provision relating to province of Sindh amounting to
Rs. 130,000 thousand.



Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

31 OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 905 23,568
Premium paid to Deposit Protection Corporation - (subsidiary of SBP) 31.1 190,162 -
191,067 23,568
31.1  This premium is paid as required by the Deposit Protection Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 dated June 22,
2018.
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
32. PROVISIONS / (REVERSAL OF PROVISIONS) AND WRITE OFFS - NET
Provision for diminution in value of investments 8.3.1 1,048,772 108,351
Provision / (reversal of provision) against loans and advances 94 467,347 (1,189,533)
Impairment loss on available for sale investments - 30,047
(Reversal) / provision against other assets 14.4.1 (14,903) 33,025
Reversal of provision against intangible assets - (11,193)
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 19.1 101,909 -
Reversal of provision against assets held for sale - (153,958)
Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (142,536) (147,129)
Reversal of provision against cash and bank balances 6.3 (14) -
1,460,575 (1,330,390)
3. TAXATION
Current 2,009,641 2,265,570
Prior years’ 1,578,208 243,344
Deferred (1,139,672) 715,001
2,448,177 3,223,915
33.1  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,491,802
Tax at applicable tax rate of 35 percent (2017: 35 percent) 2,407,809 2,972,131
Effect of:
- charge for prior years 39,183 243,344
- permanent differences 1,185 8,440
2,448,177 3,223,915
332 The Honourable Islamabad High Court (IHC) in its order dated March 13, 2018, disallowed provision against Non-Performing
Loans (NPLs) during tax years 1995 — 1996 to 2008, the period prior to enactment of the Seventh Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has also upheld the IHC order. Consequently, the tax demand
raised in re-assessment orders has been paid by the Bank. The Bank has recognized prior year tax charge against this
disallowance net off actual write offs and recoveries from tax years 2009 to 2019 related to NPLs disallowed. In this respect,
aggregate prior year tax expense recorded during the year is Rs. 1,660 million along with the related deferred tax asset of
Rs. 1,497 million.
333  TAXSTATUS

The Bank has filed tax returns for and up to tax year 2018 (year ended December 31, 2017). The assessments for and up to
tax year 2017 were amended by the tax authorities mainly in the matters of admissibility of provisions against doubtful debts
and diminution in the value of investments, bad debts written off, apportionment of expenses to income exempt from tax or
taxable at a lower rate and basis of taxation of commission and brokerage income.

Tax payments made in relation to the matters currently pending are being carried forward as receivable, as management is
confident of their realization as and when the appeals are decided.
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ii) Consequent upon the amalgamation with and into the Bank, the outstanding tax issues relating to Askari Leasing Limited (ALL)
are as follows:

Tax returns of ALL have been filed for and up to tax year 2010. The returns for the tax years 2003 to 2010 were amended by
the tax authorities mainly in the matter of admissibility of initial allowance claimed on leased vehicles. On appeals filed by
ALL, partial relief was provided by the CIR(A) by allowing initial allowance on commercial vehicles. Re-assessment has not yet
been carried out by the tax department. A tax demand is however not likely to arise after re-assessment.

For and up to the assessment years 2002-2003, reference applications filed by the tax authorities in the matter of computation
of lease income are pending decisions by the Islamabad High Court. However, the likelihood of an adverse decision is
considered low due to a favourable decision of the High Court in parallel cases.

2018 2017

34. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year - Rupees in ‘000 4,431,278 5,267,887
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - numbers 1,260,260,180 1,260,260,180
Basic earnings per share - Rupees 3.52 418

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Bank, therefore dilutive earnings per share have not been
presented separately.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 44,239,325
Balances with other banks 4,093,412 3,193,835

Call money lendings - 750,000
53,281,057 48,183,160

2018 2017

36.  STAFF STRENGTH NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Permanent 6,640 6,591

On Bank’s contract 898 943

Total staff strength 7,538 7,534

In addition to the above, out of total employees, 5 (2017: 6) employees are working abroad.

31. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
37.1  GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. Contributions are made in accordance
with the actuarial recommendation.

The benefits under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 years or earlier cessation of service in lump
sum. The benefit is equal to one month’s last drawn basic salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof.

372 The number of employees covered under the defined benefit scheme are 6,611 employees (2017: 6,582 employees).



3713

PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The actuarial valuation was carried out for the year ended December 31, 2018 using “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The main

assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as follows:

2018

2017

Discount rate - per annum

Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum
Expected rate of return on plan assets - per annum
Duration

Mortality rate

10.75%
10.25%
10.75%

10.84 years
SLIC 2001 - 2005
mortality table

9.25%

8.75%

9.25%

11.18 years
SLIC 2001 - 2005
mortality table

Rupees in ‘000

Note

2018

2017

374 RECONCILIATION OF PAYABLE TO DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,782,116 2,505,491
Fair value of plan assets (2,741,274) (2,042,650)
Benefits payable 12,009 26,685
Net liability 52,851 489,526
375  MOVEMENT IN DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Obligation at the beginning of the year 2,505,491 2,192,580
Current service cost 278,585 261,864
Interest cost 224,074 189,648
Re-measurement (gain) / loss (47,892) 58,839
Benefits paid by the Bank (166,133) (170,755)
Benefits payable (12,009) (26,685)
Obligation at the end of the year 2,782,116 2,505,491
37.6  MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Fair value at the beginning of the year 2,042,650 1,808,216
Interest income on plan assets 203,902 170,845
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets over interest
income gain / (loss) 37.8.2 (43,130) (116,540)
Contributions by employer 730,670 350,884
Benefits paid (166,133) (170,755)
Benefits payable - opening (26,685) -
Fair value at the end of the year 2,741,274 2,042,650
37.7  MOVEMENT IN (RECEIVABLE) / PAYABLE UNDER DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME
Opening balance 489,526 384,364
Charge for the year 298,757 280,667
Contribution by the Bank - net (730,670) (350,884)
Re-measurement (gain) / loss recognized in OCI during the year 37.8.2 (4,762) 175,379
Closing balance 52,851 489,526
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Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
37.8  CHARGE FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
37.8.1  GOST RECOGNIZED IN PROFIT AND LOSS
Current service cost 278,585 261,864
Net interest income on defined benefit liability 20,172 18,803
298,757 280,667
37.82  RE-MEASUREMENTS RECOGNIZED IN OCI DURING THE YEAR
(Gain) / loss on obligation - experience adjustments (47,892) 58,839
Return on plan assets over interest income 43,130 116,540
Total re-measurements recognized in OCI (4,762) 175,379
37.9  COMPONENTS OF PLAN ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 183,901 3,263
Government securities 1,859,754 1,396,646
Term Finance Certificates 274,926 207,802
Shares 89,646 79,755
Mutual funds 333,047 355,184
2,741,274 2,042,650
37.10  AMOUNTS FOR CURRENT AND PREVIOUS FOUR ANNUAL PERIODS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2016 2015 2014
As at December 31,
Defined benefit obligation 2,182,116 2,192,580 1,813,892 1,492,354
Plan assets (2,741,274) (1,808,216) (1,813,892 (1,492,354)
Benefits payable 12,009 - - -
Deficit 52,851 384,364 - -
Experience adjustments
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations (47,892) - 51,437 135,344
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets - - - -
Return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in interest income (43,130) - 34,266 (2,296)

37.11  SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Sensitivity analysis is performed by changing only one assumption at a time while keeping the other assumptions constant.
Sensitivity analysis of key assumptions is given below:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligations

Askari Bank Limited

o
(@)

Assumptions

Change in Increase in
assumption assumption

Decrease in
assumption

Rupees in ‘000

Discount rate 1.00% (278,353) 324,722
Salary increase 1.00% 337,119 (293,176)
Mortality rate change 1 year 579 (583)



Rupees in ‘000

37.12  Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 298,401
37.13  Expected charge for the next financial year 298,072
37.14  MATURITY PROFILE
Rupees in ‘000 Undiscounted
Periods payments
Year 1 134,086
Year 2 117,187
Year 3 131,646
Year 4 155,321
Year 5 129,328
Year 6 to year 10 1,555,253
Year 11 and above 10,030,443
37.15  FUNDING POLICY
The Bank carries out the actuarial valuation of its defined benefit plan on a periodic basis using “Projected Unit Credit Method”.
Contributions are made annually in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.
37.16  SIGNIFICANT RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME:
Investment risk The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.
Longevity risk The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured
at the plan level over the entire retiree population.
Salary increase risk The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability
accordingly.
Withdrawal risk The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.
38. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
The Bank operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal monthly contributions
are made both by the Bank and by the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary of the employee. Payments
are made to the employees as specified in the rules of the fund. The total assets of the fund as at December 31, 2017 were
Rs. 4,250,161 thousand (December 31, 2016: Rs. 3,902,384 thousand) as per latest available audited financial statements of
the fund.
38.1  THEDETAILS OF SIZE AND INVESTMENT OF THE PROVIDENT FUND ARE AS FOLLOWS:
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Un-audited Audited
Size of the Fund 4,658,185 4,212,443
Cost of investments 4,588,893 3,960,838
Fair value of investments 4,433,191 3,973,840
Percentage of investments 98.51% 94.03%
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38.2  BREAKUP OF PROVIDENT FUND INVESTMENTS

2018 (Un-audited) 2017 (Audited)
Rupees in ‘000 Percentage Rupees in ‘000 Percentage
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,368,394 51.61 2,948,567 74.44
Market Treasury Bills 894,144 19.49 - -
Term Finance Certificates 368,000 8.02 - -
Mutual funds 708,724 15.44 762,640 19.26
Shares 249,631 5.44 249,631 6.30
4,588,893 100.00 3,960,838 100.00

All the investments out of Provident Fund Trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

39. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
39.1  GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The Bank grants compensated absences to all its regular employees as per effective service rules. Provisions are recorded in
accordance with the actuarial recommendations.

Under this unfunded scheme, regular employees are entitled to 30 days privilege leave for each completed year of service.
This policy has been revised during 2018 and now unutilized privilege leaves are accumulated upto a maximum of 90 days
(previously 120 days) out of which 45 days (previously 60 days) are encashable at the time of separation from service on the
basis of last drawn gross salary.

39.2  PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The actuarial valuation was carried out for the year ended December 31, 2018 using “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Present
value of obligation as at December 31, 2018 was Rs. 574,690 thousand (2017: Rs. 357,931 thousand). Expense for the year
of Rs. 287,602 thousand (2017: Rs 97,365 thousand) has been included in administrative expenses. The main assumptions
used for actuarial valuation are as follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate - per annum 10.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum 10.25% 8.75%
Leave accumulation factor - days 8 8

A0. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

President & Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Fees - - 8,250 6,494 - -
Managerial remuneration 32,125 50,287 - - 1,197,118 1,092,109
Allowances 2,359 5,360 - - 195,736 182,143
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,634 3,898 - - 71,041 71,155
Contribution to defined contribution plan 1,330 3,897 - - 70,658 65,810
Rent and house maintenance 7,064 14,034 - - 406,311 381,044
Utilities 1,810 3,859 - - 95,785 90,173
Medical 1,671 3,508 - - 88,741 83,331
Bonus 11,695 17,398 - - 193,888 183,259
Others 11,524 3,974 - - 14,786 1,989

71,212 106,215 8,250 6,494 2,334,064 2,151,013
Number of persons 2 1 12 15 454 428
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Executive means all executive employees, other than the President & Chief Executive, whose annual basic salary exceeds
rupees twelve hundred thousand. President & Chief Executive and certain other executives are provided with the Bank
maintained vehicles.

Further, senior executives are entitled to certain additional benefits in accordance with the Bank’s policy.

Directors’ boarding and lodging expenses for attending meetings of the Bank are borne by the Bank and are included in
administrative expenses.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for securities classified by the Bank as ‘held to
maturity’. Securities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. Fair value of unquoted equity investments is
determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest available audited financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market
rates for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the
Bank’s accounting policy as stated in note 4.6.

Fair value of remaining financial assets and liabilities except fixed term loans, staff loans, non-performing advances and fixed
term deposits is not significantly different from the carrying amounts since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature
or are frequently repriced in the case of customer loans and deposits.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Pakistan Stock Exchange) for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) available at Mutual Fund Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP), Reuters page, Redemption prices and determined by valuers on the panel of Pakistan Banks’ Association.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Federal Government The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined on the basis of rates /
securities prices sourced from Reuters.

Non Government debt Non Government debt securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by MUFAP.
securities

Foreign Government debt Foreign Government debt securities are valued on the basis of rates taken from custodian
securities of the securities which are usually drawn from Bloomberg.

Unit of mutual funds Fair values of mutual funds are determined based on their net asset values as published at

the close of reporting period.

Fixed assets and non-banking Land and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are valued on a periodic
assets acquired in basis using professional valuers. The valuation is based on their assessments of the
satisfaction of claims market value of the assets.

& Annual Report 2018



Askari Bank Limited

(ee)
=

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The table below analyses the financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. Valuation of investments is carried
out as per guidelines specified by the SBP.

2018

Rupees in ‘000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ON-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS - MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Investments
Federal Government securities - 237,893,228 - 237,893,228
Shares 4,002,441 - 305,680 4,308,121
Units of open end mutual funds - 971,446 - 971,446
Fully paid preference shares 59,745 - - 59,745
Non Government debt securities - 1,210,281 4,206,108 5,416,389
Foreign securities - 413,663 - 413,663
FINANCIAL ASSETS - DISCLOSED BUT NOT MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 11,171,395 - 11,171,395
OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 36,434,542 - 36,434,542
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 22,483,955 - 22,483,955
Forward agreements for lending - - - -
Forward agreements for borrowing - - 20,806,907 20,806,907
2017
Rupees in ‘000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ON-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS - MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 296,824,632 - 296,824,632
Shares 3,379,259 - 24,040 3,403,299
Units of open end mutual funds - 1,652,135 - 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 66,720 - - 66,720
Non Government debt securities - 904,521 5,613,569 6,518,090
Foreign securities - 228,426 - 228,426
FINANCIAL ASSETS - DISCLOSED BUT NOT MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 6,263,446 - 6,263,446
OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 26,354,478 - 26,354,478
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 9,083,720 - 9,083,720
Forward agreements for lending - - 1,515,752 1,515,752
Forward agreements for borrowing - - 49,250,012 49,250,012

The Bank’s policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or
change in circumstances that caused such transfer takes place. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the
year.



2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Level 3 Level 3
412 FAIR VALUE OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed assets
Property and equipment (freehold and leasehold land) 8,084,238 4,789,727
Other assets
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 5,298,464 5,001,571
42. SEGMENT INFORMATION
421 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:
2018
Branch Corporate Treasury Consumer Islamic Foreign  Head office Total
Rupees in ‘000 banking banking banking banking  operations / others
PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit (13,701,567) 10,796,536 16,911,770 2,041,682 1,864,845 581,932 114760 18,609,958
Inter segment revenue - net 25,378,081 (8,182,335)  (16,582,367)  (1,213,144) - 221,706 378,059 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 2,084,341 1,501,007 1,366,088 217,419 226,417 2,322 223,999 5,621,593
TOTAL INCOME 13,760,855 4,115,208 1,695,491 1,045,957 2,091,262 805,960 716,818 24,231,551
Segment direct expenses 9,332,509 369,262 179,674 625,997 1,821,327 81,455 3481297 15,891,521
Inter segment expense allocation 108,216 475,004 3,706 97,104 - - (684,030) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,440,725 844,266 183,380 723,101 1,821,327 81,455 2,797,267 15,891,521
Provisions 708,445 577,302 ©) 20,058 37,358 9,931 107,489 1,460,575
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,611,685 2,693,640 1,512,119 302,798 232,577 714574 (2,187,938) 6,879,455
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 17,756,676 810,416 29,951,560 - 3,809,342 874,204 78,849 53,281,047
Investments - 13,389,091 223,738,330 - 8,169,564 13,627,192 1,309,810 260,233,987
Net inter segment lending - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - - - - - - -
Advances - performing - net of provision 36,991,679 222,393,797 - 19304293 46549799 9,621,704 6,701,958 341,563,230
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 787,659 547,041 - 148,992 60,225 - - 1,543,917
Others 2,291,938 10,957,788 3,457,096 585,079 2,173,734 189,483 30,254,743 49,909,861
TOTAL ASSETS 57,827,952 248,098,133 257,146,986 20,038,364 60,762,664 24,312,583  38,345360 706,532,042
Borrowings 4373261 13,569,235 12,789,274 1,000,000 8,999,361 10,854,144 1,117,048 52,702,323
Subordinated debts - - - - - - 9,993,600 9,993,600
Deposits and other accounts 453,347,498 77,602,229 - 29564 42,338,600 272,887 45,078 573,635,856
Net inter segment balances (415,539,554) 138,536,860 242,645,941 17,070,983 - 11,386,676 5,899,094 -
Others 12,035,062 15,696,169 199,652 1,535,279 5239249 1,039,532 946,413 36,691,356
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,216,267 245404493 255634867 19,635,826 56,577,210 23553239 18,001,233 673,023,135
Equity 3,611,685 2,693,640 1,512,119 402,538 4,185,454 759,344 20,344,127 33,508,907
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 57,827,952 248,098,133 257,146,986 20,038,364 60,762,664 24,312,583  38,345360 706,532,042
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 67,749,459 336,263,367 71,602,764 - 5,934,661 8,011,980 851,280 490,413,511
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2017
Branch Corporate Treasury Consumer Islamic Foreign  Head office Total
Rupees in ‘000 banking banking banking banking  operations / others

PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit (11,442,303) 8,541,663 15,801,186 1,631,403 1,374,345 418,736 (29,775) 16,195,255
Inter segment revenue - net 20,417,408 (6,391,304)  (13,378,199) (786,421) - 124,536 13,980 -
Non mark-up / retur / interest income 1,664,286 1,893,007 1,896,634 206,009 153,264 60,927 234,221 6,108,354
TOTAL INCOME 10,639,391 4,043,366 4,319,621 950,991 1,527,609 604,199 218432 22,303,609
Segment direct expenses 8,547,121 343,266 170,907 752,791 1,636,462 90,836 3,600,814 15,142,197
Inter segment expense allocation 102,374 399,665 - - - - (502,039) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 8,649,495 742,931 170,907 752,791 1,636,462 90,836 3,098,775 15,142,197
Provisions (904,458) (489,166) 28 20,635 126,285 - (83,714)  (1,330,390)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,894,354 3,789,601 4,148,686 177,565 (235,138) 513,363 (2,796,629) 8,491,802
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 15,773,246 508,445 26,731,274 - 4,159,061 261,003 131 47,433,160
Investments - 12,359,208 285,671,765 - 6,733,697 8,491,804 1,700,274 314,956,748
Net inter segment lending - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - 1,500,000 - 750,000 - - 2,250,000
Advances - performing - net of provision 31,012,422 160,703,218 - 17,606,037 34292726 8355925 4,931,800 256,902,128
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 657,091 837,912 - 192,745 103,210 - - 1,790,958
Others 2,950,000 5,381,646 6,891,913 560,919 1,965,779 167,006 21,441,139 39,358,400
TOTAL ASSETS 50,392,759 179,790,429 320,794,952 18,359,701 48,004,473 17275737 28,073,344 662,691,394
Borrowings 5345571 10,982,878 46,385,125 - 2,410,152 6,460,118 3467 71,587,311
Subordinated debts - - - - - - 4,992,800 4,992,800
Deposits and other accounts 438,457,965 49,474,030 - 38,373 37,650,774 180,020 7,146 525,808,308
Net inter segment balances (410,068,145 110,478,917 270,116,165 15,671,631 - 9937,548 3,863,884 -
Others 13,763,014 5,065,003 144,976 2,472,294 4,452,181 81,550 1,888,467 27,867,485
TOTAL LIABILITIES 47,498,405 176,000,828 316,646,266 18,182,298 44513107 16,659,236 10,755,764 630,255,904
Equity 2,894,354 3,789,601 4,148,686 177,403 3,491,366 616,501 17,317,580 32,435,490
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 50,392,759 179,790,429 320,794,952 18,359,701 48,004,473 17275737 28,073,344 662,691,394
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 222,794,437 108,165,341 81,797,991 - 6,667,661 2,798,378 1,170,457 423,394,265




422 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS

2018
Rupees in ‘000 Pakistan Middle East Total

PROFIT AND LOSS

Net mark-up / return / profit 18,028,026 581,932 18,609,958
Inter segment revenue - net (221,706) 221,706 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 5,619,271 2,322 5,621,593
TOTAL INCOME 23,425,591 805,960 24,231,551
Segment direct expenses 15,810,066 81,455 15,891,521
Inter segment expense allocation - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 15,810,066 81,455 15,891,521
Provisions 1,450,644 9,931 1,460,575
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,164,881 714,574 6,879,455
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and bank balances 52,406,843 874,204 53,281,047
Investments 246,606,795 13,627,192 260,233,987
Net inter segment lending - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - -
Advances - performing - net of provision 331,941,526 9,621,704 341,563,230
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 1,543,917 - 1,543,917
Others 49,720,378 189,483 49,909,861
TOTAL ASSETS 682,219,459 24,312,583 706,532,042
Borrowings 41,848,179 10,854,144 52,702,323
Subordinated debts 9,993,600 - 9,993,600
Deposits and other accounts 573,362,969 272,887 573,635,856
Net inter segment balances (11,386,676) 11,386,676 -
Others 35,651,824 1,039,532 36,691,356
TOTAL LIABILITIES 649,469,896 23,553,239 673,023,135
Equity 32,749,563 759,344 33,508,907
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 682,219,459 24,312,583 706,532,042
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 482,401,531 8,011,980 490,413,511
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2017

Rupees in ‘000 Pakistan Middle East Total
PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit 15,776,519 418,736 16,195,255
Inter segment revenue - net (124,536) 124,536 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 6,047,427 60,927 6,108,354
TOTAL INCOME 21,699,410 604,199 22,303,609
Segment direct expenses 15,051,361 90,836 15,142,197
Inter segment expense allocation - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 15,051,361 90,836 15,142,197
Provisions (1,330,390) - (1,330,390)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7,978,439 513,363 8,491,802
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 47,172,157 261,003 47,433,160
Investments 306,464,944 8,491,804 314,956,748
Net inter segment lending - — _
Lendings to financial institutions 2,250,000 - 2,250,000
Advances - performing - net of provision 248,546,203 8,355,925 256,902,128
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 1,790,958 - 1,790,958
Others 39,191,396 167,005 39,358,401
TOTAL ASSETS 645,415,658 17,275,737 662,691,395
Borrowings 65,127,193 6,460,118 71,587,311
Subordinated debts 4,992,800 - 4,992,800
Deposits and other accounts 525,628,288 180,020 525,808,308
Net inter segment balances (9,937,548) 9,937,548 -
Others 27,785,935 81,550 27,867,485
TOTAL LIABILITIES 613,596,668 16,659,236 630,255,904
Equity 31,818,990 616,501 32,435,491
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 645,415,658 17,275,737 662,691,395
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 420,595,887 2,798,378 423,394,265

43. TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank is not engaged in any significant trust activities. However, the Bank acts as security agent for some of the Term
Finance Certificates it arranges and distributes on behalf of its customers.

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fauji Consortium comprising of Fauji Foundation, Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
(the Parent) holds 71.91% of the Bank’s share capital at the year end. The Bank has related party relationships with entities
under common directorship, its directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise
significant influence and employees’ funds.

The Bank enters into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms
as for comparable transactions with person of similar standing. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement
benefits and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribution plan.
Remuneration to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.



Details of transactions with related parties and balances as at the year end are as follows:

218 2017
Companies Companies
with common with common
Key directorship, Other Key dirgctorship, Other
management having equity related management having equity related
Rupees in ‘000 Parent Director personnel  Subsidiary under 20% parties Parent Director personngl  Subsidiary  under 20% parties
Investments
Opening balance - - - - 217,634 - - - - - 173263 -
Investment made during
the year - - - - 154,796 - - - - - - -
Investment redeemed / disposed
off during the year - - - - (26,322) - - - - - - -
Transfer in / (out) - net - - - - (296,975) - - - - - (1,515,001) -
Closing balance - - - - 49,133 - - - - - 217,634 -
Advances
Opening balance 781,073 695 397,255 - 3797303 - 799,921 114 311,909 - 4534697 -
Addition during the year /
adjustment 97,898,658 27,104 70238 - 3784743 - 83124716 10,030 175,934 - 18,746,267 -
Repaid during the year /
adjustment (89,098452) (63482 (74,429 - (31,663,208) - (83143564  (10,356)  (135,736) - (20,352,242) -
Transfer in/ (out) - net - 36,134 (60,524) - (1115375 - - 907 45148 - 868,581 -
Closing balance 9,581,279 451 332,540 - 3803463 - 781,073 695 397,255 - 3797303 -
Other Assets
Interest / mark-up receivable 52,483 3,671 65,415 - 23533 - - - 56,346 - 21,229 -
Security deposits receivable 3,600 - - - - - 3,600 - - - - -
Assets held for sale - net of
provision - - - 80,720 - - - - - 80,720 - -
Subordinated debts
Opening balance - - - - 24970 - - - - - 24980 -
Redemption / sold during
the year - - - - (10) - - - - - (10 -
Closing balance - - - - 24,960 - - - - - 24970 -
Deposits and other accounts
Opening balance 5,770,715 29,001 186,588 3,251 7210018 3042573 5,462,689 13317 147,552 9008 7,296,044 1,106,985
Received during the year /
adjustment 356,365,334 310,892 704,636 130,345 248,876,185 18,009,853 273936342 104743 1017896 208445 193985526 8330529
Withdrawn during the year
| adjustment (352,326,164)  (299.993)  (676,343)  (104,666) (251,057,728) (17,858,085) (273,628316)  (85151)  (986,380)  (210,259) (193,534,427) (7,132,435)
Transfer in/ (out) - net - (15,008) (55,165) - 159,156 - - (3,968) 7520 (3943)  (537,125)  7374%
Closing balance 9,809,885 24,892 159,716 28930 5187631 3194361 5770715 29,001 186,588 3251 7210018 3042573
Other Liabilities
Interest / mark-up payable 16,717 68 1,390 - 37455 8,840 20,651 2 1,592 - 16,598 6,513
Payable to staff retirement
fund - - - - - 52,851 - - - - - 489,52
Security deposits
payable - - 27 - 161,946 - 494 - 504 - 59,772 -
Contingencies and
Commitments
Other contingencies 55910 - - - 1525313 - 50,000 - - - 1878456 -

In addition to above, rent free sub-branch is operating at FFC head office, Sona Tower.
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2018 2017
Companies Companies
with common with common
Key directorship, Other Key dirgctorship, Other
management having equity related management having equity related
Rupees in ‘000 Parent Director personnel  Subsidiary under 20% parties Parent  Director personnel ~ Subsidiary  under 20% parties
Income
Mark-up / return / interest
eared 127,757 3,250 13,055 - 325,324 - 43474 141 13,254 - 321,600 -
Fee and commission received 83 - - - 23,881 - 80 - - - 44,025 -
Dividend income - - - - 7,963 - - - - - 7,785 -
Net gain on sale of assets
held for sale - - - - - - - - - 216,000 - -
Other income = = = = 749 = - - - - - -
Expense
Mark-up / return / interest
expensed 685,007 649 5677 - 583493 231679 268,101 643 4,907 144 408832 103,285
Contribution to employees funds - - - - - 561,869 - - - - - 535842
Remuneration and
allowances paid - - 423612 - - 4,940 - - 480,361 - - 3,965
Post employment benefits - - 23914 - - - - - 30,160 - - -
Fee and commission paid - - - - 261 22,125 - - - - 62 19,755
Fee paid - 8,250 - - - - - 6,494 250 - - -
Rent of property / service
charges paid 23321 904 - - - - 24,285 - - - - -
Dividend paid - - - - - - 2265705 6 222 - - -

45. CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it could continue
to provide adequate returns to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk. It is the
policy of the Bank to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognized and the Bank
recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses) 12,602,602 12,602,602
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 28,990,178 25,345,249
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 5,736,610 -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 34,726,788 25,345,249
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 5,075,159 7,576,374
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 39,801,947 32,921,623
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAS):

Credit Risk 268,963,104 217,254,950
Market Risk 9,771,875 19,252,086
Operational Risk 39,356,590 35,845,034
Total 318,091,569 272,352,070
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 9.11% 9.31%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 10.92% 9.31%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.51% 12.09%

As of December 2018, the Bank must meet a Tier 1 to RWA ratio and CAR, including CCB, of 9.4% and 11.90% respectively.



Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Market and Credit Risk while Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) is used for Operational Risk.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
LEVERAGE RATIO (LR):
Eligible Tier 1 Capital 34,726,788 25,345,249
Total Exposures 1,157,808,940 1,064,294,767
Leverage Ratio 3.00% 2.38%

LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 278,917,759 283,558,343
Total Net Cash Outflow 154,131,589 153,812,783
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 180.96% 184.35%

NET STABLE FUNDING RATIO (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 584,918,449 536,617,394
Total Required Stable Funding 312,211,738 243,419,172
Net Stable Funding Ratio 187.35% 220.45%

46.

46.1

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions issued
from time to time have been placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is available at http://akbl.com.pk.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank believes that effective risk management is key to achieving desired level of return while maintaining acceptable
level of risk exposure. Robust risk management processes and framework are in place to achieve the Bank’s overall objectives
through a well thought out strategy, which enables the Bank to effectively manage Credit, Market, Operational and Liquidity
risk in a proactive manner.

The Bank’s approach is to ensure that risk management is deeply and firmly embedded in the culture of the Bank. All
employees are therefore considered responsible for identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks within
the scope of their assigned responsibilities. As a result of changing risk environment, the Bank continuously monitors and
conducts holistic assessment of complex transactions on an integrated basis.

The Bank has a Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in place and is updated regularly by the Bank’s Risk Management
Division. BRMC is responsible for reviewing the extent of design and adequacy of risk management framework. BRMC
oversight ensures that risks are managed within the level of tolerance and risk appetite of the Bank.

CREDIT RISK:

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability is impaired
resulting in economic loss to the Bank. The Bank takes necessary measures to control such risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties with increased likelihood of default and continually assessing
the creditworthiness of counter parties.

The Bank has built and maintains a sound loan portfolio in terms of a well defined Risk Management Policy approved by
the Board of Directors. Its credit evaluation system comprises of well-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review
procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in its lending activities and ensuring quality of asset portfolio. Advances
portfolio constitutes around 49% of the total asset base and is also the largest source of credit risk for the Bank. Moreover,
more than 80% of Bank’s capital requirement pertains to credit risk. The Bank’s advances portfolio is well diversified across
various business segments, industries and geographical locations.
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Risk mitigants have been put in place at all stages of credit risk cycle i.e. identification, measurement, monitoring, controlling
and reporting for effective risk management. Accordingly, portfolio monitoring function is in place at the Bank with dedicated
resources to ensure that risk is not only minimized but is optimized in risk / return perspective.

Credit Risk Review is conducted at obligor as well as at portfolio level to ensure adherence to regulatory as well as the Bank’s
policies and procedures. The review process ensures that a sound and proactive risk management culture is maintained
across the Bank. Scope of Pre-Approval Risk Assessment has been enhanced, covering the entire Corporate, Commercial and
SME portfolios along with consumer and Agri Finance within discretionary powers of Head Office Credit Committee (HOCC).
Internal audit division is reviewing the advances portfolio on a post approval basis.

CREDIT RISK - GENERAL DISCLOSURES

The Bank follows the Standardized Approach for its credit risk exposures, which sets out fixed risk weights corresponding to
external credit ratings or type of exposure, whichever is applicable.

Under the Standardized Approach, the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to counter-parties by External
Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIS) duly recognized by the SBP. The Bank selects particular ECAls for each type of exposure.
The Bank utilizes the credit ratings assigned by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA), Japan Credit Rating Company Limited
— Vital Information Systems (JCR-VIS), Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors (S&P).

TYPES OF EXPOSURE AND ECAIS USED

FITCH Moody’s S&P PACRA JCR-VIS ECA Scores
Corporates - v - v 4 -
Banks v 4 v 4 4 -
Public sector enterprises - - - v v -

FITCH, Moody’s and S&P ratings (as applicable) are used where sovereign exposures are denominated in USD.

MAPPING TO SBP RATING GRADES

For all exposures, the selected ratings are translated to the standard rating grades given by the SBP. The mapping tables used
for converting ECAI ratings to the SBP rating grades are given below:



LONG TERM RATING GRADES MAPPING

SBP Rating grade FITCH Moody’s S&P PACRA JCR-VIS ECA scores

1 AAA Aaa AAA AAA AAA 0,1
AA+ Aal AA+ AA+ AA+
AA Aa2 AA AA AA
AA- Aa3 AA- AA- AA-

2 A+ Al A+ A+ A+ 2
A A2 A A A
A- A3 A- A- A-

3 BBB+ Baatl BBB+ BBB+ BBB+ 3
BBB Baa2 BBB BBB BBB
BBB- Baa3 BBB- BBB- BBB-

4 BB+ Bail BB+ BB+ BB+ 4
BB Ba2 BB BB BB
BB- Ba3 BB- BB- BB-

5 B+ B1 B+ B+ B+ 5,6
B B2 B B B
B- B3 B- B- B-

6 CCC+ and Caal and CCC+ and CCC+ and CCC+ and 7
below below below below below

Particulars of the Bank'’s significant on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk in various sectors are analyzed as follows:

Gross lending

Non-performing lending

Provision held

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
46.1.1  LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Credit risk by public / private sector
Public / Government - - - - - -
Private 148,606 2,398,606 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606
148,606 2,398,606 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606
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Gross investments Non-performing investments Provision held
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
46.12  INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES
Credit risk by industry sector
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 420,000 - = - = -
Textile 336,970 370,644 336,972 370,644 336,972 370,644
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 1,068,271 1,634,165 1,068,270 1,074,165 1,068,270 1,074,165
Automobile and Transportation equipment - - 18,770 27,170 18,770 27,170
Electronics and Electrical appliances - 284,874 - - - -
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 2,604,170 2,604,170 - - - -
Transport, Storage and Communication 656,175 1,093,625 - - - -
Telecommunication 226,836 261,481 226,836 261,481 226,836 261,481
Banks and Financial Institutions 1,736,525 1,947,998 - - = -
Government 255,354,622 301,584,589 - - 164,020 -
Foreign government 421,818 228,590 - - 2,659 -
QOthers 18,770 213,097 - 185,925 - 185,925

262,844,157 310,223,233 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,817,527 1,919,385

CREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR

Public / Government 255,354,622 301,584,589 = - 164,020 -
Private 7,489,535 8,638,644 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,653,507 1,919,385

262,844,157 310,223,233 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,817,527 1,919,385

Gross advances Non-performing advances Provision held
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
46.1.3  ADVANCES
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 6,052,398 4,685,884 351,035 497,180 196,686 253,532
Mining and Quarrying 2,274,965 1,668,097 - - - -
Textile 48,018,815 41,707,804 12,335,315 12,000,289 11,696,354 11,280,933
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 20,292,417 9,251,785 211,248 16,464 211,248 15,549
Cement 5,911,502 4,482,630 401 401 401 401
Sugar 9,166,459 7,181,562 6,190 - 1,548 -
Footwear and Leather garments 1,485,763 1,647,088 404,057 62,083 404,057 41,519
Automobile and transportation equipment 944,527 869,820 447,278 242,224 424,497 219,443
Electronics and electrical appliances 3,547,871 2,647,185 1,113,552 1,116,900 1,113,552 1,116,900
Construction 5,126,602 3,884,905 645,001 657,364 625,303 636,304
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 28,193,363 22,138,997 1,671,611 1,675,648 1,671,611 1,675,648
Wholesale and Retail Trade 9,822,151 9,301,176 564,157 573,524 474,639 476,626
Exports / Imports 285,452 62,557 - - - -
Transport, Storage and Communication 7,840,196 6,906,053 505,905 732,530 350,664 502,141
Financial 11,880,936 5,670,568 - - - -
Insurance 90,055 100,228 - - - -
Services 9,004,661 11,298,355 585,846 495,927 554,056 460,497
Individuals 33,516,454 29,753,031 2,111,521 2,004,025 1,958,569 1,809,240
Public / Government 116,597,785 86,590,715 - - - -
Edible oil and ghee 4,474,849 2,677,099 549,956 460,614 706,946 460,614
Rice Processing (husking, semi-wholly milled etc.) 6,506,316 6,145,409 2,505,178 2,314,493 2,402,950 2,161,590
Refined petroleum and products 5,696,168 1,931,457 16,841 637,606 14,773 634,503
Basic iron and steel 9,939,210 8,129,835 484,825 883,630 449,834 880,647
Others 22,590,056 15,607,430 2,147,169 2,382,125 1,855,481 2,335,982

369,258,971 284,339,670 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069

CREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR

Public / Government 116,597,785 86,590,715 = = -
Private 252,661,186 197,748,955 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069

369,258,971 284,339,670 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069




Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

46.1.4  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Credit risk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 6,130,430 521,678
Mining and Quarrying 19,021 1,969,910
Textile 7,382,976 7,512,284
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 6,264,673 8,991,322
Cement 2,378,667 2,115,251
Sugar 784,968 150,583
Footwear and Leather garments 682,761 1,586,669
Automobile and transportation equipment 614,480 470,370
Electronics and electrical appliances 3,445,319 1,471,734
Construction 17,770,222 19,964,673
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 19,719,704 6,450,221
Wholesale and Retail Trade 936,488 7,574,547
Exports/Imports 100,000 -
Transport, Storage and Communication 551,784 2,913,793
Banks and Financial Institutions 151,847,195 38,724,527
Telecommunication 328,041 328,037
Financial - 1,073,379
Insurance 12,899 5,000
Food and allied 3,025,000 158,751
Services 3,879,607 5,355,056
Individuals 2,409,179 3,077,528
Public / Government 207,044,313 210,218,866
Others 55,085,784 102,760,086

490,413,511 423,394,265

CREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR

Public / Government 207,044,313 210,218,866
Private 283,369,198 213,175,399
490,413,511 423,394,265

46.1.5  CONCENTRATION OF ADVANCES

The Bank’s top 10 exposures on the basis of total funded and non-funded exposures aggregated to Rs. 277,045,219 thousand
(2017: Rs. 206,278,955 thousand) are as following:

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
Funded 99,159,075 67,864,752
Non-funded 177,886,144 138,414,203
Total exposure 277,045,219 206,278,955

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs. 337,790,859 thousand (2017: Rs. 301,124,868
thousand).

The above does not include any classified exposure.
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46.1.6  ADVANCES - PROVINCE / REGION-WISE DISBURSEMENT AND UTILIZATION

2018
Disbursements Utilization

Punjab Sindh  KPK including Baluchistan Islamabad  AJK including

Rupees in ‘000 FATA Gilgit-Baltstan
PROVINCE / REGION

Punjab 724,902,945 || 682,459,555 26,971,774 3,146,499 54,116 12,230,609 40,392

Sindh 473,805,677 4,599,423 || 463,372,536 3,118,712 37,409 2,674,137 3,460

KPK including FATA 5,023,212 99,349 8,530 4,901,075 4,300 4172 5,786

Baluchistan 358,865 25,284 4,880 4,953 318,646 4,002 1,100

Islamabad 70,640,639 7,940,268 2,326,342 90,723 47,335 60,218,496 17,475

AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan 533,400 42,153 2,665 145,312 600 1,716 340,954

Total 1,275,264,738 695,166,032 492,686,727 11,407,274 462,406 75,133,132 409,167

2017
Disbursements Utilization

Punjab Sindh  KPK including Baluchistan Islamabad  AJK including

Rupees in ‘000 FATA Gilgit-Baltstan
PROVINCE / REGION

Punjab 543,154,676 || 519,231,646 11,262,373 2,486,665 63,885 10,074,478 35,629

Sindh 410,066,784 5,691,615 || 400,877,250 2,153,227 21,564 1,322,008 1,120

KPK including FATA 3,718,177 81,581 21,645 3,377,757 2,200 230,395 4599

Baluchistan 249,470 26,126 12,992 2,000 205,852 1,700 800

Islamabad 47,775,274 11,256,490 1,047,582 111,536 18,062 35,332,138 9,466

AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan 685,281 47,984 7,558 266,564 5,952 9,785 347,438

Total 1,005,649,662 536,335,442 413,229,400 8,397,749 317,515 46,970,504 399,052

46.2  MARKETRISK:

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by
movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit spreads, resulting
in a loss to earnings and capital.

The Bank is exposed to market risk from both its banking and trading books. Trading book for the Bank includes all Held for
Trading assets along with Available for Sale securities that are held with intention of short term trade. All assets not included
in trading book are included within the Banking book.

The Bank’s Risk Management Process seeks to identify, measure, monitor and control market risks in order to shield against
adverse movements in market factors and to attain an efficient risk / return profile of its open positions. The Risk Management
Division has developed and implemented market risk policy and risk measurement / monitoring methodology for review and
reporting of market risk.

The Bank makes use of the globally established Value at Risk (VaR) methodology to measure traded market risk. Additionally,
sensitivity analysis is carried out to gauge the impact of extreme market movements on traded exposures, such as fixed
income securities and equity capital market instruments.

Further, stress testing is used to analyze the impact of both the abnormal market movements across different portfolios as well
as to assess non-traded market risk, in particular interest rate risk in the banking book. The performance of the Bank’s traded
portfolios is evaluated through the use of risk / return analysis. Risk is kept under check through the revaluation of all traded
market risk exposed positions on a daily basis, and controlled by ensuring that these positions do not breach regulatory limits
and the Bank’s own internally established risk tolerance limits.



Basel Ill Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for market risk.

Total capital charge for market risk is Rs. 781,750 thousand (2017: Rs. 1,540,167 thousand).

46.2.1  BALANCE SHEET SPLIT BY TRADING AND BANKING BOOKS
2018 2017
Rupegs in ‘000 Banking book Trading book Total  Bankingbook  Trading book Total
Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 - 49,187,645 44,239,325 - 44,239,325
Balances with other banks 4,093,402 - 4,093,402 3,193,835 - 3,193,835
Lendings to financial institutions - - - 2,250,000 - 2,250,000
Investments 248,254,020 11,979,967 260,233,987 275,041,009 39,915,739 314,956,748
Advances 343,107,147 - 343,107,147 258,693,086 - 258,693,086
Fixed assets 12,791,827 - 12,791,827 9,885,958 - 9,885,958
Intangible assets 741,361 - 741,361 842,869 - 842,869
Assets held for sale 80,720 - 80,720 80,720 - 80,720
Deferred tax assets 3,773,779 - 3,773,779 100,755 - 100,755
Other assets 32,522,174 - 32,522,174 28,448,099 - 28,448,099
694,552,075 11,979,967 706,532,042 622,775,656 39,915,739 662,691,395
46.2.2  FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk, or the risk that the Bank’s earnings and / or capital can fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates, arises out from the Bank’s foreign exchange exposure which consists of foreign currency cash in hand, nostro / vostro
accounts, forward contracts, forward bookings with exporters, foreign bills purchased, foreign currency placements with SBP
and the Bank’s Wholesale Bank Branch, foreign currency lendings / deposits and capital investments in offshore operations.

The Bank’s treasury manages consolidated foreign exchange exposure by matching foreign currency assets and liabilities
in spot and forward. The foreign exchange exposure and nostro balances are maintained within regulatory limits and VaR is
calculated for consolidated foreign exchange exposure on a daily basis. The impact of a change in USD / PKR parity on the net

open position is also determined through daily sensitivity analysis.

2018

Foreign currency Foreign currency Off-balance Net foreign

(Rupees in ‘000) assets liabilities sheet items currency exposure
United States Dollar 53,156,310 62,261,533 8,866,423 (238,800)
Pound Sterling 388,758 4,401,088 3,930,921 (81,409)
Japanese Yen 6,880 418 (7,758) (1,296)
Euro 716,843 2,748,793 1,168,113 (863,837)

Other European currencies 6,763 - - 6,763

Other currencies 1,149,276 382,172 (7,112) 759,992
55,424,830 69,794,004 13,950,587 (418,587)

2017

Foreign currency Foreign currency Off-balance Net foreign

(Rupees in ‘000) assets liabilities sheet items currency exposure
United States Dollar 38,383,247 51,443,407 12,538,446 (521,714)

Pound Sterling 538,559 4,155,268 3,400,780 (215,929)
Japanese Yen 10,542 12 (9,462) 1,068

Euro 439,188 1,920,550 1,341,001 (140,361)

Other European currencies 19,136 - (6) 19,130

Other currencies 629,917 122,038 - 507,879
40,020,589 57,641,275 17,270,759 (349,927)
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2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book

Impact of 1% change in foreign
exchange rates on

- Profit and loss account - 142,766 - 178,832
- Other comprehensive income - = - _

46.2.3  EQUITY POSITION RISK

Equity position risk is the risk that the value of equity positions inside the trading book and banking book will change as a
result of general and specific equity market movements. Equity positions are monitored on daily basis through management
action triggers.

The Bank classifies its direct equity investments into held for trading, available for sale, and held to maturity. Held for trading
equity exposures are of a short term nature and are undertaken to earn profit by exploiting market imperfections and short
term price fluctuations. Equities held in the available for sale portfolio are kept with the intent of earning profit due to underlying
fundamental strength of each security. Strategic investments are undertaken in line with the long-term strategy of the Bank,
i.e. to build strategic interest in other concerns. The Bank may also carry indirect equity exposure through financing against
shares and reverse repos against shares.

At the end of financial year 2018 Bank’s entire equity investment portfolio was classified as available for sale. Pretax impact
of 5% change in equity prices on other comprehensive income are provided below;

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Impact of 5% change in equity
prices on
- Profit and loss account - - - -
- Other comprehensive income (196,161) - (165,259) -

46.2.4  YIELD / INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)-BASEL Il SPECIFIC

The Bank’s interest rate exposure arises out from its investment, lending and borrowing activities. Interest Rate Risk in
the Banking Book (IRRBB) in its various forms is the risk of adverse changes in earnings and / or capital due to (i) timing
differences or mismatches in the maturity / repricing period of financial assets and liabilities (repricing risk), (ii) differences
in the basis used for calculating interest rates received and paid (basis risk), (i) and options implicit or explicit in the Bank’s
financial assets and liabilities (options risk). The Asset and Liability Management Committee of the Bank monitors and controls
mismatch of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities on an ongoing basis through its regular meetings. The Market Risk
Management Department monitors interest rate in the banking book from an earnings and economic value perspective.

Key IRRBB measures include:
1. Interest Earnings at Risk (IAR): the rolling 12 months impact of a parallel shift in interest rates on Net Interest Margin.

2. Change in Economic Value of Equity (EVE): the impact of a parallel shift in interest rates on the present value of the Bank’s
cash flows.

3. Repricing Gaps: mismatch between the Bank’s assets and liabilities in terms of repricing time bands. Repricing assumptions
for non-contractual assets and liabilities have been set based on a behavioral study.

2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book

Impact of 1% change in interest rates on

- Profit and loss account 187,870 - (83,402) -
- Other comprehensive income 241,914 (112,193) (640,181) (1,174,622)



46.2.5 MISMATCH OF INTEREST RATE SENSITIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet instruments is based on the earlier of contractual re-pricing or
maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on settlement date.

2018
Efectie Exposed to yield / interest risk Nomineres
Yield / Over 1 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 5 bearing
Interest Upto 1 t03 06 Monthsto 1 t02 t03 to5 t010  Above10  financial
Rupees in 000 rate Total Month Months ~ Months Year Years Years Years Years Years  instruments
On-halance sheet financial instruments
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 49187645 7,946,957 - - - - - - - - 41,240,688
Balances with other banks 340% 4093402 2,691,856 - - - - - - - - 1401546
Lendings to financial institutions 8.18% - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 6.70% 260,233,987  86,382408 39143162 38521,376 22,131,591 33514316 14817524 6880302 12,084,638 - 6,758,670
Advances 752% 343107,147 108,727,112 169371785 40163300 13505710 2113630 1549035 2565112 1,422,033 3689421 -
Assets held for sale 80,720 = = = = = = = = = 80,720
Other assets 10,749,320 = = = = = = = = - 10,749,320
667,452,221 205,748,333 208514947 78684685 35637301 35627946 16366559 9445414 13506671 3689421 60,230,944
Liabilities
Bills payable 15,512,880 - - - - - - - - - || 15,512,880
Borrowings 4.75% | 52,702,323| | 44,932,094 | 1404603|| 5,176,884 = 62914 62914 | 1062914 = = =
Deposits and other accounts 3.97% (573,635,856 (172,941,149 |111,528,281 | 92,767,054 | | 24,332,148 | | 2,589,341 127439 354,198 = | {168,996,246
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease = = = = = = = = = = =
Subordinated debts 866% | 9,993,600 -[| 3,993,600| | 6,000,000 - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 11,178,294 = = = = = 4 = = - | 11,178,294
663,022,953 217,873,243 116926484 103943938 24,332,148 2,652,255 190,353 1,417,112 - - 195,687,420
On-balance sheet gap 4429268 (12,124910) 91,588463 (25259,253) 11,305,153 32975691 16176206 8,028,302 13506671 3,689,421 (135456,476)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Purchase and resale agreements - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale and repurchase agreements 775% 20,806,907 20,806,907 - - - - - - - - -
Commitments to extend credits 19,875,831 19,875,831 = = = = = = = = =
Off-balance sheet gap (40,682,738)  (40,682,738) - - - - - - - - -
Total yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (52,807,648) 91,588,463 (25,259,253) 11305153 32975691 16176206 8,028,302 13506671  3,680421 (135456,476)
Cumulative yield / interest risk sensitivity gap 38780815 13521562 24,826,715  57,802406 73978612 82006914 95513585 99,203,006
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

MISMATCH OF INTEREST RATE SENSITIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2017
Efecie Exposed to yield / interest risk Nonierest
Yield / Over 1 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 5 bearing
Interest Upto 1 to3 to6 Monthsto 1 t02 t03 to5 1010 Above10 financial
Rupees in ‘000 rate Total Month Months Months Year Years Years Years Years Years  instruments
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 44239325 6,998,986 - - - - - - - - 37240339
Balances with other banks 266% 3193835 2,003,756 - - - - - - - - 1,190,079
Lendings to financial institutions 553% 2,250,000 1,750,000 - 500,000 - - - - - - -
Investments 6.54% 314956748 60,251,726 79,866,091 14146848 8228674 50,162,004 40729450 37,923,117 16,694,789 1,736,110  5217,739
Advances 6.35% 258,693,086 83331819 126461,094 29914352 10,196,771 1550144 1004557 1423423 1331078 3479848 -
Assets held for sale 80,720 - - - - - - - - - 80,720
Other assets 9,946,063 - - - - - - - - - 9,946,063
633,359,777 154336,287 206,327,185 44561200 18425645 51,712,148 41734007 39346540 18025867 5215958 53,674,940
Liabilities
Bills payable 10,769,262 - - - - - - - - -1 110,769,262
Borrowings 470% | 71,587,311 | 60,815,038 | 5705697 || 4,926,146 - 46,811 46,811 46,808 - - -
Deposits and other accounts 342% 525,808,308 | 161,728,302 | 103,925,087 | | 89,083,222 | | 19,769,822 | | 1,564,786 141,245 419,392 - - | 149,176,452

Liabilities against assets subject to

finance lease - - - - - - - - - - -

Subordinated debts 753% | 4,992,800 -|| 3995200( | 997,600 - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 9,381,543 - - - - - - - - -|| 9,381,543
622,539.224 222,543,340 113625984 95006968 19,769,622 1,611,597 188,056 466,200 - - 169,327,257
On-balance sheet gap 10820553 (68,207,053 92,701,201 (50445768) (1,344,177) 50,100,551 41,545951 38880340 18025867 5215958 (115652317)
Off-halance sheet financial instruments
Purchase and resale agreements 6.08%  1,515752 1,000,668 - 515,084 - - - - - - -
Sale and repurchase agreements 567% 49250012 47593754 1,048,963 607,295 - - - - - - -
Commitments to extend credits 14,826,508 14,826,508 - - - - - - - - -
Off-alance sheet gap (62,560,768) (61,419,504  (1,048963)  (@2211) - - - - - - -
Total yield /interest sk sensitivity gap (129626,647) 91,652,238 (50,637,979)  (1344,177) 50,100,551 41545951 38,880,340 18,025,867 5215958 (115,652,317)
Cumulative yield / interest risk sensitivty gap (37,974409) (88512,388) (89,856,565) (39,756,014)  1,789937 40670277 58,696,144 63,912,102

46.25.1 Yield risk is the risk of decline in earnings due to adverse movement of the yield curve.
46.25.2 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates.

46253 Assets do not include fixed assets of Rs. 12,791,827 thousand (2017: Rs. 9,885,958 thousand), Intangible assets of
Rs. 741,361 thousand (2017: Rs. 842,869 thousand) and other assets consisting of advances, advance rent and other
prepayments, advance taxation, non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims, mark to market gain on forward foreign
exchange contracts-net, suspense account, stationary and stamps in hand and acceptances of Rs. 19,938,596 thousand
(2017: Rs. 16,962,971 thousand).

46.254 Liabilities do not include other liabilities consisting of unearned commission and income, advance payments, acceptances,
branch adjustment account, mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts-net, provision against off-balance
sheet items, withholding taxes payable, federal excise duty and Workers’ Welfare Fund of Rs. 10,483,645 thousand (2017: Rs.
7,716,682 thousand).

46.3  OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and external events.
The Bank strives to manage operational risk within acceptable levels through sound operational risk management practices.

Board Risk Management Committee defines the operational risk appetite and tolerance limits. Operational risk governance
structure adopted by Bank is embedded within three lines of defense: Strategic, Macro and Micro.
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The Bank already has in place an Operational Risk Management framework which is aligned with global best market practices.
The Bank has dedicated functions to manage Operational Risk, Business Continuity Risk and Information Security Risk
governed through comprehensive frameworks in line with international best practices.

46.3.1  OPERATIONAL RISK-DISCLOSURES BASEL Il SPECIFIC
Basel Il Basic Indicator Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Operational Risk.
46.4  LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk reflects an enterprises inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Bank’s liquidity position is managed
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO). ALCO monitors the maintenance of financial position ,liquidity
ratios, depositors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
deposits and liquidity contingency plans. Moreover, core retail deposits (current accounts and savings accounts) form a
considerable part of the Bank’s overall funding and significant importance is attached to the stability and growth of these
deposits.
46.4.1  MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - BASED ON CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE BANK
2018
Over 1 Over7  Over14 Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over9 Over 1 Over2 Over 3
Upto 1 to7 to1d  daystot to2 to3 to6 to9 months to2 to3 to5 Over
Rupees in ‘000 Total day days days month months months  months months 1o 1 year years years year 5 year
Assets
Cashand blnces it reasurybanks 49107645 1506698 9520189 11106868 26973870 - - - - - - - - -
Belances ith o bk 40840 10988 132200 BTSN 1884015 - - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financialinsftutions - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 260,233,967 62177 86516957 361,264 542581 40533203 2886925 4026462 262539 104257406  241349% 4288116 6103385 797945
Advances MBAOTIT B0 ABBM TIORED  GRTOG060 222163 GBS 2610058 10715054 12634306 SEI3 18764056 41303180 55276703
Fied asels 8T 400 401 8701 6703 T26 TG 212080 ATSH A0S 60T 570 6ISR 100487
Itangle assts 741,361 2503 160 R4 WS TeT4 1674 A4 006 48006 18835 160 6% 4047
Asets held or s 80720 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 37137119 nin 1037 498210 1,209939 14872 14873 44619 44619 166,490 139272 416276 726399 -
Other assets 32522174 - - - 7610189 - - - - - 5013459 5073459 4920605 9844462
65200 210 BB 13509815 12110895 7280072 AIG06 04340R AT T4 23000 285095 BI6ATI 83235905
Liabilities
Bils pyeble 15512800 || 164696 (| 968174\ 1152870 || 2799827 || 188160|| 188160|| Se4dTd|| 4738257 4738267 - - - -
Borrowings 52,702,323 518,324 || 25569337 || 9239492 || 8811509 702302 702302(| 5970618 - - 62813 62813 || 1062813 -
Deposits and other accounts 573,635,856 || 2160920 || 13,818,088 || 17,902,958 || 39,123,700 | | 12,587,223 || 26,239,505 | 13,398,674 || 570,289 || 18,466,762 || 102,518,050 | | 99,867,856 || 105,237,308 | | 116,344,503
Liabilties against assets subject to
finance lease - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Suborinted ebts 9993600 - - - - - 400 - - §0[| 1600 1600||  3200|| 998560
Deferred tax liabiities - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabiles 21,178 476 362867 2177202 2540089 6,159,514 - - - - - 4960412 2484706 1242353 1,242,353
673023135 3206807 42552801 30835389 56894550 13477685 27130767 19933771 10703546 23200839 107,551,875 102416975 107545674 127,572,456
Nt asses BEBIT (1035468 5570 (TABTH GA2I4TS SO 1471220 10500311 O5TAZS  OATBGH5  (B4A04BS) (385080 (RRTB0B0) (4436551)
Share Capital 12,602,602
=)
Reserves 15543179 §
Unappropriated profit 3713929 +
Surplus on revaluation of assets 1,649,197 §
o
33508907 =
2
<
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2017

Over 1 Over7  Over 14 Over 1 Over2  Over3 Over 6 Over9 Over 1 Over2 Over3

Upto 1 to7 014 daystol to2 to3 06 109 months 02 03 t05 Over
Rupees in ‘000 Total day days days month months months  months months o1 year years years year 5year
Assets

Gash and balances with treasury banks 44239325 1421075 8562450 9989525 24,260,275 - - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 3193835 97,684 586,106 683,780 1,660,631 - - 1656%6 - - - - - -
Lendings o financial insttutions 2,250,000 - 1,000,000 - 750000 - - 500000 - - - - - -
Investments 314,956,748 83475 28314037 20862 19726 61757769 17074105 307524 8716783 0702 56242768 42056480 41230252 22801035
Advances 258693086 5028057 1467846 142503 4647493 20179166 30604415 17552562 16618023 14327502 1479617 12857348 27889001 49452021
Fired assets 9,885,958 6,174 JoT B2 104965 69,195 69195 203614 197515 197515 75088 621056 76084 6820559
Infangile assets 842,869 1807 10841 12647 30715 16,654 16,654 48898 48407 48407 185473 181207 155,102 86,057
Assets held for sale 80,720 - - - - - - - - 80,720 - - - -
Deferred ax assets 100,75 - - - (0265 - - - - 165267 nar o 468 (41802 -
Other assets BABW 214769 1288613 1503362 3651071 - - - - - 44385 4438556 4304384 860868
662691395 6839041 41266939 13875620 108919553 82022784 47854369 21545934 25580728 15226523 76422749 61370925 73997781  87,768.440

Liahilties
Bills payable 10769262 || 114334|| 686005 || 800339 || 1943679|| 130623 130622 391870|| 3285895 3285895 - - - -
Borrowings 71587311 - || 46301734 || 2104172 || 12315664 || 2429178|| 3.276518|| 4929612 - - 6811|| 4681t 46811 -
Deposits and other accounts 525008308 || 2905125 || 13219559 || 16,821,804 || 35,025,032 || 12,615,755 | | 24076473 || 14849262 || 9,522,028 || 11948534 || 92,310,926 | 91,051,010 || 96,1937 | 105,268,621

Liahilties ageinst assets subject to

finance lease - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Suborinted cetts 4992400 - - - - - 80 an SI[ || 200f| S0000|| S0100|| 3967.200
Deferred ta liabiltes - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Otfer liabltes 17008223 || 202717)| 176,300 || 2049016 || 4,976,186 - - - - =[] 4012001(] 2006001 || 1,008,001 || 1,003,001

630295904 3312176 62053598 21775331 54260561 15175566 27484413 017094 12807928 15285429 96371738 93603822 97745301 110269022

Net assets 32435491 3526865 (20,786,659 (7,899,702) 54698992 6684728 20369956 1374990 12772805 (8906) (19.948,989) (32232807) (23,747,610) (22490,582)
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 11,840,757
Unappropriated profit 2849878
Surplus on revaluation of assets 5,142,254
32435491
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MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - BASED ON EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE BANK

2018
QOver 1 Over 3 QOver 6 Over 1 QOver 2 QOver 3 Over 5
Upto 1 03 to6 Months to to2 03 o5 to10  Above 10
Rupees in ‘000 Total Month Months Months 1 Year Years Years Years Years Years
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 49,187,645 - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 4,093,402 4,093,402 - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 260233987 88383514 42425539 24205589 23100535 35988493 16346609 9887679 16430673 3465356
Advances MI074T T251 543 2679471 40739515 37366880 25146525 24174350 25495064 24636501 20,347,298
Fixed assets 12,791,827 127,105 145,233 212,980 415,111 692,217 532,730 611,512 606,164 9,448,715
Intangible assets 741,361 71,607 33,448 49438 96,011 188,395 116,359 99,69 80,408 -
Assets held for sale 80,720 - - - 80,720 - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 339 2,206,359 29,745 44619 211,109 139,272 416,276 726,399 - -
Other assets 252174 761,308 - - - 5074206 5074206 4920818 4920818 4920818
706,532,042 224208483 115313436 65252141 61270366 67,229,168 46,660,530 41741167 46674564 38,182,187
Liabilities
Bills payable 15,512,880 | | 5,105,567 - 940,799| | 9,466,514 - - - - -
Borrowings 52,702,323 | | 44932,093| | 1,404,603 5,176,884 - 62,914 62914| | 1,062915 - -
Deposits and other accounts 573,635,856 | | 74515512 || 38,650,491 | | 13503597 | 24,332,148 || 102,319,759 | | 99,857,857 | 105,060,562| | 57,697,965 | 57,697,965
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease = = = = = = = = = e
Subordinated debts 9,993,600 - 800 - 800 1,600 1,600 32001 | 3,985,600 | 6,000,000
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 1178476 | | 11,239,653 - - - 4969412| | 2484706| | 1,242,353 621,176 621,176
673023135 135792825  40,055804 19621280 33799462 107,353,685 102407,077  107,369030 62304741 64319141
Net assets 33508907 88415658 75257542 45630861 27470904  (40124517)  (55,746,547) (65,627,863  (15630177) (26,136,954
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 15,543,179
Unappropriated profit 3,713,929
Surplus on revaluation of assets 1,649,197
33,508,907
2017
QOver 1 QOver 3 QOver 6 Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 QOver 5
Upto 1 t03 to6 Months to t02 t03 t05 to10  Above 10
Rupees in ‘000 Total Month Months Months 1 Year Years Years Years Years Years
Assets
(Cash and balances with treasury banks 44239325 44,239,325 - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 3,193,835 3,193,835 - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial initutions 2,250,000 1,750,000 - 500,000 - - - - - -
Investments 314,956,748 61,706,100 78,056,410 2505045 9062963 56,587,498 42894352 40835242 20307688 3,001,450
Advances 258693086 48336014 55687484 26349408 27535609 20769064 16773598 24290768 22376564 16,574,577
Fixed assets 9,885,958 191,407 138,390 203,614 395,029 755,058 621,036 760,844 611,749 6,208811
Intangible assets 842,869 56,010 33,308 48,898 96,814 185,473 181,207 155,102 86,057 -
Assets held for sale 80,720 - - - 80720 - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 100,755 (210,265) - - 165,267 namn 416,278 (341,802) - -
(Other assets 28448099 6,657,835 - - - 443855 4438556 4304384 4304384 4304384
662,691,395 165920261 133915592 29606965 37,336,402 82806926 65325047 70004538 47,686,442 30,089,222
Liabilities
Bils payable 10,769,262 | | 3,544,357 - 653,116| | 6,571,789 - - - - -
Borrowings 71,587,311 | | 60,815,038 || 5,705,697 4,926,143 - 46,811 46811 46,811 - -
Deposits and other accounts 525,808,308 | | 69,477,571 || 36423266 | | 150666,785| | 19,769,822 || 92,309926| | 90,886,385 | 96,099,115 | 52587,720| | 52,587,718
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease - - - - - - - - - -
Subordinated debts 4,992,800 - 800 20 1,000 2,000 500,000 501,600 | 3,987,200 -
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 17,098,223 | | 9074217 - - -1 4012003) | 2,006,002| | 1,003,001 501,500 501,500
630255904 142911183 42129763 21246244 26342611 96370740 93439198 97650527 57,076,420 53,089,218
Net assets 32435491 23009078 91,785,829 8360721 10993791  (13563814)  (28,114151) (27645989  (9,389,978)  (22,999,99)
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 11,840,757
Unappropriated profit 2849878
Surplus on revaluation of assets 5,142,254
32,435,491
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

46.5  DERIVATIVE RISK

The Bank at present does not offer structured derivative products such as interest rate swaps, forward rate swaps, forward
rate agreements or foreign exchange options nor does it deal in market making and foreign exchange hedging.

Bank’s derivative exposure is limited to hedging transactions undertaken by Treasury in instruments such as forward exchange
contracts.

The Risk Management Division monitors Bank’s overall derivative exposure in forward exchange contracts, which are marked
to market and are included in Bank’s overall portfolio measures of volatility including Value at Risk (VaR). Further, VaR is
separately monitored for forward exchange contracts. Derivative exposures are also included in Bank’s capital charge and risk
weighted assets calculation in accordance with SBP Regulations.

4]. GENERAL
47.1  NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 21, 2019 has proposed the following appropriations, which will be
approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31,2018 do not include the effect of the appropriations which will be accounted for in the unconsolidated financial statements
for the year ending December 31, 2019 as follows:

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

Transfer from unappropriated profit to:
Proposed final cash dividend - Re. 1 per share (2017: NIL) 1,260,260 -
General reserve 2,453,669 2,849,878

472  Captions as prescribed by BPRD Circular No. 2 dated January 25, 2018 issued by the SBP in respect of which there are no
amounts have not been reproduced in these unconsolidated financial statements except for the unconsolidated statement of
financial position and unconsolidated profit and loss account.

48. RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES
There have been no significant reclassifications in these unconsolidated financial statements except amount of Rs. 6,116

thousand for the year ended December 31, 2017, which has been reclassified from other assets to other liabilities.

49. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on February 21, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the
Bank.

Bl BN b o8

Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Director Chairman
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ANNEXURE-1
DECEMBER 31,2018

Statement in terms of sub-section (3) of section 33-A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 in respect of written off loans or any
other financial reliefs of Rs 500,000 or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2018 as referred to in note
9.5 to these financial statements.

(Rupeesin ‘000)

Qutstanding liabilities at beginning of the year

Interest / Other

Name of Individuals / (ther than Mark-up Financial
S Name and address Partners / Directors Interest/  Interest Principal ~ Waived-off/ relief
No. ~of the Borrower (with NIC/ CNIC No.) Father's / Husband's Name Principl ~~ Mark-up  / Mark-up Total  Written-off  Written-off provided Total
1 Muhammad Tanveer Muhammad Tanveer Muhammad Rafique - 589 - 589 - 589 - 589
Haji Pura Road, Bogarah, Sialkot 34603-8477298-7
2 Tele Medc (Pvl) Ltd. Jawad lgbal Muzaffar lgbal 4,988 2302 - 1290 - 1,791 - 1,791
160-B, Ahmed Block, New 34202-7990009-9
(Garden Town, Lahore Raja Imran Ashfag Raja M. Ashfaq
37405-8677058-1
Irfan Bashir Muhammad Bashir
42201-0665722-5
3 Sardar Qamar Hayat Sardar Qamar Hayat Sardar Muhammad Hayat 2,000 2,662 - 4662 - 1997 - 1997
Moza Matta PO Khas Tehsil & 35102-5817370-3
Distt. Kasur
4 Waseem Akram Waseem Akram Karim 3,000 3093 - 6,093 - 2165 - 2,165
Muhalla Faroogia Kot Radha 35104-0357250-5
Kishan Distt, Kasur
5 Izhar ulHag Cheema [zhar ul Hag Cheema Asghar Al 1,000 902 - 1902 - 02 - 102
335102 Near Sheikn Hospital, 35401-5565363-7
Ferozwala Distt. Sheikhupura
6 Muhammad Yagoob / Muhammad Yaqoob / Abdul Knan/
Intakhab Ahmad Intakhab Ahmad Muhammad Yagoob 14% 938 - 2434 - 554 - 554
Mouza Shamor P/0 & Tehl 34102-66899585-1/
Kamoki Distt. Gujranwala 34102-5880708-3
7 Ahmad Yar Ahmad Yar Noora 1,500 1733 - 3233 - 1,207 - 1.7
Bukhari Tehsil & Distt. Chiniot 33201-1538097-9
8 Saadat Yar Khan Tareen Saadat Yar Khan Tareen Hamid Yar Khan Tareen 1,000 856 - 1856 - 633 - 633
Mathoo Bair Khazam Tehil 33201-2263158-3
Ahmadpur Shargia
9 Abdul Rauf Anjum Abdul Rauf Anjum Ahmad Yar 1,000 1,1% - 21% - 896 - 896
Bukhari, Tenil & Distt. Chiniot 33201-1532659-7
10 Muhammad Anwar Muhammad Anwar Muhammad Ayub 5 25 1,331 1610 - 14 1,204 1435
Ward # 09, Dikot Faisalabad 33103-2467998-1
11 Madni Poly Corporation Muhammad Aslam Shahid Sheikh Allah Bushk - - 834 834 - - 834 834
Near rshad Hospital G.T Road 34101-0228356-3
Sadhoki, Gujranwala Muhammad Akram Sheikh Allah Bushk
34101-2305844-1
Muhammad Ashraf Sheiknh Alah Bushk
34101-2725085-5
12 Madni Poly Tex Pvt Ltd. Muhammad Aslam Shahid Sheikh Allah Bushk - - 1,215 1,215 - - 1,215 1,275
Near rshad Hospital G.T Road 34101-0226356-3
Sadhoki, Gujranwala Muhammad Akram Sheikh Allah Bushk
34101-2305844-1
Muhammad Ashraf Sheiknh Allah Bushk
34101-2725085-5
13 Mazhar Ali Zaidi Mazhar Al Zaidi Syed Haziq Ali Zaidi 605 halk 1,788 2610 - Jall 1733 1950
House # B-15, Dara Khusham 42201-4025527-5
Villa karachi
14 Sakhawat Al Shah Sakhawat Al Shah Syed Azhar Hussain 26 i 4638 4925 - 2 4604 4626 ©
H 4 1638-C, Fawwara Chowk 61101-3535440-3 g
Peaples Colony # 2 Faisalabad 3
15 Muhammad Hanif Transport Company M Hanif Amegr Rehman Khan 1455 603 45688 6,646 - 570 441 5,047 g
155 Hazrat Bilal Colony Sector 42201-0367389-7 5
8/A Korangi, Karachi x
T
16 Muhammad Javed lgbal Tarhana Muhammad Javed lgbal Tarhana ~~ Mehar Khan Muhammad Terhana 3,000 2,126 - 5,126 - 2,044 - 2,04 2
Chak No 659 GB PO Chak 53368 35201-8785629-3 g

Tehsil & Distt, Faisalabad
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ANNEXURE-1

DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Rupees in‘000)
Qutstanding liabiities at beginning of the year
Interest/ Other
Name of Individuals / (ther than Mark-up Financial
S Name and address Partners / Directors Interest/  Interest Principal ~ Waived-off/ relief
No.  of the Borrower (with NIG / CNIC No.) Father's / Husband's Name Principal ~ Mark-up ~ / Mark-up Totdl  Writen-off  Written-off provided Total
17 Railjaz Ahmad Rai fjaz Ahmad Rai Zulfigar Ahmad 2469 3710 - 6,179 - 2597 - 2597
Moza Abaidwala Tehsil & Distt 35402-7708760-7
Nankana Sahib
18 Zuhra Khanum Zutra Khanum Aman Ullgh Khan 2,000 1307 - 3307 - 914 - 914
Moza Ratta Khanna Tensil 35301-1916436-2
Depalpur Distt. Okara
19 Muhammad Arshad Muhammad Arshad Muhammad Sadique Virk 2400 2,976 - 5376 - 223 - 223

Dograna Wala Milian P/0 Chak 34103-1445845-7
Choudary Distt. Gujranwala
20 Lt Gen Safdar Hussain Lt Gen Safdar Hussain Muhammad lgbal - 8,774 - 8,774 - 4387 - 4387
H #03,5t #03,Sec-D DHA 61101-1980354-5
Phase-01, Rawalpindi

21 Amir Hussain Amir Hussain Zahid Hussain 14719 3040 1455 19214 - 2037 1,004 3041
H 4 B-18,Blok N, North 42101-8061397-5
Nazimabad, Karachi

22 Aftab Shabir Aftab Shabir Bashir Ahmad 4% m 4368 5,064 - 28 4305 4533
St# 3-B, Bilal Colony Oid 36302-7785339-1
Shujabad Road, Multan

23 Anfisham Ahmed Antisham Ahmed Shafique Ahmed 39 86 25 m - 259 285 544
Hit52-B Setteite Town, 34603-6269804-9
Gujranwala

24 Kamlash Kumar Kamlash Kumar Bhagwan Das 2478 1,006 142 3,626 - 484 14 626

Flat # K-803, 8th Floor, Sea Breeze 42000-0561533-3
Gondominium Sub Plot # FI-3

Block 2 KDA Scheme # 5
(Clitton, Karachi
25 Kanwal Javed Kanwal Javed Mudassir Babar 961 524 268 1,753 - 513 268 781
H# 3-A, St 10, Sector 17301-6418807-4
F-8/3, slamabad
26 AlMadina Transport Co Yousaf Khan Dilawar Khan 2,266 - 8,058 10,344 - - 8,058 8,058
Plot 440 Sec-4 Biji 42401-3763532-3
Nager, Karachi
27 Nisar Fillng Station Zubair Ahmed Nisar Afmed 195 1522 1713 3430 - - 1713 1713
Sheikhpura Road Near Bakar 34101-3871613-9
Mandi, Gujranwala
28 Pervaiz lgbal Pervaiz lobal Mureed Hussain 806 1,087 120 1,963 - 829 I 873
Chak 4 88/10 R, Allama lqbal 36102-1937152-5
Town, Khangwal
29 Chaudhry Khurram Imran Chaudhry Khurram Imran Ch Muhammad Shafi 2390 850 23 3523 - 609 163 m
House # 36, Rehman Garden Block 35404-1563592-7
W Mauza Qila Amegr Sing,
Sheikhupura
30 Soft Marketing & Real Estate Abdul Mateen Ahmed 2960 1,585 - 4545 - 1123 - 1128
Shop No.201, Panorama 42301-1985555-9
Centre, Saddar, Karachi
31 Leisure Textiles Limited Azhar lqbal Chaudhry Muhammad Iqbal 50,000 6,970 - 56910 - 6,970 - 6,970
136-H, Canal View Cooprative 35200-1456813-9
Housing Society, Lahore. Azgem Zafar Zafar lobal Chaudhry
2 91506-0126909-7
'E 32 Afzaal Bari Cheema Afzaal Bari Cheema Ghulam Bari 431 24,19 - 29,169 - 11,358 - 11,358
i House No.32, Stret No.1, 35200-6686039-1
< Habiba Colony, Mustafaabad,
3 Lafore,
5 33 Magna Steel (Pt) Ltd Muhammad Tariq lgbal Mughal ~ Bashir Ahmed Mughal 414016 102,066 - 516,082 - 97,593 - 97,593
5 19 Banglore Town, Black 7/8 35201-9057040-1
< KCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Abdul Ghani Dada Haji Abdul Ghaffar
106 Karachi 42401-0336246-7



(Rupees in ‘000)

Qutstanding liabilitis at beginning of the year

Interest / Other
Name of Individuals / Other than Mark-up Financial
S Name and address Partngrs / Directors Interest/  Interest Principal ~ Waived-off/ relief
No. of the Borrower (with NIG./ CNIC No.) Father's  Husband's Name Principal ~ Mark-up  /Mark-up Total  Written-off ~ Written-off provided Total
34 Globe Textile Mills (OE) Ltd (Gul Bano Haji Habib Haji Habib 38,192 28,088 66,280 28,558 28,558
105, 1st Floor,lbrahim Trade 42201-4820491-3
Tower Shahrah-- Faisal Karachi Arshad Arif Arif
42000-0517024-2
Arif Haji Habib Haji Habib
42301-0946950-1
Farzana Arf Arif
42301-0861851-0
Mishah Arif Arif
42301-0874206-0
Humaira Arshad Arshad
42301-5162481-4
Saman Arif Arif
42301-4794484-4
Maroon Haji Habib
42201-2232952-0
35 Popular Board (Pvt) Lid. Ahsan Elahi Iqbal 17247 11,338 28,585 4034 4034
11113 Siddiq Wahab Road, 42201-5775907 -3
Timber Market, Karachi Abdul Aziz Iqbal
42201-824469-1
Adnan Iqbal Iqbal
42201-8719969-1
Adeel lgbal Iqbal
42201-8729364-1
36 Sherwani Engingering Sales Tasngem Ahmed Khan Fareed Ahmed Khan 3,000 2331 5331 1837 1837
& Services 41303-5439451-9
Plot # N-4 situated in Sindh Industrial
Trading Estate Kotri & Plot #
1052,Pathan Goth Hyderabad
37 Muhammad Mehboob khan Muhammad Mehboob Khan Muhammad Akram 2,200 1639 383 1,283 1,253
Moza Saldera Tehsil Burewala 36601-1560192-5
Distt, Vehari
38 Ghulam Murtaza (Ghulam Murtaza Zafar Ulah 842 887 1729 665 665
Kot Pannah P/0 Khas Tehsil & 34301-4063092-7
Distt. Hafizabad
39 Kareem Baksh Kareem Baksh Muhabat Khan 490 807 1207 605 605
Noshehra PO Bhowana Tehsil 33201-1861568-9
Chiniot Distt. Jhung
40 Khalid Hussain Khalid Hussain Ghulam Muhammad 3,000 2783 5783 2783 2783
Kot Chiaan P0. pindi Bharay 34301-2667455-9
Tehsil 7 Distt. Hafizabad
41 Salman Liagat Kalayar Salman Liagat Kalayar Liagat Ali Khan Shaheen 999 1,001 2,090 818 818
Chak # 352, GB Jaranwala 34603-39420246-1
Faisalabad
42 Malik Rizwan Akbar Malik Rizwan Akbar Malk Saeed Ahmed 3,000 79 301 4020 539 207 46
H#167-8, Sector 2 Cantt View 34603-2161546-3
Housing Colony Gujranwala
43 Ingha Amin Insha Amin Ch Muhammad Amin 458 253 38 1,089 320 302 622
H# 52-F, Gulberg Il Lahore 35202-6642959-1
44 Imran Khan Jadoon Imran Khan Jadoon Masiab Khan Jadoon 1,659 808 97 2,560 542 5 594
SSTL Office Near Wapda Greed
Station Murree Road Abbotabad 17301-9087579-3
45 Muhammad Tahir Muhammad Tahir Altaf Ur Rehman 2160 Al 1 3028 1 L 868
H 4163, Madina Colony Near 36302-0485902-3
(Grain Market Opposite Government
Johar High School Multan
46 AL-Aziz Route Transport Co Ismail Hasni Kareem Hasni 2103 - 8,369 10472 8,440 8,440
0l KTC Bus Depot, Dawood 42201-1471046-3
Chowrangi Landhi, Karachi
47 Khyber Flying Coach Sohail Anjum Abdul Mannan 828 8 6,693 7806 8 6913 6,998
H# 742, St#17,Qasimabad, 37405-7009188-9

Rawalpindi
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ANNEXURE-1

DECEMBER 31,2018
(Rupees in‘000)
Qutstanding liabiities at beginning of the year
Interest / (ther
Name of Individuals / (ther than Mark-up Financial
S Name and address Partners / Directors Interest/  Interest Principal ~ Waived-off/ relief
No.  of the Borrower (with NIG / CNIC No.) Father's / Husband's Name Principal ~ Mark-up ~ / Mark-up Totdl  Writen-off  Written-off provided Total
48 A-Munaf Garments Muhammad Munaf Abdul Sattar 125 94 - 1,069 - 883 - 883
Shop No.107 & 108, 2nd Floor, 42101-2381014-1
Mateen Plaza, Tariq Road, Karachi
49 Imran Haider Imran Haider Ghulam Muhammad - 1,257 - 1,257 - 1,257 - 1,251
P-1180/8 Street # 6, Mohallah 33100-0715400-3
Siddique Abad, Faisalabad.
50 LashTrading Saim Magsood Magsood Ahmad 5,000 1,820 - 6,620 - 1,820 - 1,820
440 FF, Phase IV, DHA,, Lahore. 34603-2286953-5
Ch. Muhammad Boota Road, Aisha Bilal Saim Magsood
Nai Abadi, Pacca Garha, Stalkot. 34603-9324415-2
51 Khawaja Tougeer Khawaja Tougeer Khawaja Abdul Rauf 1999 1,337 . 3,336 - 1,286 - 1,286
77 - Kashmir Block, Allama 35202-2289796-8
Iqbal Town, Lahore.
52 Muhammad Tasleem Muhammad Tasleem Muhammad lbrahim 69 15 - T84 - 536 - 536
Moaza Lala Mehar Chand Tehsil 33302-9755469-9
Kamalia Distt, TTS
53 Zufigar Al Chegma Lulfigar Ali Cheema Ch Sana Ullah 1,000 1,326 - 232 - - 995 995
House 4 55, Umar Block 35202-1500138-7
Allama lqbal Town Lahore
54 Iftikhar Ahmad & Zuffigar Al Iftikhar Ahmad & Zulfigar Al Lulfigar Ali & Sharif u Din 1592 847 - 2439 - 508 - 508
Batak P/0 Basir Pur Tehsl Depal 35301-3559995-3, 36301-1917395-3
Pur Distt Okara
55 Khalig Dad Khalig Dad M Khurshegd Alam 2,000 234 - 434 - 1,743 - 1743
Bukhari Tehsl & Dist, Chiniot 33201-7568160-3
5 Muhammad Zashan Aslam Muhammad Zaghan Aslam Muhammad Afzal 2,000 1,860 - 3,860 - 1,390 - 1390
PO Mandi Shah Jevna Kilcha 33202-0641622-7
Tehsil & Distt. Jhung
57 Ghulam Batool Ghulam Batool Muhammad Afzal 1,000 1,046 - 2,046 - T84 - 84
PO Mandi Shah Jevna Kilcha 33100-0887166-8
Thsil & Distt. Jhung
58 Muhammad Amin Mian Muhammad Amin Mian Ch Barkat Ali 48 805 - 1,253 - 563 - 563
Chak # 130/E.B. Tehsil Burewala 36601-6444727-9
Distt, Vehari
59 Muhammad Hussain Muhammad Hussain Dost Muhammad 3% 820 - 1216 - 615 - 615
Moaza Thatha Gajju Tehsil Pindi 34302-4230234-1
Bhatian Distt, Hafizabad
60 ChAliljaz Samra Ch Al faz Samra Ch jaz Ahmad Samra 214 1,808 - 4532 - 1,248 - 1,208
Mallan Wala P/0 Ghage Wala 34104-2340218-7
Tehsil Wazirabad Distt, Gujranwala
61 A.D. Media Consultant Syed Mumtaz Hassan Zaidi Syed Wasi Hassan Zaidi T84 1,076 - 1,860 - 1,054 - 1,054
Mefran Centre, Near Three 42000-8565515-1
Swords, Clfton, Karachi
62 Seven Seas International Syed Anwar Iftikhar Zaidi Syed Iftikhar Ahmed Zaidi 26,000 5 - 26,175 - 1,051 - 1,01
(-3, Fish Harbour, West 42301-1096180-5
Wharf, Karachi
63 J.A.Sons Javed Al Wazeer Al 6,940 1432 - 83712 - 117 - 117
(lazi Building, Chabba Street,
Jodia Bazar, Karachi 42301-5649454-3
64 Husnain Cotex Lid. Husnain Yousat Muhammad Yousat - 24,697 - g9 - 24,667 - 24,667
2 242-Ahmad Block, New Garden 33202-0601133-3
= Town, Lahore Jahanzeb Masood Muhammad Masood
= 33200-1186603-7
v, Ammar Al Muhammad Aamer Yameen Khian
S 35202-8834511-1
m Sajjad Hussain Noor Muhammad
5 42401-3665606-9
-
%)
<

—
o
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(Rupees in ‘000)

Qutstanding liabilitis at beginning of the year

Interest / Other
Name of Individuals / Other than Mark-up Financial
S Name and address Partngrs / Directors Interest/  Interest Principal ~ Waived-off/ relief
No. of the Borrower (with NIG./ CNIC No.) Father's  Husband's Name Principal ~ Mark-up  /Mark-up Total  Written-off ~ Written-off provided Total
65 Mira Pakistan Husnain Yousaf Muhammad Yousaf 1,854 1,854 1,854 1,854
242-Ahmad Block, New Garden 33202-0601133-3
Town, Lahore Jahanzeb Masood Muhammad Masood
33202-1186603-7
Ammar Al Muhammad Aamer Yameen Khan
35202-8834511-1
Sajjad Hussain Noor Muhammad
42401-3665606-9
66 Ahsan Mills (Pvt) Lid. Shaikh Ashfag Afmad Bashir Ahmad 6,310 13991 20,301 13991 13991
Lahore Multan Road, Chak No. 36502-1378032-3
136/9-L, Sahiwal Saima Sadaf Shaikh Ashfag Amad
274-B-1, 1st Floor, Alpha Tower, 36502-1305750-0
High Street, Sahiwal
67 Lalazar Textile Mills (Pvf) Ltd. Shaikh Ashfag Amad Bashir Ahmad 4499 4499 4499 4499
274-B-1, 1st Floor, Alpha Tower, 36502-1378032-3
High Street, Sahiwal Saima Sadaf Shaikn Ashfaq Ahmad
36502-1305750-0
68 Capital Steel Mils Muhammad Saleem Mian Noor Muhammad 5,996 3,062 9,058 242 242
17-Km Sheikhupura Road Lahore 35202-5040211-3
Zafar Masood Sher Muhammad
35202-3528815-7
Muhammad Amin Mian Noor Muhammad
35202-9530057-3
69 Samin Textiles Limited Jahanzeb Amin Sarmad Amin 114,995 4103 119,098 1434 1434
8-KM, Off Manga Raiwind Road, 35202-0678117-5
Tehsil & Distt, Kasur Mehrash Amin Amin
35202-7529469-4
Safdar Hussain Tarig Jaffar Hussain
35202-7560182-5
Jamil Masood Iqbal Masood
61101-1880963-1
Tari Jillani Mian Ghulam Jilani
35201-2601114-9
Sheharyar Amin Amin
35202-3737616-9
(amber Hamid Hamid
35201-2796208-1
70 Ashiq Hussain Ashi Hussain Rehmat Al 5795 1612 538 7,945 403 538 941
H# 230, Jnelum Block D.C 45501-1865218-9
Colony, Gujranwala
71 Farzana Shoukat Farzana Shoukat Brig (R) Shaukat Mehmood 3466 999 156 4621 499 156 655
House # 12, Lang # 14, Sector H, 13101-0879048-0
Phase Il DHA, Islamabad
72 Altaf Shahrukh & Company Muhammad Hanif Muhammad Sulaman 1,246 1715 33,256 Qa1 1,663 314 34,804
(0ff 4512, 5th Fir Uni Shopping 42201-3381308-7
Centre, Karachi
73 Altaf Shahirukh & Company Muhammad Hanif Muhammad Sulaman 17818 5218 84742 107778 5,166 84,677 89,843
(ff # 512, 5th Fir Uni Shopping 42201-3381308-7
Centre, Karachi
74 Bilal Ahmed Bilal Ahmed Muhammad Shafique 102 407 509 102 407 509
BB-563,St#1,Imam Bargah, 37405-0584153-9
Rawalpindi
TOTAL 814036 312205 166430 1202671 261,066 166,174 427,40
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Askari Bank Limited

—_
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ANNEXURE-2
REPORT OF SHARIAH BOARD FOR THE YEAR 2017

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful.

1. While the Board of Directors and Executive Management are solely responsible to ensure that the operations of Askari Ikhlas
Islamic Banking are conducted in a manner that comply with Shariah Principles at all times, we are required by the SBP’s
Shariah Governance Framework to submit a report on the overall Shariah compliance environment of Askari Ikhlas Islamic
Banking.

2. To form our opinion as expressed in this report, the Shariah Compliance Department of the bank carried out reviews, on test
check basis, of each class of transactions, the relevant documentation and process flows. Further, we have also reviewed the
Shariah audit reports.

Based on above, we are of the view that:

vi.

vii.

Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking has complied with the Shariah rules and principles in the light of fatawa, rulings and
guidelines issued by its Shariah Board.

Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking has complied with directives, regulations, instructions and guidelines related to Shariah
compliance issued by SBP in accordance with the rulings of SBP’s Shariah Board.

Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking has a comprehensive mechanism in place to ensure Shariah compliance in their overall
operations.

Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking has a well-defined system in place which is sound enough to ensure that any earnings
realized from sources or by means prohibited by Shariah have been credited to charity account and are being properly
utilized. During the Year 2018 charity amount of Rs. 25.15million was realized, out of which Rs. 0.43million was due
to Shariah non-compliance.

Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking has complied with the SBP instructions on profit and loss distribution and pool
management.

The BoD appreciates the importance of Shariah compliance in the products and processes of the bank and the same
shall be further strengthened through orientation sessions / trainings.

The Shariah Board has been provided adequate resources enabling it to discharge its duties, effectively.

3. Training and capacity building remains the key area which requires improvement. It is imperative to arrange trainings and
orientation sessions for the staff and the management to further enhance their level of awareness, capacity and understanding
about Islamic banking and importance of Shariah Compliance.

Mufti Muhammad Zahid
Chairman Shariah Board

BMUL'MM-/‘ &

Mufti Ismatullah

Dr. Muhammad Tahir

Member Shariah Board Resident Shariah Board Member

Date of Report: February 8, 2019
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ANNEXURE-2
ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

The Bank is operating 94 Islamic banking branches including 3 sub-branches at the end of 2018 as compared to 94 Islamic banking
branches including 3 sub-branches at the end of 2017.

—_
—_

Rupees in ‘000

Note

2018

2017

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 3,302,392 2,996,103
Balances with other banks 506,950 1,162,958
Due from financial Institutions 1 - 750,000
Investments 2 8,169,564 6,733,697
Islamic financing and related assets - net 3 46,610,024 34,395,936
Fixed assets 547,807 654,384
Intangible - -
Other assets 1,625,927 1,311,395
Total assets 60,762,664 48,004,473
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 757,821 775,764
Due to financial institutions 8,999,361 2,410,152
Deposits and other accounts 4 42,338,600 37,650,774
Due to head office 2,168,060 1,868,060
Other liabilities 2,313,368 1,808,357
56,577,210 44,513,107
NET ASSETS 4,185,454 3,491,366
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic Banking Fund 4,600,000 4,100,000
(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of assets (30,306) 8,183
Unappropriated loss 5 (384,240) (616,817)
4,185,454 3,491,366
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 6 5,934,661 6,667,661
The profit and loss account of the Bank’s Islamic banking branches for the year ended December 31, 2018 is as follows:
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
Profit / return earned 7 3,615,500 2,584,413
Profit / return expensed 8 1,750,655 1,210,068
Net profit / return 1,864,845 1,374,345
Other income
Fee and commission income 160,952 113,111
Dividend income - -
Foreign exchange income 26,705 7,217
Income / (loss) from derivatives - -
Gain / (loss) on securities = -
Other income 38,760 32,936
Total other income 226,417 153,264
Total Income 2,091,262 1,527,609
Other expenses
Operating expenses 1,798,811 1,635,312
@ Workers’ Welfare Fund - -
€ Other charges 22,516 1,150
Ilcc Total other expenses 1,821,327 1,636,462
Fr'f Profit / (loss) before provisions 269,935 (108,853)
§ Provisions and write offs - net 37,358 126,285
< Profit / (loss) before taxation 232,577 (235,138)




2018 2017
In local In foreign In local In foreign
Rupees in ‘000 currency currencies Total currency currencies Total
1. DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Secured - - - - -
Unsecured - - 750,000 - 750,000
Bai Muajjal Receivable from other
Financial Institutions - - - - -
Bai Muajjal Receivable from State Bank
of Pakistan - - - - -
Others - - - - -
- - 750,000 - 750,000
2017
Cost / Provision Cost/ Provision
amortized for Surplus / Carrying amortized for Surplus / Carrying
Rupees in ‘000 cost diminution (deficit value cost diminution (deficit) value
2. INVESTMENTS BY SEGMENTS
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
- ljarah Sukuks 5,539,756 (32,130)|| 5,507,626 5,577,454 - 483 || 5,577,937
- GOP Bai Muajjal 1,031,054 - 1,031,054 - - - -
6,570,810 (32,130) 6,538,680 5,577,454 - 483 5,577,937
NON GOVERNMENT DEBT SECURITIES
- Listed 210,000 - 1,824 211,824 280,000 - 7,700 287,700
- Unlisted 2,047,942 (628,882) - 1,419,060 1,502,836 (634,776) - 868,060
2,257,942 (628,882) 1,824 1,630,884 1,782,836 (634,776) 7,700 1,155,760
Total Investments 8,828,752 (628,882) (30,306) 8,169,564 7,360,290 (634,776) 8,183 6,733,697
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
3. ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS
ljarah 3.1 4,159,292 3,504,530
Murabaha 3.2 5,163,391 4,968,620
Musharaka 16,689,289 8,606,677
Diminishing Musharaka 9,489,949 8,625,354
Salam 6,209,050 5,394,534
Istisna 2,128,828 2,062,034
Receivable against sale of Istisna / Salam inventory - 50,000
Service ljarah 390,477 671,429
Other Islamic Modes (Executive Car Finance-Qarz-e-Hasana) 74,351 60,569
Advances against Islamic assets 3.3 1,919,753 399,586
Inventory related to Islamic financing 3.4 793,819 412,464
Gross Islamic financing and related assets 47,018,199 34,755,797
Less: provision against Islamic financings
- Specific 374,871 333,633
- General 33,304 26,228
408,175 359,861
Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision 46,610,024 34,395,936

—_
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ANNEXURE-2

ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Askari Bank Limited

—_
—_

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
2018
Cost Depreciation Book valle
As at As at As at As at as at
January 1, December January 1, Charge for ~ Adjustments / December December
Rupees in ‘000 2018 Additions ~ (Deletions) 31,2018 2018 theyear  (Deletions) 31,2018 31,2018
31 IJARAH
Plant and machinery 915,581 151,373 (357,712) 709,242 432,751 141,893 (256,990) 317,654 391,588
Viehicles 4230457 2,014,540 (969,722) 5275275 1,338,487 838,069 (562,157) 1,614,399 3,660,876
Equipment 65,235 - (3,310) 61,925 26,951 18,708 (2,648) 43,011 18,914
Total 5211273 2165913  (1,330,744) 6,046,442 1,798,189 998,670 (821,795 1975064 4,071,378
2017
Cost Depreciation Book vale
As at As at As at As at asat
January 1, December January 1, Charge for ~ Adjustments / December December
Rupees in ‘000 2017 Additions (Deletions) 31,2017 2017 the year (Deletions) 31,2017 31,2017
Plant and machinery 929,523 299,058 (313,000) 915,581 422,632 194,152 (184,033) 432,751 482,830
Viehicles 3,240,387 1,599,830 (609,760) 4,230,457 877,688 702,610 (241,811) 1,338,487 2,891,970
Equipment 68,442 - (3,207) 65,235 7,695 19,023 233 26,951 38,284
Total 4238352 1,898,888  (925967) 5211273 1,308,015 915,785 (425,611) 1,798,189 3,413,084
2018 2017
Not later Later than 1 Not later Later than 1
than year and less Qver five than year and less Over five
Rupees in ‘000 1 year than 5 year years Total 1 year than 5 year years Total
NET INVESTMENT UNDER IJARAH
ljarah rentals receivable 89,767 - - 89,767 93,275 - - 93,275
Residual value 1,788 - - 1,788 1,969 - - 1,969
Minimum ljarah payments 91,555 = = 91,555 95,244 - - 95,244
Profit for future periods (3,641) - - (3,641) (3,798) - - (3,798)
Net Assets / Investments in ljarah 87,914 = = 87,914 91,446 - - 91,446
2018 2017
Notlater ~ Later than 1 Not later Later than 1
than year and less Qver five than year and less Over five
Rupees in ‘000 1 year than 5 year years Total 1 year than 5 year years Total
ljarah rentals receivable 1,458,343 2,402,358 29866 3,890,567 1,199,573 1,886,531 22,627 3,108,731
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
32 MURABAHA
Murabaha financing 3.2.1 3,351,076 3,724,973
Inventory for Murabaha - -
Advances for Murabaha 1,812,315 1,243,647
5,163,391 4,968,620
321 Murabaha receivable - gross 3.2.3 3,471,782 3,825,048
Less: Deferred murabaha income 3.24 54,709 50,838
Profit receivable shown in other assets 65,997 49,237
Murabaha financings 3,351,076 3,724,973
322 The movement in Murabaha financing during the year is as follows:
Opening balance 3,724,973 4,287,491
Sales during the year 13,041,068 12,645,962
Adjusted during the year (13,414,965) (13,208,480)
Closing balance 3,351,076 3,724,973




Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
323 Murabaha sale price 3,471,782 3,825,048
Murabaha purchase price (3,351,076) (3,724,973)
120,706 100,075
324  DEFERRED MURABAHA INCOME
Opening balance 50,838 66,786
Arising during the year 349,146 273,415
Less: Recognised during the year 345,275 289,363
Closing balance 54,709 50,838
Diminishing
Rupees in ‘000 ljarah Musharaka Musharaka Salam Istisna Total
33 ADVANCE AGAINST ISLAMIC ASSETS
2018 303,763 - 1,615,990 - - 1,919,753
2017 346,380 - 53,206 - - 399,586
Diminishing
Rupees in ‘000 ljarah Musharaka Musharaka Salam Istisna Total
34 INVENTORY RELATED TO ISLAMIC FINANCING
2018 - - - 126,178 667,641 793,819
2017 - - - 103,885 308,579 412,464
2018 2017
In local In foreign In local In foreign
Rupees in ‘000 currency currencies Total currency currencies Total
4. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
CUSTOMERS
Current deposits - non remunerative 14,510,450 430,218 14,940,668 12,572,870 405,328 12,978,198
Current deposits - remunerative 589,527 - 589,527 751,535 - 751,535
Savings deposits 18,927,957 362,480 19,290,437 16,068,811 385,526 16,454,337
Term deposits 6,395,547 - 6,395,547 5,824,785 - 5,824,785
Others 504,486 8,725 513,211 496,315 1,253 497,568
40,927,967 801,423 41,729,390 35,714,316 792,107 36,506,423
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Current deposits - non remunerative 9,376 509 9,885 4,797 - 4,797
Savings deposits 474,325 - 474,325 609,554 - 609,554
Term deposits 125,000 - 125,000 530,000 - 530,000
608,701 509 609,210 1,144,351 - 1,144,351
41,536,668 801,932 42,338,600 36,858,667 792,107 37,650,774
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
4.1 COMPOSITION OF DEPOSITS
- Individuals 25,078,234 23,510,975
- Government / Public Sector Entities 4,781,433 2,592,671
- Banking Companies 72 92
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 609,138 1,144,259
- Private Sector 11,869,723 10,402,777
42,338,600 37,650,774
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This includes deposits of Rs. 32,258,004 thousand (2017: Rs. 28,136,730 thousand) eligible to be covered under Shariah
compliant deposits protection mechanism of Deposit Protection Corporation, State Bank of Pakistan.

Rupees in ‘000

2018

2017

5. ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS UNAPPROPRIATED LOSS
Opening balance (616,817) (381,679)
Add: Islamic Banking profit for the period 232,577 (235,138)
Closing Balance (384,240) (616,817)
6. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
- Transaction-related contingent liabilities 3,356,190 2,508,921
- Trade-related contingent liabilities 2,465,459 2,574,577
- Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts 112,220 1,581,889
- Commitments for the acquisition of operating fixed assets 792 2,274
5,934,661 6,667,661
1. PROFIT / RETURN EARNED ON FINANCING, INVESTMENTS AND PLACEMENTS
Profit earned on:
Financing 3,172,049 2,084,443
Investments 401,899 316,394
Placements 41,552 183,576
3,615,500 2,584,413
8. PROFIT ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED
Deposits and other accounts 1,356,667 1,138,431
Due to financial institutions 312,528 35,166
Due to Head Office 81,460 36,471
1,750,655 1,210,068
9. CHARITY FUND
Opening Balance 6,304 9,257
Additions during the period
- Received from customers on account of delayed payment 24,659 9,261
- Non-Shariah compliant income 433 375
- Profit on charity saving account 3 2
- Others 59 97
25,154 9,735
Payments / utilization during the period
- Education (1,139) (2,250)
- Community welfare (1,850) (3,700)
- Health (4,233) (4,684)
- Orphanage (1,027) (2,054)
(8,249) (12,688)
Closing Balance 23,209 6,304
9.1 CHARITY IN EXCESS OF RS. 500,000 WAS PAID T0 FOLLOWING INSTITUTIONS:
Al Khidmat Foundation Pakistan, Lahore 1,850 3,700
Al Murshad Hospital, Karachi - 1,500
:a'} Bali Memorial Trust, Lahore 1,027 2,054
€ Child Life Foundation, Karachi 1,000 -
=z Fatimid Foundation, Multan 1,468 2,884
S Hamza Foundation Welfare Hospital, Peshawar 965 -
2 Quality School Foundation - 1,500
% The Helpcare Society, Lahore 900 750
< 7,210 12,388

—_
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10.1

POOL MANAGEMENT

The Bank generates deposit on the basis of following two modes:
1. Qard

2. Mudaraba

Deposits taken on Qard Basis are classified as ‘Current Account’ and deposits generated on Mudaraba basis are classified as
‘Savings Account’ and ‘Fixed Deposit Accounts’.

The Bank also accepted / acquired customer and inter-bank funds, for short term liquidity requirement under Musharaka
mode. Profits realized in Musharaka pools are distributed in pre agreed profit sharing ratio. Besides above, the bank also
accept funds from State Bank of Pakistan in Islamic Export Refinance pool under Musharaka mode. The features, risk and
reward of this Musharaka pool are in accordance with the SBP Islamic Export Refinance Scheme (IERS) and circulars issued
from time to time.

Asset pools are created at the Bank’s discretion and the Bank can add, amend, and transfer an asset to any other pool in the
interest of deposit holders. During the year following three Mudaraba based pools were maintained by the Bank having below
mentioned key features:

A GENERAL POOL

The objective of the pool is to invest funds on a Shariah Compliant basis and maximize profits for the Rabb-ul-Mal
on a Gross Mudaraba basis. In this pool, portfolio diversification strategy has been used to mitigate the risk of loss.
Diversification may marginally reduce returns but it also spreads risk by reducing chances of loss.

B.  FOREIGN CURRENCY POOL

The objective of the pool is to invest funds on a Shariah Compliant basis and maximize profits for the Rabb-ul-Mal i.e.
depositors in foreign currency: US dollars on a Gross Mudaraba basis. Due to dearth and limitations of foreign denominated
investment opportunities available to Islamic Banks operating in Pakistan, the returns would be linked with an earning
assets pool comprising of Shariah Compliant assets, with reliance mainly on placement(s) with other known Islamic
Financial Institutions.

C.  FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (FI) POOL

The objective of the pool is to obtain and invest funds primarily from conventional side of the Bank, on a Shariah Compliant
Gross Mudaraba basis, mainly to meet liquidity needs in line with business requirements and banking norms. The FI pool
is linked with an earning assets pool comprising mainly of investments in sovereign risk, i.e. GOP guaranteed Statutory
Liquidity Requirement (SLR) eligible Sukuk.

Under the above Mudaraba based pools, the Bank accepted funds on Mudaraba basis from depositors (Rabb-ul-Mal) where
the Bank acted as Manager (Mudarib) and invested the funds in Shariah Compliant modes of financings, investments and
placements. Also, as allowed, the Bank at its discretion commingled its own funds including current accounts as equity with
the depositors’ funds in all the pools. However, for investment purposes, Rabb-ul-Mal’s funds were given priority over own
funds (equity).

The net profit of each deposit pool is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by utilizing the funds from the pool
after deduction of direct expenses as approved by Shariah Board, if any. The directly related costs comprise of depreciation
on ljarah assets, Wakalah tul Istismar fee, brokerage fee paid for placement of funds under Islamic modes, Takaful / Insurance
expense, registration expense and commission to car ijarah dealers, staff & others. The general and specific provisions created
against non-performing financings and diminution in the value of investments shall be borne by the Bank as Mudarib. However,
write-offs of financings and loss on sale of investments shall be charged to respective pool(s) along with other direct expenses.
Provisions / write offs shall revert to Mudarib / pool(s) to which it was originally charged. From the net return, profit is paid to
the Mudarib in the ratio of Mudarib’s equity in the pool to the total pool. The Mudarib’s share is deducted from this profit to
calculate distributable profit. Rabb-ul-Mal’s share is distributed among depositors according to weightages assigned at the
inception of profit calculation period.

—_
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In order to remain competitive in the industry and to retain existing customer / mobilize deposits from new customers, the Bank as a
Mudarib distributed part of its share of profit to Rabb-ul-Mal as HIBA.

Income generated from banking operations (e.g. fee and commission income etc.) is not shared with depositors.

In case of loss in a pool during the profit calculation period, the loss is distributed among the depositors (remunerative) according to
their ratio of Investments.

10.2° THE BANK MANAGED FOLLOWING GENERAL AND SPECIFIC POOLS :

2018
Currency Profit rate and Profit Profit Profit Minimum Maximum Mudarib Percentage of Amount of
Mudaraba Pool weightage sharing rate / retum rate / retum weightage weightage share mudarib share | mudarib share
announcement ratio eamed distributed during the during the transferred transferred
period year year through hiba through hiba
Rupees Rupees
General Pool PKR Monthly 50% 7.26% 5.11% 090 292 969,681,012 40% 388,991,520
Financial Institution Pool PKR Monthly 50% 5.68% 363% 0.70 1.90 64,046,368 2% 17,838,060
Foreign Currency Pool Ush Monthly 50% 1.82% 0.91% 1.00 1.00 3,359,165
2017
Currency Profit rate and Profit Profit Profit Minimum Maximum Mudarib Percentage of Amount of
Mudaraba Pool weightage sharing rate / retum rate / return weightage weightage share mudarib share | mudarib share
announcement ratio eamed distributed during the during the transferred transferred
period year year through hiba through hiba
Rupees Rupees
General Pool PKR Monthly 50% 6.23% 4.48% 0.90 1.98 789,722,422 4% 346,824,498
Financial Institution Pool PKR Monthly 50% 5.36% 2.85% 0.70 1.55 33,867,086 6% 2,146,240
Foreign Currency Pool UsD Monthly 50% 1.49% 0.76% 1.00 1.00 2,280,104
218
Currency Profit rate and Profit Profit Profit Minimum Maximum Mudarib Percentage of Amount of
Musharaka Pool weightage sharing rate / refum rate / retum weightage weightage share mudarib share | mudarib share
announcement ratio eamed distributed during the during the transferred transferred
period year year through hiba through hiba
Rupees Rupees
Interbank Borrowing Pool PKR As required * 6.53%-12.22% | 5.53%-9.75% . . . NA A
ERS Pool PKR Monthly * 4.82% 2.29% - - - NA A
Special Musharaka Certficate Pool PKR As required * 6.88%-10.60% | 1.15%-8.00% - - - NA NA
2017
Currency Profit rate and Profit Profit Profit Minimum Maximum Mudarib Percentage of Amount of
Musharaka Pool weightage sharing rate / retum rate / retum weightage weightage share mudarib share | - mudarib share
announcement ratio eamed distributed during the during the transferred transferred
period year year through hiba through hiba
Rupees Rupees
Interbank Borrowing Pool PKR As required * 6.79%-9.15% 5.00%-5.95% - - - A NA
ERS Pool PKR Monthly ¥ 4.23% 2.15% . . . A NA
Special Musharaka Certifcate Pool PKR As required

* The investment ratio and profit sharing ratio varies on case to case / monthly basis

Askari Bank Limited
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MATURITY PROFILE OF FUNDS MOBILISED UNDER VARIOUS MODES:

Rs in ‘000 2018
Over 1 Over3 Qver 6 Qver 1 Qver2 Over3 Over
Upto 1 month months months year years years years Over 10
Type Currency Mode month | upto 3 months |{upto 6 months | upto1year | upto2years | upto3years | upto5years | upto 10 years years Total
Fixed deposit account PKR Mudaraba 1,373,882 | 1,809926 | 1,214769 | 1,885,337 24,360 50,525 125,695 6,484,494
Savings account PKR Mudaraba 2,217,091 401,835 3928391 | 3928391 4714089 | 2401016 | 2401016 | 19,991,809
Savings account Usb Mudaraba 40,200 7,286 7,221 7,221 85,472 43534 43534 362,480
Mudaraba funds from HO PKR Mudaraba 300,000 1,868,060 2,168,060
Interbank borrowing PKR Musharaka 7,975,000 7,975,000
Special Musharaka Certificate PKR Musharaka 36,053 36,053
ERS borrowing from SBP PKR Musharaka 520,000 504,361 1,024,361
11,906,173 | 2775100 | 1,719,130 | 3753397 | 4023978 | 4050143 | 4925236 | 2444550 | 2444550 | 38,042,257
Rs in ‘000 2017
Over 1 Over3 Qver 6 Qver 1 Qver2 Over3 Over
Upto 1 month months months year years years years Over 10
Type Currency Mode month | upto 3 months |upto 6 months | upto1year | upto2years | upto3years | upto5years | upto 10 years years Total
Fixed deposit account PKR Mudaraba 3,341,996 574,950 730839 | 1555316 66,723 29,860 55,101 6,354,785
Savings account PKR Mudaraba 1,932,974 350,341 3424976 | 3424976 | 4109971 | 2093331 | 2093331 | 17,429,900
Savings account UsD Mudaraba 42,753 7,749 75,756 75,756 90,906 46,303 46,303 385,526
Mudaraba funds from HO PKR Mudaraba 1,868,060 1,868,060
Interbank borrowing PKR Musharaka 1,900,000 1,900,000
Special Musharaka Certificate PKR Musharaka
ERS borrowing from SBP PKR Musharaka 200,000 310,152 510,152
7417723 933040 | 1040991 | 3423376 | 3567455 | 3530592 | 4255978 | 2,139,634 | 2,139,634 | 28448423
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
104  CLASS OF ASSETS BY SOURCES OF FINANCING:
Jointly financed by the Bank and PLS deposit account holders.
Murabaha 3,351,076 3,724,973
ljarah 4,509,389 4,146,225
Diminishing Musharaka 8,863,570 8,120,397
Salam 6,209,050 5,394,534
Musharaka 16,689,289 8,606,677
Istisna 2,128,828 2,062,034
Receivables against sale of Salam / Istisna Inventory - 50,000
Balances with other & treasury banks 2,199,572 2,964,164
Sukuk 7,237,735 6,725,514
Bai Muajjal-GOP 1,031,054 -
Due from financial institutions - 750,000
52,219,563 42,544,518

—_

© Annual Report 2018



ANNEXURE-2
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10.5  SECTORS OF ECONOMY USED FOR DEPLOYMENT OF MUDARABA BASED PKR DEPOSITS ALONGWITH EQUITY
2018 2017

Rupees in ‘000 Percent Rupees in ‘000 Percent
Agriculture / Agribusiness 1,316,891 3.19 950,015 243
Automobiles & Allied 54,551 0.13 22,132 0.06
Cables / Electronics 280,020 0.68 68,876 0.18
Cements 508,881 1.23 152,842 0.39
Chemicals / Pharmaceuticals 1,395,604 3.38 896,620 2.30
Fertilizers 210,000 0.51 285,280 0.73
Food and Allied 703,883 1.70 889,485 2.28
Fuel / Energy 1,257,211 3.04 744,134 1.91
Ghee and Edible il 1,201,099 2.91 703,819 1.80
GOP ljarah Sukuk ( Airport & Highway Land) 5,539,756 13.40 5,577,454 14.29
GOP Bai Muajjal 1,031,054 2.49 - -
Individuals 3,950,795 9.56 3,125,975 8.01
Investment Banks / Scheduled Banks 551,001 1.33 1,529,052 3.92
Leather Products and Shoes 33,857 0.08 45,910 0.12
Plastic Products 549,826 1.33 117,490 0.30
Real Estate / Construction 246,318 0.60 344,485 0.88
Rice Processing and Trading 250,000 0.60 257,000 0.66
Services (Other than Financial, Hoteling & Traveling) 123,317 0.30 96,047 0.25
Sugar 3,661,243 8.86 2,611,366 6.69
Textile 3,470,240 8.39 3,050,792 7.82
Transport and Communication 1,002,959 243 1,145,639 2.94
Public Sector / Government 9,396,972 22.73 11,675,289 29.92
Others 4,604,282 11.14 4,733,385 12.13

41,339,760 100.00 39,023,087 100.00

10.6  SECTORS OF ECONOMY USED FOR DEPLOYMENT OF MUDARABA BASED USD DEPOSITS ALONGWITH EQUITY

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Percent Rupees in ‘000 Percent

Investment Banks / Scheduled Banks 482,430 92.37 358,719 89.43
Public Sector / Government 39,873 7.63 42,408 10.57
522,303 100.00 401,127 100.00

Askari Bank Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASKARI BANK LIMITED

OPINION

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Askari Bank Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at December 31, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER(S)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PWC network
PIA Building. 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60 / 2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; <www.pwc.com/pk>

-KARACHI .LAHORE ISLAMABAD
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FOLLOWING ARE THE KEY AUDIT MATTER(S):

A'F-FERGUSON&CO.

S.NO

NATURE OF THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

1

Provision against advances
(Refer note 9.4 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group makes provision against advances on a time
based criteria that involves ensuring all non-performing
loans and advances are classified in accordance with the
ageing criteria specified in the Prudential Regulations
(PRs) issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

In addition to the above time based criteria the PRs
require a subjective evaluation of the credit worthiness
of borrowers to determine the classification of advances.

The PRs also require the creation of general provision for
the consumer portfolio.

Provision against advances of Wholesale Bank Branch,
Bahrain is made as per the requirements of the regulatory
regime in Bahrain.

The Group has recognized a net provision against
advances amounting to Rs. 467 million in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the current year. As at December
31,2018, the Group holds a provision of Rs. 26,152 million
against advances.

The determination of provision against advances based on
the above criteria remains a significant area of judgement
and estimation. Because of the significance of the impact
of these judgements/estimations and the materiality of
advances relative to the overall statement of financial
position of the Group, we considered the area of provision
against advances as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to verify provision against advances,
amongst others, included the following:

We reviewed the design and tested operating effectiveness
of key controls established by the Group to identify loss
events and for determining the extent of provisioning
required against non -performing loans.

The testing of controls included testing of:

e automated (IT system based) controls over correct
classification of non-performing advances on time
based criteria;

e controls over monitoring of advances with higher
risk of default and correct classification of non-
performing advances on subjective criteria;

e controls over accurate computation and recording of
provisions; and

e controls over the governance and approval
process related to provisions, including continuous
reassessment by the management.

In accordance with the regulatory requirement, we
sampled and tested at least sixty percent of the
total advances portfolio and performed the following
substantive procedures for sample loan accounts:

e verified repayments of loan/ mark-up installments
and checked that non-performing loans have been
correctly classified and categorized based on the
number of days overdue.

e examined watch list accounts and, based on
review of the individual facts and circumstances,
discussions with management and our assessment
of financial conditions of the borrowers, formed
a judgement as to whether classification of these
accounts as performing was appropriate.

We checked the accuracy of specific provision made
against non-performing advances and of general
provision made against consumer finance by recomputing
the provision amount in accordance with the criteria
prescribed under the PRs.

We issued instructions to auditors of overseas
branch, highlighting ‘Provision against advances’ as a
significant risk. The auditors of this branch performed
audit procedures to check compliance with regulatory
requirements and reported the results thereof to us.

1
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FOLLOWING ARE THE KEY AUDIT MATTER(S):

A-F-FERGUSON&CO.

S.NO

NATURE OF THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

2

Taxation in respect of provision against non -
performing loans and advances

(Refer note 33.2 to the consolidated financial statements)

Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) has been contesting the
matter of allowability of provision against Non-Performing
Loans (NPLs) during tax years 1995 — 1996 to 2008,
the period prior to enactment of the Seventh Schedule
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 at the Supreme
Court of Pakistan. The Islamabad High Court (IHC) had
previously disallowed these provisions. During the year,
the Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the decision of
the Islamabad High Court of Pakistan (IHC) to disallow
such provision. Consequently, the tax demand raised in
re-assessment orders has been paid by the Bank. The
Bank has recognized prior year tax charge against this
disallowance net off actual write offs and recoveries in
tax years 2009 to 2019 related to NPLs disallowed. In this
respect, aggregate prior year tax expense recorded during
the period was Rs. 1,660 million net of related deferred
tax asset of Rs. 1,497 million.

Due to the nature of this matter, size of amounts involved
and significant development during the year, we consider
it as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures related to this key audit matter
included the following:

e  obtained and reviewed the certified copy of order
dated March 13, 2018 passed by IHC in respect of
taxation related to provision against NPLs;

e  obtained and reviewed legal opinion from Bank’s tax
advisors related to treatment of outcomes arising as
result of IHC Order.

e verified the amount of add back related to NPLs used
in calculation of prior year tax charge from respective
year audited consolidated financial statements and
returns filed by the Bank.

e recomputed prior year tax charge arising as a result
of Order passed by IHC.

e obtained the Order of the Supreme Court of Pakistan
upholding the decision of IHC.

e checked the appropriateness and realizability of
deferred tax asset based on projections provided by
the Bank.

e checked that appropriate accounting treatment and
disclosures have been made in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Change in format of the financial statements
(Refer note 4.1.3 to the consolidated financial statements)

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has amended the format
of annual financial statements of banks. All banks are
directed to prepare their annual financial statements on
the revised format effective from the accounting year
ending December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Group has
prepared these consolidated financial statements on the
new format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan.

As part of this transition to the new requirements, the
management performed a gap analysis to identify
differences between the previous and current format. The
adoption of the new format required certain recognition
requirements and reclassification of certain financial
information. The amended format also introduced certain
new disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

In view of the significant impact of the first time adoption
of the revised format on these consolidated financial
statements, we consider it as a key audit matter.

We reviewed and understood the requirements of the
SBP’s amended format of annual financial statements for
banks. Our audit procedures included the following:

e reviewed the management’s process to identify
the changes required in the consolidated financial
statements to comply with the new format; and

e obtained relevant underlying supports relating to
changes required in the consolidated financial
statements consequent to the adoption of the new
format to assess their appropriateness and verified
them on a test basis.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

1
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is S. Haider Abbas.

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad:
Dated:

Askari Bank Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
2018 2017 2016
Rupees in ‘000 Note (Restated) (Restated)
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 49,187,645 44,239,325 42,568,141
Balances with other banks 6 4,093,402 3,193,835 5,845,748
Lendings to financial institutions 7 - 2,250,000 6,836,584
Investments 8 260,233,987 314,956,748 295,846,254
Advances 9 343,107,147 258,693,086 235,163,922
Fixed assets 10 12,791,827 9,885,958 10,132,940
Intangible assets 11 741,361 842,869 886,615
Deferred tax assets 12 3,773,779 100,755 -
Other assets 13 32,522,174 28,448,099 25,325,830
706,451,322 662,610,675 622,606,034
Assets attributable to discontinued operations 14 214,757 327,949 796,570
706,666,079 662,938,624 623,402,604
Liabilities
Bills payable 15 15,512,880 10,769,262 8,579,809
Borrowings 16 52,702,323 71,587,311 89,261,788
Deposits and other accounts 17 573,596,926 525,805,051 472,803,094
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease = - -
Subordinated debts 18 9,993,600 4,992,800 4,994,800
Deferred tax liabilities - - 526,430
Other liabilities 19 21,178,476 17,098,223 14,115,858
672,984,205 630,252,647 590,281,779
Liabilities associated with discontionued operations 14 81,513 140,741 267,254
673,065,718 630,393,388 590,549,033
Net assets 33,600,361 32,545,236 32,853,571
Represented by
Share capital 20 12,602,602 12,602,602 12,602,602
Reserves 15,588,694 12,032,263 8,855,953
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax
Continued operations 21 1,649,197 5,142,254 7,327,114
Discontinued operations 5,723 19,877 47,207
Unappropriated profit 3,710,867 2,703,887 3,982,787
33,557,083 32,500,883 32,815,663
Non-controlling interest 43,278 44,353 37,908
33,600,361 32,545,236 32,853,571
Contingencies and commitments 22
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
\
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Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Rehan Laiq
Director

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf
Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani

Chairman
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
Mark-up / return / interest earned 24 43,669,883 36,267,220
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 25 25,059,925 20,071,958
Net mark-up / interest income 18,609,958 16,195,262
Non mark-up / interest income
Fee and commission income 26 3,116,070 2,706,794
Dividend income 231,312 302,894
Foreign exchange income 1,596,027 843,032
Income / (loss) from derivatives = -
Gain on securities 27 260,103 2,063,043
Other income 28 418,081 200,341
Total non-markup / interest income 5,621,593 6,116,104
Total income 24,231,551 22,311,366
Non mark-up / interest expenses
Operating expenses 29 16,240,514 14,948,796
Workers’ welfare fund 30 (540,060) 169,833
Other charges 31 191,067 23,568
Total non-markup / interest expenses 15,891,521 15,142,197
Profit before provisions 8,340,030 7,169,169
Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net 32 1,460,575 (1,176,432)
Extraordinary / unusual items - -
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,345,601
Taxation 33 (2,448,177) (3,223,915)
Profit after taxation - continued operations 4,431,278 5,121,686
(Loss) / profit after taxation - discontinued operations 14 (2,659) 6,611
4,428,619 5,128,297
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 4,429,310 5,121,863
Non-controlling interest (691) 6,434
4,428,619 5,128,297
Rupees
Basic earnings per share 34 3.51 4.06

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 (Restated)
Profit after taxation for the year 4,428,619 5,128,297
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:
Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 186,164 30,336
Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax
Continued operations (4,488,014) (2,378,635)
Discontinued operations (14,154) (27,330)
(4,316,004) (2,375,629)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan - net of tax
Continued operations 3,095 (113,996)
Discontinued operations (1,478) 44
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net of tax 709,447 107,658
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 285,510 193,775
996,574 187,481

Total comprehensive income 1,109,189 2,940,149
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 1,113,944 2,940,809
Non-controlling interest (4,755) (660)
1,109,189 2,940,149
Total comprehensive income arises from:
Continued operations 1,127,480 2,960,824
Discontinued operations (18,291) (20,675)
1,109,189 2,940,149
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Abid Sattar Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf

President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani

Chairman
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

Investments
Exchange Share Fixed / un- Non-
Share  translation premium  Statutory Gengral  Continued  Discontinued  non-banking  appropriated Sub controlling
Rupees in‘000 capita TEServe account Teserve reserve  operations  operations assets — profit/ (loss) fotal interest Total
Balance as at January 1, 2017 - as previously reported 12,602,602 93511 234669 6755314 1772459 2,769,126 7207 4450330 4090445 32,815,663 37,908 32,853,571
Effect of retrospective change in accounting policy
with respect to accounting for surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets - - - - - - - 107,658 (107,658) - - -
Balance as at January 1, 2017 - as restated 12,602,602 93511 234669 6755314 1772459  27769,126 47207 4557988 3,982,787 32,815,663 37,908 32,853,571
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2017
Net profit for the year ended December 31,2017 - - - - - - - 5121863 5121863 6,434 5128297
(ther comprehensive income related to equity - 30,336 - - - (2378635 (@7330) 193775 (113963 (2,295817) 1 (2,295,806)
Transfer to:
Statutory reserve - - - 1,083,577 - - - - || (1,063,577) - -
General reserve - - - -1 3982787 - - -1 (3982,787) - -
- - - 1053577 3,982,787 - - - (5,036,364 - - -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to
unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - - 9,824 9,824 - 9,824
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend 2016: Rs. 1.50 per share - - - - (1,890,390) - - - - (1,890,390) - (1,890,390)
Interim dividend 2017: Re. 1 per share - - - - - - - - (1,260,260) (1,260,260 (1,260,260)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 12602602 123847 234669 70808891 3086485 390,491 19877 4751763 2,703,887 32,500,883 44353 32,545,236
Impact of IFRS 9 of Wholesale Bank Branch - (850) - - (219,026) - - - - (219,876) - (219.876)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 after impact of
IFRS 9 of Wholesale Bank Branch 12602602 122997 234669 7808891 3645830 390491 19877 4751763 2,703,887 32,281,007 44353 32,325,360
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31,2018
Net profit for the year ended December 31,2018 - - - - - - - - 4429310 4429310 (691) 4428619
(ther comprehensive income related to equity - 186,164 - - - (4488014 (14,154) 994,957 2001 (3,319,046) (384) (3,319430)
Transfer to:
Statutory reserve - - -|| 886,256 - - - -|| (886,256 - = =
General reserve - - - -|| 2703887 - - - (2,703,887) - - -
- - - 886256 2,703,887 - - - (3590143 - - -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to
unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - - 165812 165812 - 165812
Balance as at December 31,2018 12602602 309,161 234669 8695147 6349717  (4,097,523) 5723 5746720 3710867 33,557,083 43,278 33,600,361

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf

Abid Sattar
President & Chief Executive

Saleem Anwar
Chief Financial Officer

Rehan Laiq
Director

Director

Lt Gen (R) Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani
Chairman




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,345,601
Less: dividend income (231,312) (302,894)
6,648,143 8,042,707
Adjustments:
Depreciation 1,022,835 1,326,873
Amortization 195,294 196,038
Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net 1,603,111 (1,031,803)
Charge for defined benefit plans 586,359 378,032
Loss on sale of fixed assets 5,253 10,551
3,412,852 879,691
10,060,995 8,922,398
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions 1,500,000 5,336,584
Advances (85,084,938) (22,233,996)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) (3,375,295) (15,586)
(86,960,233) (16,912,998)
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 4,743,618 2,189,453
Borrowings (18,884,988) (17,674,477)
Deposits 47,791,875 53,001,957
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) 4,246,359 488,498
37,896,864 38,005,431
Discontinued operations 52,608 (20,561)
Cash (used in) / flow from operations (38,949,766) 29,994,270
Payment made to defined benefit plan (730,670) (350,884)
Income tax paid (3,894,037) (3,303,583)
Net cash (used in) / flow from operating activities (43,574,473) 26,339,803
Cash flow from investing activities
Net investments in available for sale securities 51,626,569 (20,160,979)
Net investments in held to maturity securities (5,030,369) (2,747,351)
Dividend received 236,639 311,839
Investments in operating fixed assets - net of adjustment (3,334,399) (1,249,674)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 16,104 18,133
Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 186,164 30,336
Discontinued operations (16,935) 341,950
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 43,683,773 (23,455,746)
Cash flow from financing activities
Receipts / (payments) of subordinated debts - net 5,000,800 (2,000)
Dividend paid (12,203) (3,112,786)
Net cash flow / (used in) financing activities 4,988,597 (3,114,786)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,097,897 (230,729)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 35 48,183,160 48,413,889
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 53,281,057 48,183,160
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Group consists of Askari Bank Limited, the holding company and Askari Securities Limited, a partly owned subsidiary.

Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1991 as a Public Limited Company and is listed
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Bank is situated at AWT Plaza, the Mall, Rawalpindi. The Bank
is a scheduled commercial bank and is principally engaged in the business of banking as defined in the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 percent shares of the Bank as on December 31, 2018. The
ultimate parent of the Bank is Fauji Foundation. The Bank has 516 branches (2017: 516 branches); 515 in Pakistan and Azad
Jammu and Kashmir (including 91 (2017: 91) Islamic Banking branches and 43 (2017: 43) sub-branches) and a Wholesale
Bank Branch (WBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Askari Securities Limited (ASL) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 1, 1999 under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 as a public limited company. The Bank holds 74% ordinary shares of ASL. The principal activity includes share brokerage,
investment advisory and consultancy services. The registered office of ASL is situated in Islamabad.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
These consolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements of format prescribed by
the State Bank of Pakistan’s BPRD Circular No. 2 dated January 25, 2018.

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the
SBP has issued various circulars from time to time. One permissible form of trade related mode of financing comprises of
purchase of goods by the Group from its customers and resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on a deferred payment
basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements
as such but are restricted to the amount of facilities actually utilized and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.

The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements for
reporting purposes, after eliminating material inter-branch transactions / balances. Key figures of the Islamic banking branches
are disclosed in Annexure Il to unconsolidated financial statements.

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak. Rupee, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

— International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

— Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

— Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and

— Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by
the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail.”



SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard
39,”Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40,”Investment
Property” (IAS 40), for banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated APRIL
28, 2008, the International Financial Reporting Standard 7,”Financial Instruments: Disclosures” (IFRS 7), has not been made
applicable for banks. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various
circulars issued by SBP.

The International Financial Reporting Standard 9, “Financial Instruments” (IFRS 9), was notified by the SECP, through SRO
1007(1)/2017 dated October 4, 2017, as applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

During the current year, IFRS 9 became applicable for Wholesale Bank Branch of the Group. The impact of the adoption of IFRS
9 on the Group’s financial statements is disclosed in note 4.1 below.

22 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE EFFECTIVE IN THE CURRENT YEAR

EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 2 Share-based payment (Amendments) January 1, 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts January 1,2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration January 1, 2018

23 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS OF AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

a) Following standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendments) July 1, 2009
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
b) Following standards and amendments to published accounting standards will be effective in future periods and have
not been early adopted by the Group:
EFFECTIVE DATE
(ANNUAL PERIODS BEGINNING
ON OR AFTER)
IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 1, 2019
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments July 1,2018
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2019
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 1,2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 1, 2019 ©
IAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1,2019 §
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 1, 2019 g
IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) January 1, 2019 &%
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1,2019 E
£

The management does not anticipate early adoption of above standards and amendments and is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting these standards. 13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

24 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The Group uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follow:

i) classification of investments (note 4.6)

ii) provision against investments (note 4.6), advances (note 4.7), fixed assets (note 4.8)
and other assets (note 4.17)

iii) valuation of available for sale securities (note 4.6)

iv) impairment of available for sale securities (note 4.17)

V) useful life of property and equipment, intangible assets and revaluation of land (note 4.8) and
non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (note 4.18)

vi) staff retirement benefits (note 4.13)

vii) taxation (note 4.16)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for certain
investments and compensated absences which are carried at fair value, non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims,
freehold and leasehold land which are shown at revalued amounts and staff retirement gratuity which is carried at present
value of defined benefit obligations net of fair value of plan assets.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements.

41 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1.1  Consequent to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), the Group has changed its accounting policy for treatment
of deficit on revaluation of fixed assets wherein any decrease in carrying amount of fixed asset as a result of revaluation is
charged to profit and loss account, however the decrease shall be recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of
any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. Previously, any decrease in the carrying amount
of fixed assets was netted off against surplus on revaluation of any other fixed assets. The effect of this change in accounting
policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, is summarized below:

December 31, January 31,
2017 2017
(Restated) (Restated)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Increase in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of tax 107,658 107,658
Decrease in unappropriated profit 107,658 107,658

4.1.2  As per the accounting policy of the Group, provision against investments, balances with other banks, advances, other assets
and off-balance sheet obligations of Wholesale Bank Branch is made as per the requirements of the respective regulatory
regimes in which the branch operates. During the current year, IFRS 9 became applicable for Wholesale Bank Branch of the
Group. Under this financial reporting standard, provision against investments, balances with other banks, advances, other
assets and off-balance sheet obligations is determined under the expected credit loss model whereas previously, it was
determined under the incurred loss model. Accordingly, in respect of Wholesale Bank Branch, the Group has changed its
accounting policy and has followed the requirements of IFRS 9 while determining the requirements for recording provision
against investments, balances with other banks, advances, other assets and off-balance sheet obligations.

Askari Bank Limited
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The adoption of this standard by Wholesale Bank Branch resulted in an additional provision of Rs. 348,202 thousand (net of
deferred tax amounting to Rs. 226,331 thousand) as at December 31, 2018. The amount of additional provision has been
adjusted in the opening retained earnings (General reserve) as allowed under IFRS 9. The impact of change in policy is

summarized as below:

As at
December 31, January 1,
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2018
IMPACT ON STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Balances with other banks 10 24
Investments 166,679 173,151
Advances 181,066 164,947
Other assets 447 149
348,202 338,271
Less: related deferred tax (121,871) (118,395)
226,331 219,876

For the year ended
December 31,2018

IMPACT ON PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

- Profit before tax would have been higher by - Rupees in ‘000

9,931

- Earnings per share would have been higher by - Rupee

0.01

413

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No. 2 of 2018 dated January 25, 2018 has amended the format of
annual financial statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their annual financial statements on the revised format
effective from the accounting year ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Group has prepared these unconsolidated
financial statements on the new format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan. The adoption of new format required
remeasurement and reclassification of comparative information and accordingly a third consolidated statement of financial
position has been presented at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e. January 1, 2017) in accordance with the requirement
of International Accounting Standard 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements. The adoption of revised format has resulted in

following significant changes:

- Acceptances amounting to Rs. 8,735,265 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,976,910 thousand, 2016: Rs. 3,723,390 thousand)
which were previously shown as part of contingencies and commitments are now recognized on balance sheet both as
assets and liabilities. They are included in ‘Other assets’ (note-13) and ‘Other liabilities’ (note-19) to these consolidated

financial statements;

- Surplus on revaluation of assets amounting to Rs. 1,649,197 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,142,254 thousand, 2016:
Rs. 7,327,114 thousand) which was previously shown below equity has now been included as part of equity;

- Intangibles (note-11) amounting to Rs. 741,361 thousand (2017: Rs. 842,869 thousand, 2016: Rs. 886,615 thousand)
which were previously show and part of fixed assets (note-10) are now shown separately on the consolidated statement

of financial position; and

- Certain reclassifications have been made in the unconsolidated profit and loss account which are summarized below.

For the year ended
December 31,
Reclassification from Reclassification to 2018 2017
account head account head Rupees in ‘000
Other income Provisions and write offs - net 142,536 147,129
Other provisions / write offs Provisions and write offs - net 87,006 21,832

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

42

43

44

45

46

46.1

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary company, ASL with 74%
holding (2016: 74%) collectively referred to as “the Group”.

Subsidiary is that enterprise in which the holding company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than
50% of the voting securities or otherwise has the power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors. The financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date control commences until the
date that control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of subsidiary company have been accounted for as per the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standard 5, “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” and hence not been consolidated on a
line by line basis. The carrying value of investment held by the holding company is eliminated against holding company’s share
in paid up capital of the subsidiary.

Material intra-group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Non-controlling interests are that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of the subsidiary attributable to
interests which are not owned by the Bank. Non-controlling interests are presented as separate item in the consolidated
financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks and call money
lendings.

LENDINGS (REVERSE REPQ)

Consideration for securities purchased under resale agreement (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions.
The difference between purchase and resale price is recognized as mark-up / return earned on a time proportion basis.
Reverse repo balances are reflected under lending to financial institutions.

BAI MUAJJAL RECEIVABLE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

In Bai Muajjal, the Group sells sukuk on deferred payment basis to other financial institutions. The deferred price is agreed
at the time of sale and such proceeds are received at the end of the credit period. Bai Muajjal balances are reflected under
lending to financial institutions.

INVESTMENTS
Investments are classified as follows:
HELD FOR TRADING

These represent securities acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market / interest rate
movements.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

These represent securities which do not fall under ‘held for trading’ or ‘held to maturity’ categories.
HELD TO MATURITY

These represent securities acquired with the intention and ability to hold them upto maturity.

INITIAL MEASUREMENT

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognized at trade date, which is the date at which the Group commits to purchase or sell the investments
except for money market and foreign exchange contracts, other than ready market transactions, which are recognized at
settlement date.

In case of investments classified as held for trading, transaction costs are expensed through profit and loss account. Transaction
costs associated with investments other than those classified as held for trading are included in the cost of investments.
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SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
HELD FOR TRADING

These are marked to market and surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of ‘held for trading’ investments is taken to profit and
loss account in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP’s BSD Circular No. 20 dated August 4, 2000 and BPRD Circular No. 6 dated June
26, 2014, available for sale securities for which ready quotations are available on Reuters Page (PKRV) or Stock Exchanges are
valued at market value and the resulting surplus / deficit is taken through “Statement of Comprehensive Income (OCl)” and is
shown in the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is calculated
with reference to the net assets of the investee as per the latest audited financial statements. If the break-up value is less
than cost the difference is included in profit and loss account. Unquoted debt securities are valued using the market value of
secondary market where available.

HELD TO MATURITY

These are carried at amortized cost less impairment, determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations
issued by the SBP.

ADVANCES

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Provision for advances is determined in accordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP from time to time. In addition, a general provision
is maintained for advances other than consumer and small entities advances. General and specific provisions pertaining to
overseas advances are made in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities of the respective countries.

The provisions against non-performing advances are charged to the profit and loss account. Advances are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

ljarahs booked under Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ljarah (IFAS - 2) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any, and are shown under advances.

Depreciation on ljarah assets is charged to profit and loss account by applying the straight line method whereby the depreciable
value of ljarah assets is written off over the ljarah period. The Group charges depreciation from the date of delivery of respective
assets to Mustajir upto the date of maturity / termination of ljarah agreement.

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee are
classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payments including
any guaranteed residual value. Finance lease receivables are included in advances to the customers.

In Murabaha transactions, the Bank purchases the goods after taking the physical / constructive possession, sells the same to
the customer on cost plus profit basis.

In Salam, the seller undertakes to supply specific goods to the Group at a future date in consideration of a price fully paid in
advance at the time the contract of sale is made.

In Musharaka a relationship is established under a contract by the mutual consent of the Group and the customer for sharing
of profits and losses arising from a joint enterprise or venture.

Diminishing Musharaka (DM) is a form of co-ownership in which the Group and the customer share the ownership of a tangible
asset in an agreed proportion and customer undertakes to buy in periodic installments the proportionate share of the Group
until the title to such tangible asset is completely transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

In Istisna, a contract of sale is made whereby the Group places an order, to manufacture, assemble or construct, specific
commodity to be delivered at a future date.

48 FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed assets are stated at cost less impairment losses and accumulated depreciation except for freehold / leasehold land. Land
is carried at revalued amounts which is not depreciated. Land is revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value.

Surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of assets account and is shown under
the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. Except to the extent actually realized on disposal of
land which are revalued, the surplus on revaluation of land shall not be applied to set-off or reduce any deficit or loss, whether
past, current or future, or in any manner applied, adjusted or treated so as to add to the income, profit or surplus of the Group
or utilized directly or indirectly by way of dividend or bonus.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION

Depreciation / amortization is computed on a monthly basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets at the
rates set out in notes 10.2 and 11.1 respectively on a monthly basis. The cost of assets is depreciated / amortized on the
diminishing balance method, except for computer equipment, vehicles, carpets, renovations, other assets and intangibles
which are depreciated / amortized on a straight line basis. Depreciation / amortization is charged for the full month of purchase
/ acquisition / availability for use of an asset while no depreciation / amortization is charged in the month of disposal of an
asset. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account.

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization, the management uses useful life and residual value which reflects
the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The useful life and the residual value are
reviewed at each financial year end and any change in these estimates in future years might effect the carrying amounts of
the respective item of fixed assets with the corresponding effect on depreciation / amortization charge.

49 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and associated liabilities are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable. Assets designated as held for
sale are carried at the lower of carrying amount at designation and fair value less costs to sell, if fair value can reasonably be
determined.

410  BORROWINGS (REPQ)

Consideration received against securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are included in borrowings from financial
institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is recognized as mark-up / return expensed on a time proportion
basis.

411 DEPOSITS

Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on deposits is recognized separately as part of
other liabilities and is charged to profit and loss account on a time proportion basis.

Askari Bank Limited

The Group generates deposits in two modes i.e. “Qard” and “Modaraba” under Islamic Banking Operations. Deposits taken on
8 Qard basis are classified as ‘Current Accounts’ and deposits generated on Modaraba basis are classified as ‘Savings Accounts’
and ‘Fixed Deposit Accounts’.
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SUBORDINATED DEBTS

Subordinated debts are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on subordinated debts is charged to the
profit and loss account over the period on accrual basis.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

The Group operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. Contributions are made in accordance with
the actuarial recommendation. The actuarial valuation is carried out periodically using “Projected Unit Credit Method”.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal monthly contributions are
made both by the Bank and by the employees at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary of the employee.

ASL operates funded provident fund scheme fo all its regular employees for which equal monthly contributions are made by
ASL and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary of the employee.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Bank and ASL provides compensated absences to all its regular employees. Liability for unfunded scheme is recognized
on the basis of actuarial valuation using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision for the year is charged to consolidated
profit and loss account. The amount recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value
of defined benefit obligations.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Outstanding foreign bills purchased are valued at the rates applicable to the remaining maturities. Exchange
gains and losses are included in consolidated profit and loss account currently.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

The assets and liabilities of Wholesale Bank Branch are translated to Pak. Rupee at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position. The results of foreign operations are translated at the average rate of exchange
for the year.

TRANSLATION GAINS AND LOSSES

Translation gains and losses arising on revaluation of net investment in foreign operations are taken to equity under “Exchange
Translation Reserve” through other comprehensive income and on disposal are recognized in consolidated profit and loss
account.

COMMITMENTS
Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the rates applicable to the remaining
maturities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Mark-up / interest on advances and return on investments is recognized on accrual basis except on classified advances and
investments which is recognized on receipt basis. Mark-up / interest on rescheduled / restructured advances and investments
is recognized as permitted by the regulations of the SBP or overseas regulatory authority of the country where branch operates,
except where in the opinion of the management it would not be prudent to do so.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Fees and commission income is recognized at the time of performance of service.
Dividend income is recognized when Group’s right to receive the income is established.
Gains and losses on sale of investments are included in income currently.

Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease income
(excess of the sum of the total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased assets) is deferred and
taken to income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net
investment in lease. Repossessed vehicles on account of loan default are recorded in memorandum account.

Unrealized lease income is suspended on classified leases, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations
issued by the SBP. Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts, documentation charges, front-end fees and other lease
income are recognized as income on receipt basis.

Profit on Murabaha sale transaction not due for the payment is deferred by recording a credit to the “Deferred Murabaha
Income” account.

Profits on Musharaka and Diminishing Musharaka financings are recognized on accrual basis. Profit required to be suspended
in compliance with the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP is recorded on receipt basis.

Revenue on Salam finance is recognized at the time of sale of al-muslam fihi (salam goods).
The rentals received / receivable on ljarahs under IFAS-2 are recorded as income / revenue.
The Group recognizes revenue on Istisna finance at the time of sale of Al-Masnoo (Istisna goods).

416 TAXATION

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the consolidated
profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or below equity.

CURRENT

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using tax rates applicable at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position.

PRIOR YEARS

The tax charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge for prior years, arising from assessments, change in
estimates and retrospectively applied changes to law, made during the year.

DEFERRED

Deferred tax is provided for by using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the date of consolidated statement of financial position. A
deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available and credits
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax, on revaluation of investments, if any, is recognized as an adjustment to surplus / deficit arising on such revaluation.

Askari Bank Limited
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IMPAIRMENT
AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The Group determines that available for sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of these investments below their cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price in case of
listed securities. Impairment loss on available for sale debt securities is determined in accordance with the requirements of
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the consolidated profit and loss account. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. These
assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that their net carrying value does not
differ materially from their fair value. Surplus arising on revaluation of such properties is credited to the ‘surplus on revaluation
of non-banking assets’ account and any deficit arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees,
transfer costs and direct costs of acquiring title to property are charged to profit and loss account and are not capitalized.

OTHER PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amounts can be made. Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated
and reasonable certainty exists to settle the obligations. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer accounts.
Charge to consolidated profit and loss account is stated net-off expected recoveries.

OFF-SETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only set-off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision
of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires
or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specific in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and financial liability
is recognized in the profit and loss account of the current period. The particular recognition and subsequent measurement
methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with them.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account.
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4.26.1

4262

APPROPRIATIONS SUBSEQUENT TO DATE OF UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Appropriations subsequent to year end are recognized during the year in which those appropriations are made.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION AND APPROPRIATION

Dividends and appropriations (except for the appropriations required by law), made subsequent to the date of statement of
financial position are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the year in which these are approved / transfers
are made.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services (business segment)
or in providing product or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Group’s primary format of reporting is based on business
segments.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

BRANCH BANKING

This segment consists of loans, deposits and other banking services to commercial, SME, agriculture and individual customers,
including branchless banking services.

CORPORATE BANKING

Corporate banking includes project financing, trade financing and working capital to corporate customers. This segment is
also involved in investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisition, underwriting, privatization, securitization, IPQ’s
related activities and secondary private placements.

TREASURY

Treasury function is mainly engaged in money market activities, foreign exchange business and short term lendings and
borrowings from counter-parties.

CONSUMER BANKING

Consumer banking segment provides both secured and unsecured loans to retail customers.

ISLAMIC BANKING

This segment provides banking services to its customers in compliance with Shariah rules and directives, instructions and
guidelines issued by SBP.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Foreign operations consist of banking activities performed by Wholesale Bank Branch of the Bank.

HEAD OFFICE / OTHERS

This consists of activities not performed by any of above segments.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group operates in two geographic regions; Pakistan and the Middle East.



Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

INHAND
Local currency 10,368,791 9,348,230
Foreign currencies 1,935,969 1,646,801
12,304,760 10,995,031
WITH THE STATE BANK OF PAKISTAN IN
Local currency current accounts 5.1 24,210,710 22,009,777
Foreign currency current account 5.1 2,829,226 2,781,713
Foreign currency deposit account 5.2 7,946,957 6,998,986
34,986,893 31,790,476
WITH NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN IN
Local currency current accounts 1,883,326 1,442,060
Prize bonds 12,666 11,758
49,187,645 44,239,325

5.1 These represent current accounts maintained with the SBP to comply with the statutory cash reserve requirements.

5.2 This represents special cash reserve maintained with the SBP and carries mark-up at the rate of 1.50% (2017: 0.56%) per
annum.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

IN PAKISTAN

In current accounts 354,396 337,755
In deposit accounts 6.1 291 1,000,152
354,687 1,337,907

OUTSIDE PAKISTAN
In current accounts 1,047,160 852,324
In deposit accounts 6.2 2,691,565 1,003,604
3,738,725 1,855,928
Provision held against balances with other banks 6.3 (10) -
4,093,402 3,193,835

6.1 These represent placements with local banks, carrying interest rate of 8.0% (2017: 2.0% to 5.8%) per annum.

6.2 These represent placements with international correspondent banks, carrying interest rates upto 1.78% (2017: upto 2.04%)
per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

6.3 PROVISION HELD AGAINST BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

Opening balance - _

Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 6.4 24 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of Wholesale Bank Branch 24 -
Reversal of provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 6.4 (14) -
Closing balance 10 -

6.4 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
41.2.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

1 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call / clean money lendings - 750,000
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - 1,500,000
Purchase under resale arrangement of equity securities 148,606 148,606

148,606 2,398,606
Provision held against lending to financial institutions (148,606) (148,606)
Lending to financial institutions - net of provision - 2,250,000

11 PARTICULARS OF LENDING
In local currency 148,606 2,398,606

12 Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions

2018 2017
Further Further
Held by given as Held by given as
Rupees in ‘000 the Bank collateral Total the Bank collateral Total
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
— = - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
13 CATEGORY OF CLASSIFICATION
2018 2017
Classified Provision Classified Provision
Rupees in ‘000 lending held lending held
DOMESTIC
Loss 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606

Askari Bank Limited
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8. INVESTMENTS
2018 2017
Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying
Rupees in ‘000 amortized cost diminution (deficit) value amortized cost diminution (deficit) value
8.1 NVESTMENTS BY TYPE:
Available for sale securities
Federal Government Securities 244,060,807 (41,600)| | (6,125,979) | | 237,893,228 | | 295,321,140 - 1,503,492 | | 296,824,632
Shares 5,898,588 | | (1,437,160) (153,307)| | 4,308,121 4,546,848 (120,680) | | (1,022,869) 3,403,299
Units of open end mutual funds 1,032,012 (2,376) (58,190) 971,446 1,600,876 - 51,259 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 21,314 (7,139) 39,570 59,745 21314 (2,214) 41,620 66,720
Non Government Debt Securities 6,957,717 | | (1,540,848) (480)| | 5,416,389 8,300,057 | | (1,809,385) 27,418 6,518,090
Foreign securities 421,818 (2,659) (5,496) 413,663 228,590 - (164) 228,426
258398256  (3,031,782)  (6,303,882) 249,062,592 310,024,825 (1,932,279 600,756 308,693,302
Held to maturity securities
Federal Government Securities 11,203,815 (122,420) - || 11,171,3% 6,263,446 - - 6,263,446
Non Government Debt Securities 110,000 (110,000) - - 110,000 (110,000) - -
11,403,815 (232,420) - 11,171,3% 6,373,446 (110,000) - 6,263,446
Total investments 269,802,071 (3264202) (6,303,882 260,233,987 316,398,271 (2,042,279) 600,756 314,956,748
2018 2017
Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying Cost/  Provision for Surplus / Carrying
Rupees in ‘000 amortized cost diminution (deficit) value amortized cost diminution (deficit) value
82 INVESTMENTS BY SEGMENTS:
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills 124,708,053 - (10,339)| | 124,697,714 | | 129,957,532 - (632) | | 129,956,900
Pakistan Investment Bonds 105,470,628 -1 | (6,430,011)| | 99,040,617 || 154,200,275 - 1,514,588 | | 155,714,863
Euro Bonds 4,806,143 (67,251) (10,724)| | 4,728,168 3,597,884 - (1,624) 3,596,260
ljarah Sukuks 20,369,798 (96,769) 325095 || 20,598,124 | | 13,828,895 - (8,841) | | 13,820,054
255,354,622 (164,020 (6,125,979) 249,064,623 301,584,586 - 1,503,491 303,088,077
Shares
Listed companies 5,592,908 | | (1,431,480) (153,307)| | 4,008,121 4,522,808 (115,000) | | (1,022,868) 3,384,940
Unlisted companies 305,680 (5,680) - 300,000 24040 (5,680) - 18,360
5898588 (1,437,160) (153307) 4,308,121 4,546,848 (120,680)  (1,022,868) 3,403,300
Units of open end mutual funds 1,032,012 (2,376) (58,190) 971,446 1,600,876 - 51,259 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 21314 (7,139) 39,570 59,745 21314 2,214 41,620 66,720
Non Government Debt Securities
Listed 1,433,411 (226,836) 3,706 1,210,281 1,700,205 (822,184) 26,500 904,521
Unlisted 5,634,306 | | (1,424,012 (4,186)| | 4,206,108 6,709,852 || (1,097,201) 918 5,613,569
7,067,717 (1,650,848) (480)  5416,389 8,410,057 (1,919,389 21418 6,518,090
Foreign Securities
Government securities 421818 (2,659) (5,496) 413,663 228,590 - (164) 228,426
Total investments 269,802,071 (3,264,202 (6,303,882 260,233,987 316,398,271 (2,042,219) 600,756 314,956,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

8.2.1  INVESTMENTS GIVEN AS COLLATERAL

Market Treasury Bills 12,793,905 28,799,131
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 17,759,424
Euro Bonds 3,381,368 1,706,222
Bahrain International Bonds 144,747 -
Srilankan Investment Bonds 277,070 -
ljarah Sukuks 8,369,037 1,054,208

24,966,127 49,318,985

83 PROVISION FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

8.3.1  Opening balance 2,042,279 1,933,928
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 8.3.1.1 173,151 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 2,215,430 1,933,928
Charge / (reversals)

Charge for the year 1,331,427 171,110
Reversal of provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 8.3.1.1 (6,472) -
Reversals for the year (268,539) (62,759)
(7,644) -

1,048,772 108,351

Closing balance 3,264,202 2,042,279

8.3.1.1 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
41.2.

8.3.2  PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST DEBT SECURITIES

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 NPL Provision NPL Provision
CATEGORY OF CLASSIFICATION
Domestic
Loss 1,650,848 1,817,527 1,919,385 1,919,385
Total 1,650,848 1,817,527 1,919,385 1,919,385

Askari Bank Limited
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84 QUALITY OF AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

Details regarding quality of available for sale securities are as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - GOVERNMENT GUARANTEED
Market Treasury Bills 124,708,053 129,957,532
Pakistan Investment Bonds 105,023,310 154,200,275
Euro Bonds 1,049,793 573,033
ljarah Sukuks 13,279,651 10,590,300
244,060,807 295,321,140
SHARES
Listed Companies
Commercial banks 978,868 1,045,847
Chemicals 381,695 408,066
Fertilizer 382,188 307,471
Cement 660,776 461,571
Power generation and distribution 971,289 807,465
Investment banks / investment companies 12,956 12,956
Leasing companies 38,162 38,162
Paper and board 154,515 154,515
Glass and ceramics 80,915 80,915
Automobile parts and accessories 80,176 38,583
Cable and electrical goods 73,304 73,304
Automobile assembler 57,046 57,046
Engineering 194,793 76,213
Insurance 96,133 96,133
0il and gas marketing companies 455,040 238,592
Refinery 99,065 -
0Oil and gas exploration - 22,757
Textile composite 140,610 35,840
Pharmaceuticals 114,383 114,383
Real estate investment trust 580,242 421,305
Technology and communication 31,684 31,684
Vanaspati and allied industries 9,068 -
5,592,908 4,522,808
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Breakup value Cost Breakup value
UNLISTED COMPANIES
DHA Cogen Limited = = - -
Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee Agency Limited 5,680 - 5,680 -
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited 300,000 = 18,360 -
305,680 - 24,040 -

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Breakup value Cost Breakup value
UNITS OF OPEN END MUTUAL FUNDS
Unlisted Companies
NIT NIUT 500,000 444 531 500,000 494,882
NIT Islamic Equity Fund 50,000 41,621 50,000 49,976
Askari Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 53,226 50,868 53,226 56,381
Askari Asset Allocation Fund 100,846 101,668 100,846 110,429
Askari Equity Fund 53,988 45,691 53,988 52,978
Askari Islamic Income Fund 387 430 150,000 165,461
Askari High Yield Scheme 173,565 183,624 592,816 617,990
Askari Sovereign Yield Enhancer Fund 100,000 105,389 100,000 104,038
1,032,012 973,822 1,600,876 1,652,135
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost
FULLY PAID PREFERENCE SHARES
Listed Companies
Banks 2,214 2,214
Textile 25,100 25,100
27,314 27,314
NON GOVERNMENT DEBT SECURITIES
Listed
AAA 235,575 235,670
AA+, AA, AA- 771,000 1,017,128
A+, A, A- 200,000 -
CCC and below 226,836 447,407
1,433,411 1,700,205
Unlisted
AAA 2,604,170 2,669,170
AA+, AA, AA- 249,950 500,000
A+, A, A- 700,000 600,000
CCC and below 795,129 1,361,981
Unrated 1,175,057 1,468,701
5,524,306 6,599,852
2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost Rating Cost Rating
FOREIGN SECURITIES
Government Securities
Bahrain 144,748 B+ 116,297 B+
Sri Lanka 277,070 B 112,293 B+
421,818 228,590




2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Cost

85 PARTICULARS RELATING TO HELD TO MATURITY SECURITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS:
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - GOVERNMENT GUARANTEED

Pakistan Investment Bonds 447,318 -
Government of Pakistan Euro Bonds 3,756,350 3,024,851
ljarah Sukuks 6,059,093 3,238,595
GOP Bai Muajjal 1,031,054 -

11,293,815 6,263,446

NON GOVERNMENT DEBT SECURITIES

Listed
CCC and below 110,000 110,000

85.1  Market value of held to maturity securities other than classified investments as at December 31, 2018 is Rs. 11,029,123
thousand (2017: Rs. 6,342,916 thousand).

9. ADVANCES
Performing Non performing Total

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc - note 9.1 279,232,463 213,846,455 26,166,223 26,260,410 305,398,686 240,106,865
Islamic financing and related assets - note 3 of Annexure 46,583,103 34,318,955 435,096 436,842 47,018,199 34,755,797
Bills discounted and purchased 16,786,319 9,421,233 55,767 55,775 16,842,086 9,477,008
Advances - gross 342,601,885 257,586,643 26,657,086 26,753,027 369,258,971 284,339,670

Provision against advances
- Specific - - (25,113,169)| | (24,962,069)| | (25,113,169) (24,962,069)
- General (1,038,655) (684,515) - - (1,038,655) (684,515)
(1,038,655) (684,515)  (25,113169)  (24,962,069)  (26,151,824) (25,646,584)
Advances - net of provision 341,563,230 256,902,128 1,543,917 1,790,958 343,107,147 258,693,086

9.1 INCLUDES NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE AS DISCLOSED BELOW:

2018 2017
Later than later than
Non later  one and less Over five Non later  one and less Over five
Rupees in ‘000 than one year  than five year years Total  thanoneyear than five year years Total
Lease rentals receivable 3,090,048 3,165,598 8,224 6,263,870 2,946,733 3,440,986 26,830 6,414,549
Residual value 872,487 2,071,589 27,690 2,971,766 685,688 2,150,963 75,022 2,911,673
Minimum lease payments 3,962,535 5,237,187 35,914 9,235,636 3,632,421 5,591,949 101,852 9,326,222
Financial charges for future periods (364,904) (301,495) (375) (666,774) (339,257) (333,782) (1,153) (674,192)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,597,631 4,935,692 35,539 8,568,862 3,293,164 5,258,167 100,699 8,652,030
©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
9.2 PARTICULARS OF ADVANCES (GROSS)
In local currency 347,815,947 269,949,664
In foreign currencies 21,443,024 14,390,006
369,258,971 284,339,670
9.3 Advances include Rs. 26,657,086 thousand (2017: Rs. 26,753,027 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing

status as detailed below:

Askari Bank Limited
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2018 2017
Non—performing Provision Non—performing Provision
Rupees in ‘000 loans loans
Other Assets Especially Mentioned - note 9.3.1 90,038 1,883 137,409 -
Substandard 286,591 23,421 118,878 15,600
Doubtful 429,231 187,411 701,369 280,067
Loss 25,851,226 24,900,454 25,795,371 24,666,402
26,657,086 25,113,169 26,753,027 24,962,069
93.1  This represents classification for Agricultural, Mortgage and Small Entities finances.
94 PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST ADVANCES
2018 2017
Consumer Consumer
financing financing
Rupees in ‘000 Note Specific General — General Total Specific General - General Total
Opening halance 24,962,069 236,940 447575 25,646,584 26,353,791 236,944 368,599 26,959,334
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 9.4.1 - 164,947 - 164,947 - - - -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 24,962,069 401,887 447575 25,811,531 26,353,791 236,944 368,599 26,959,334
Charge for the year 2,413,023 81,302 102,568 || 2,596,893 891,105 37,450 90,267 || 1,018,822
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 9.4.1 - 16,119 - 16,119 - - - -
Reversal for the year (2,134,869) (879) (9,917)|| (2,145,665)| | (2,159,610) (37,454) (11,291)| (2,208,355)
278,154 96,542 92,651 467,347 (1,268,505) @) 78976 (1,189,533)
Amounts written off 9.5 - - - - - - - -
Amounts charged off- agriculture financing 9.6 (127,054) - - (127,054) (123,217) - - (123217)
Closing balance 25,113,169 498,429 540,226 26,151,824 24,962,069 236,940 447575 25,646,584

94.1
41.2.

This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note




9.4.2  PARTICULARS OF PROVISION AGAINST ADVANCES

2018 2017
Consumer Consumer
financing financing
Rupees in ‘000 Specific General - General Total Specific General - General Total
In local currency 24,748,225 317,363 540,226 25,605,814 24,414,467 236,940 447575 25,098,982
In foreign currencies 364,944 181,066 - 546,010 547,602 - - 547,602

25,113,169 498,429 540,226 26,151,824 24,962,069 236,940 447,575 25,646,584

943 The net FSV benefit already availed has been reduced by Rs. 187,900 thousand, which has resulted in increased charge
for specific provision for the year by the same amount. Had the FSV benefit not reduced, before and after tax profit for the
year would have been higher by Rs. 187,900 thousand (2017: Rs. 295,191 thousand) and Rs. 122,135 thousand (2017: Rs.
191,874 thousand) respectively. Further, at December 31, 2018, cumulative net of tax benefit availed for Forced Saled Value
(FSV) was Rs. 598,068 thousand (December 31, 2017: Rs. 720,203 thousand) under BSD Circular No. 1 of 2011 dated October
21,2011. Reserves and un-appropriated profit to that extent are not available for distribution by way of cash or stock dividend.

944  The Group has availed the relaxation of Rs. 102,460 thousand (2017: Rs. 102,460 thousand) allowed by the SBP for maintaining
provisions as per time based criteria of prudential regulations.
9.5 DETAILS OF LOANS WRITTEN OFF - Rs. 500,000 AND ABOVE

In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in respect of written
off loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended
December 31, 2018 is given in Annexure I.

96 AMOUNTS CHARGED OFF - AGRICULTURE FINANCING

This represents agriculture loans charged off as per time based criteria prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan in Annexure
I of Regulation R - 11 of Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

10. FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 10.1 53,738 121,294
Property and equipment 10.2 12,738,089 9,764,664
12,791,827 9,885,958

10.1  This represents advances to suppliers and contractors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

102 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2018
Land- Land- Buildings on Buildingson Renovation  Fumiture ~ Carpets ~ Machine ~ Computer  Vehicles Other  Operating Total
freghold- leasehold-  freehold leasehold of and office and  equipment assets  lease-
Rupees in ‘000 note 103 note 10.3 [and land  premises equipment equipment vehicles
ASATJANUARY 1, 2018
Cost / Revalued Amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 966,160 3541624 1283421 50,395 3,083,133 2789319 201,400 45761 1,834 17,640,025
Accumulated Depreciation - - 396072 302423 2445248 480126 30,110 1673358 2266753 144230 45207 1,834 7,875,361
Net book value 2909012 1,880,715 491,179 573737 1,096376 803295 20285 1409775 522566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018
Opening net book value 2909012 1,880,715 491,179 573737 1,096,376 803295 20285 1,409,775 522,566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
Additions - 2,585,004 - - 225257 102600 10002 266416 105387 13,061 - - 3307111
Movement in surplus on assets
revalued during the year 317,051 392,396 - - - - - - - - - - 709447
Disposals - - - - (7190) (6,269 (790)  (7,089) - (20) - - (21350
Decpreciation charge - - (24002 (28039) (378407)  (82080)  (8781) (290,064) (186907) (24,421 (133) - (1,022,834)
Other adjustments / transfers - - - - 28 (305) 326 (68) 437 (26) - - 39
Closing net book value 3226063 4858175 467177 545698 936,084 817242 21,042 1378970 441483 45754 a2 - 12,738,089
AS AT DECENBER 31, 2018
Cost / Revalued Amount 3206063 4858175 887251 966,160 3,693,653 1,366,715 52,558 3303655 2870807 206,147 45761 1,834 21,478,779
Accumulated Depreciation - - 40074 420462 2757589 549473 31516 1924685 2429324 160,393 45340 1,834 8,740,690
Net book value 3226063 4858175 467177 545698 936,064 817242 21,042 1378970 441483 45754 a1 - 12,738,089
RATE OF DEPRECIATION (PERCENTAGE) - - 5 5 2 10 2 20 2 2 20 20
017
Land- Land- Buildingson Buildingson Renovation ~ Furniture ~ Carpets ~ Machine  Computer  Vehicles Other ~ Operating Total
freghold-  leasehold-  freghold  leasehold of and office and  equipment assets lease -
Rupees in ‘000 note 0.3 note 10.3 [and land  premises  equipment equipment vehicles
ASATJANUARY 1, 2017
Cost / Revalued Amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 901,110 3190332 1100889 51,488 2710384 2,656,190 202,366 4519 1,834 16,536,767
Accumulated Depreciation - - 371,265 363216 2,153,660 411,532 30,408 1454163 1730087 123830 45103 1,834 6,685,098
Net book value 2909012 1880715 515986 537,894 1,036,672 689357 21,080 1256221 926,103 78,536 %3 - 9,851,669
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017
Opening net book value 2909012 1880715 515986 537,894 1,036,672 689357 21,080 1,256,221 926,103 78,536 %3 - 9,851,669
Additions - - - 65050 393887 194869 799 437816 158,007 2,700 565 - 1,260,980
Movement in surplus on assets
revalued during the year - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - (9105 (6937 (1,148  (10,746) (748) - - - (28684
Decpreciation charge - - (24807)  (29207) (324378  (76,103)  (7,764) (276,974) (563,032)  (24,066) (104) - (1,326,435
Other adjustments / transfers - - - - (700) 2,109 121 3,458 2,146 - - - 7,134
Closing net book value 2909012 1880715 491,179 573737 1,096,376 803295 20,285 1,409,775 522566 57,170 554 - 9764664
AS AT DECENBER 31, 2017
Cost / Revalued Amount 2909012 1,880,715 887,251 966,160 3541624 1283421 50,395 3083133 2789319 201,400 45761 1,834 17,640,025
Accumulated Depreciation - - 396072 392423 2445248 480,126 30,110 1,673358 2,266,753 144230 45207 1,834 7,875,361
Net book value 2909012 1880715 491,179 573737 1,096,376 803295 20,285 1,409,775 522,566 57,170 554 - 9,764,664
RATE OF DEPRECIATION (PERCENTAGE) - - 5 5 2 10 2 20 2 2 2 20
o] Land- Land- Buildings on Buildingson Renovation  Furniture ~ Carpets ~ Machine  Computer  Vehicles Other ~ Operating Total
_g freehold- leasehold-  freehold  leasehold of  and office and  equipment assets  lease-
E Rupegs in ‘000 note 103 note 10.3 [and land  premises equipment equipment vehicles
-
= 1021 Cost of fully depreciated
a property and equipment
§ 2018 - - - - 1745242 1974 11757 26094 1955689 78718 45100 1,834 3,866,408
%))
< 2017 - - - - 1720433 2,198 9,980 8375 1927367 7955 45100 1,834 3,794,842
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103  The Group’s freehold and leasehold land was revalued by the valuers approved by the Pakistan Banks Association on
December 31, 2018 on the basis of their professional assessment of present market value. The amount of revaluation surplus
after valuation of land is Rs. 3,649,575 thousand. The information relating to location of revalued land is as follows:

Revalued
Amount
City Rupees in ‘000 Name of Valuers
Karachi 1,086,577 K.G. Traders (Pvt) Limited
Lahore 1,758,663 -do -
Islamabad 2,994,840 -do -
Rawalpindi 1,663,520 -do -
Peshawar 21,613 -do -
Quetta 559,025 -do-
8,084,238

104  Had the land not been revalued, the carrying amount of land as at December 31, 2018 would have been Rs. 4,542,321
thousand.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software 704,885 827,931

Less: Provision against intangibles (24,404) (24,404)
680,481 803,527

Capital work in progress 60,880 39,342
741,361 842,869

111 SOFTWARE

AS AT JANUARY 1,

Cost 2,070,599 1,968,448

Accumulated amortization 1,242,668 1,046,236

Net book value 827,931 922,212

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Opening net book value 827,931 922,212

Additions

- directly purchased 72,248 102,195

Amortization charge (195,294) (196,476)

Closing net book value 704,885 827,931

AS AT DECEMBER 31,

Cost 2,142,847 2,070,599

Accumulated amortization 1,437,962 1,242,668
-]

Net book value 704,885 827,931 §

RATE OF AMORTIZATION (PERCENTAGE) 10 10 §
[~4

Useful life 10 years 10 years E
g
<

11.1.1  Cost of fully amortized intangible assets still in use amounts to Rs. 139,831 thousand (2017: Rs. 75,927 thousand). 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018

At January 1, Recognized in Recognized in At December 31,

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 P&LA/C ocl 2018

12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible temporary differences on

- Post retirement employee benefits 165,267 - (1,667) 163,600

- Deficit on revaluation of investments - - 2,206,359 2,206,359

- Impact under IFRS 9 related to WBB 12.1 - 3,476 458 3,934

- Provision against advances, off balance sheet 521,455 1,046,552 - 1,568,007

686,722 1,050,028 2,205,150 3,941,900

- Impact under IFRS 9 related to WBB 12.1 - - - 117,937

686,722 1,050,028 2,205,150 4,059,837
Taxable temporary differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of investments (210,265) - 210,265 -
- Accelerated tax depreciation (375,702 89,644 - (286,058)
(585,967) 89,644 210,265 (286,058)

100,755 1,139,672 2,415,415 3,773,779

2017
At January 1, Recognized in Recognized in At December 31,
Rupees in ‘000 2018 P&LA/C ocl 2018
Deductible temporary differences on
- Post retirement employee benefits 103,884 - 61,383 165,267
- Provision against advances, off balance sheet 1,398,680 (877,225) - 521,455
1,502,564 (877,225) 61,383 686,722
Taxable temporary differences on
- Surplus on revaluation of investments (1,491,068) - 1,280,803 (210,265)
- Accelerated tax depreciation (537,926) 162,224 - (375,702)
(2,028,994) 162,224 1,280,803 (585,967)
(526,430) (715,001) 1,342,186 100,755

121 This represents deferred tax impact consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described
in note 4.1.2.
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2018 2017

Rupees in ‘000 Note (Restated)
13. OTHER ASSETS
Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision 13.1 9,793,092 9,276,297
Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 477,756 323,568
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 1,321,871 1,343,586
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 5,918,572 5,612,384
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 13.3 3,201,319 3,189,936
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts - net 607,925 732,738
Suspense account 48,637 47,159
Stationary and stamps in hand 105,007 60,258
Dividend receivable 13.2 1,139 6,466
Acceptances 8,735,265 5,976,910
Others 472,257 339,727
30,682,840 26,909,029
Provision held against other assets 13.4 (257,811) (272,565)
Other assets - net of provision 30,425,029 26,636,464
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims 2,097,145 1,811,635
Other assets - total 32,522,174 28,448,099
13.1  This balance is net of interest in suspense amounting to Rs. 10,057,089 thousand (2017: Rs. 10,903,151 thousand).
132 This balance is net of dividend in suspense amounting to Rs. 81,020 thousand (2017: Rs. 81,020 thousand).
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
13.3  Market value of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 5,298,464 5,001,571

The Group’s Non-banking assets were revalued by the valuers approved by the Pakistan Banks’ Association on December 31,
2018 on the basis of their professional assessment of present market value. The amount of revaluation surplus after valuation
of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim is Rs. 2,104,333 thousand. The information relating to location of
revalued non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim is as follows:

Revalued
Amount
City Rupees in ‘000 Name of Valuers
Karachi 428,198 K.G. Traders (Pvt) Limited
Lahore 717,316 -do-
Islamabad 3,209,644 -do-
Faisalabad 540,723 -do-
Quetta 396,708 -do-
Sheikhupura 413,447 -do-
5,706,036
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

13.3.1  NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Opening balance 5,001,571 4,938,757
Additions 550,224 -
Revaluation 452,228 203,599
Disposals (629,580) (54,924)
Adjustments (16,907) (53,989)
Depreciation (99,072) (31,872)
Closing balance 5,298,464 5,001,571

13.3.2  GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Disposal proceeds 845,207 59,247
Less

- Carrying value (629,580) (54,924)

- Depreciation 11,165 -

(618,415) (54,924)

Gain 226,792 4,323

134 PROVISION HELD AGAINST OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - 506
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 142,470 148,695
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 15,952 15,952
Suspense account 34,408 34,308
Dividend receivable - 3,407
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 13.4.1.1 447 -
Others 64,534 69,697

257,811 272,565

13.4.1  MOVEMENT IN PROVISION HELD AGAINST OTHER ASSETS

Opening balance 272,565 242,040
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 13.41.1 149 -
Opening balance after IFRS 9 impact of WBB 272,714 242,040
Charge for the year 230 36,571
Provision under IFRS 9 related to WBB 13.41.1 298 -
Reversals for the year (15,431) (3,546)
Amount written off - (2,500)
(14,903) 30,525
Closing balance 257,811 272,565

13.4.1.1 This represents provision consequent to applicability of IFRS 9 on the Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain as described in note
4.1.2.
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

141 Ananalysis of the assets and liabilities attributable to discontinued operations as at the date of Statement of Financial Position
is as follows:

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

14.1.1  ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Cash and balances with treasury banks - -
Balances with other banks 69,943 167,994

Lendings to financial institutions = -
Investments 57,429 40,411
Advances 911 810
Fixed assets 4,238 5,028
Intangible assets 16,696 15,989
Deferred tax assets - -
Other assets 65,540 97,717
214,757 327,949
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Bills payable - -
Borrowings - -

Deposits and other accounts - -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -

Subordinated debt - -
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Other liabilities 81,513 140,741
81,513 140,741
133,244 187,208
14.1.2  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Mark-up / return / interest earned 1,160 1,077
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 59 33
Net mark-up / interest income 1,101 1,044
Non mark-up / interest income
Fee and commission income 33,484 79,135
Dividend income 2,287 864
Foreign exchange income - -
Income / (loss) from derivatives = -
Gain on securities 4,486 38,095
Other income 1,245 12,277
Total non-markup / interest income 41,502 130,371
Total income 42,603 131,415
Non mark-up / interest expenses
Operating expenses 42,517 114,622
Workers’ Welfare Fund - -
Other charges - -
Total non-markup / interest expenses 42,517 114,622
Profit before provisions 86 16,793 3
Provisions and write offs - net - - &
Extraordinary / unusual items - - £
Q
Profit before taxation 86 16,793 &
Taxation (2,745) (10,182) ]
c
Profit after taxation (2,659) 6,611 £

15
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Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
14.1.3  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit after taxation (2,659) 6,611
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plan - net of tax (1,478) 44
Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax (14,154) (27,330)
(18,291) (20,675)
14.1.4  CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Net cash flows from operating activities 52,608 (20,561)
Net cash flows from investing activities (16,935) 341,950
Net cash flows from financing activities = -
15. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 15,512,880 10,769,262
16. BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan under:
Export refinance scheme 16.1.1 12,455,680 12,029,461
Long term financing facility 16.1.2 6,281,267 4,673,546
Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 16.1.3 5,833 9,167
Renewable energy financing facility 16.1.4 224,077 126,427
18,966,857 16,838,601
Repurchase agreement borrowings
State Bank of Pakistan 16.1.5 - 40,522,945
Financial institutions 16.1.6 20,766,755 8,622,609
20,766,755 49,145,554
Refinance from Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 16.1.7 1,000,000 -
Total secured 40,733,612 65,984,155
Unsecured
Call borrowings 16.1.8 10,851,663 5,599,688
Overdrawn nostro accounts 1,117,048 3,468
Total unsecured 11,968,711 5,603,156
52,702,323 71,587,311
16.1.1  This facility is secured against demand promissory note executed in favour of the SBP. The effective mark-up rate is 1% to 3%
(2017: 1% to 2%) per annum payable on a quarterly basis.
16.1.2  This facility is secured against demand promissory note executed in favour of the SBP. The effective mark-up rate is 2.0% to
8.4% (2017: 2.0% to 8.4%) per annum payable on a quarterly basis.
16.1.3 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry markup of 3.25% (2017: 3.25%) per annum and have
maturities upto 2020.
16.1.4 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry markup of 2% (2017: 2%) per annum and have
maturities upto 2027.
16.15 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry markup of NIL (2017: 5.81% to 5.85%) per annum and

have maturities upto NIL (2017: 1 month).




16.1.6 These are secured against pledge of Government Securities and carry markup of 3.40% to 10.35% (2017: 2.55% to 5.85%)
per annum and have maturities upto 1 month (2017: 6 months).

16.1.7 This is secured against mortgage finance portfolio of the Bank and carry markup of 10.71% per annum and has maturity upto
2021.

16.1.8 These carry mark-up of 1.35% to 9.55% (2017: 2.50% to 5.85%) per annum and having maturity upto 6 months (2017:
7 months).

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

162 PARTICULARS OF BORROWINGS WITH RESPECT TO CURRENCIES

In local currency 40,876,145 65,123,725
In foreign currencies 11,826,178 6,463,586
52,702,323 71,587,311

17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2018 2017
In local In foreign Total In local In foreign Total
Rupees in ‘000 currency currencies currency currencies
CUSTOMERS
Current accounts - non-remunerative 146,665,829 16,404,508 | | 163,070,337 | | 129,425,106 14,256,608 | | 143,681,714
Current accounts - remunerative 589,527 - 589,527 751,535 - 751,535
Savings deposits 284,295,933 30,842,212 | | 315,138,145 | | 263,396,417 28,131,518 | | 291,527,935
Fixed deposits 80,061,600 5,961,134 86,022,734 76,680,258 4,854,849 81,535,107
Special exporters’ account - 236,081 236,081 - 150,636 150,636
Margin accounts 3,623,587 7,676 3,631,263 3,509,049 5,698 3,514,747
Others 1,218,199 - 1,218,199 1,163,372 - 1,163,372
516,454,675 53,451,611 569,906,286 474,925,737 47,399,309 522,325,046
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Current accounts - non-remunerative 811,441 - 811,441 662,737 - 662,737
Savings deposits 1,441,152 - 1,441,152 1,386,268 - 1,386,268
Fixed deposits 1,438,047 - 1,438,047 1,431,000 - 1,431,000
3,690,640 - 3,690,640 3,480,005 - 3,480,005
520,145,315 53,451,611 573,596,926 478,405,742 47,399,309 525,805,051
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

17.1  COMPOSITION OF DEPOSITS

- Individuals 225,474,253 202,145,869
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 187,851,067 168,770,000
- Public Sector Entities 41,581,294 40,344,475
- Banking Companies 107 125
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 3,690,533 3,479,880
- Private Sector 114,999,672 111,064,702

573,596,926 525,805,051

172 Total deposits include eligible deposits of Rs. 259,578,178 thousand (2017: Rs. 237,700,985 thousand) as required by the
Deposit Protection Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 of 2018 dated June 22, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
18. SUBORDINATED DEBTS

Term Finance Certificates - IV - 997,600

Term Finance Certificates - V 3,993,600 3,995,200

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1) 6,000,000 -

9,993,600 4,992,800

18.1  The Group has raised unsecured subordinated loans through issuance of Term Finance Certificates to improve the Group’s
capital adequacy. Liability to the TFC holders is subordinated to and rank inferior to all other indebtedness of the Group
including deposits and is not redeemable before maturity without prior approval of the SBP. The salient features of outstanding

issues are as follows:
Term Finance Certificates - V

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1)

Outstanding amount -

Rupees in 000 3,993,600 6,000,000

Issue amount Rupees 4,000 million Rupees 6,000 million
Issue date September 30, 2014 July 3,2018
Maturity Date September 29, 2024 Perpetual

Rating AA- AA-

Security Unsecured Unsecured

Listing Unlisted Unlisted

Profit payment frequency Payable six monthly Payable six monthly
Redemption 6-108th month: 0.36% Perpetual

109-120th month: 99.64%

Profit rate Base rate plus 1.20%
Base rate is the simple average of the ask
rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the base
rate setting date.

Call option Exercisable after 60 months from the date of
issue subject to approval by the SBP.

Lock-in-clause NIL

Loss absorption clause NIL

Base rate plus 1.50%

Base rate is the simple average of the ask
rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the base
rate setting date.

Exercisable after 60 months from the date of
issue subject to approval by the SBP.

Payment of profit will be subject to the condition that
such payment will not result in breach of the Bank’s
regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement or Capital
Adequacy Ratio set by SBP from time to time. Any
inability to exercise lock-in clause or the non-
cumulative features will subject these TFCs

to mandatory conversion into common shares

/ write off at the discretion of SBP.

The instrument will be subject to loss absorption
if Bank’s Common Equity Tier (CET-1) ratio falls to
or below 6.625% of Risk Weighted Assets or at
the option of SBP.



Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 3,167,365 2,601,197
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 166,309 139,760
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 558,086 255,495
Accrued expenses 1,125,210 935,879
Advance payments 439,176 389,031
Acceptances 8,735,265 5,976,910
Dividends payable 127,053 139,256
Branch adjustment account 310,170 285,884
Payable to defined benefit plan 52,851 489,526
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 19.1 108,025 6,116
Security deposit against lease / ljarah financing 4,473,848 4,156,902
Withholding taxes payable 134,361 84,679
Federal excise duty payable 68,562 48,507
Workers’ Welfare Fund 30 130,000 670,060
Switch fee payable 747,778 393,394
Others 834,417 525,627

21,178,476 17,098,223

19.1  PROVISION AGAINST OFF-BALANCE SHEET OBLIGATIONS

Opening balance 6,116 6,116
Charge for the year 101,909 -
Closing balance 108,025 6,116

20.  SHARE CAPITAL
20.1  AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of shares Rupees in ‘000
2,000,000,000 1,600,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 20,000,000 16,000,000

202 Pursuant to approval of shareholders in the 26th Annual General Meeting, the Bank’s authorized share capital has been
increased to Rs. 20,000,000 thousand from Rs. 16,000,000 thousand divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

20.3  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017
Number of shares Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each: Rupees in ‘000
514,689,096 514,689,096 Fully paid in cash 5,146,891 5,146,891
717,297,769 717,297,769 Issued as bonus shares 7,172,978 7,172,978
28,273,315 28,273,315 Issued on Askari Leasing Limited merger 282,733 282,733
1,260,260,180 1,260,260,180 12,602,602 12,602,602

204  The Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 percent of ordinary shares of the Bank as on December 31, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000

2018

2017
(Restated)

21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:

Askari Bank Limited

—
(@]

- Available for sale securities (6,303,882) 600,756
- Fixed assets 3,649,575 2,940,128
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 2,097,145 1,811,635
(557,162) 5,352,519
Deferred tax on (deficit) / surplus on revaluation
of Available for sale securities 2,206,359 (210,265)
1,649,197 5,142,254
21.1  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January, 1 2,940,128 2,940,128
Recognized during the year 709,447 -
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December, 31 3,649,575 2,940,128
212 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED
IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS
Surplus on revaluation as at January, 1 1,811,635 1,617,860
Recognized during the year 452,228 203,599
Realized on disposal during the year (165,184) (3,278)
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year- net of deferred tax (628) (6,546)
Adjustment during the year (906) -
Surplus on revaluation as at December, 31 2,097,145 1,811,635
Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
- Guarantees 221 177,859,159 147,353,703
- Commitments 22.2 311,768,322 275,278,355
- Other contingent liabilities 22.3 792,879 771,897
490,420,360 423,403,955
22.1  GUARANTEES
Financial guarantees 77,942,385 70,976,864
Performance guarantees 82,128,279 56,176,690
Other guarantees 17,788,495 20,200,149
177,859,159 147,353,703




Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

222 COMMITMENTS

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 212,101,045 173,837,361
Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts 22.21 58,918,497 35,438,198
- forward lending 22.2.2 40,682,738 65,592,271
Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets 29,633 80,182
- intangible assets 30,628 39,013
Commitments in respect future contract transactions

of equity securities 5,781 9,690
Other commitments 22.2.3 = 281,640

311,768,322 275,278,355

22.2.1  COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Purchase 36,434,542 26,354,478
Sale 22,483,955 9,083,720
58,918,497 35,438,198

The above commitments have maturities falling within one year.

22.2.2  COMMITMENTS IN RESPECT OF FORWARD LENDING

Forward repurchase agreement lending 20,806,907 50,765,763
Undrawn commitments 22.2.2.1 19,875,831 14,826,508
40,682,738 65,592,271

22.2.2.1 These represent commitments that are irrevocable because they cannot be withdrawn at the discretion of the Group without
the risk of incurring significant penalty or expense.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

22.2.3  OTHER COMMITMENTS

This represents participation in the equity of a proposed Mortgage
Refinance Company - 281,640

22.3  OTHER CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

These represent certain claims by third parties against

the Group, which are being contested in the courts of law.

The management is of the view that these relate to

the normal course of business and are not likely to

result in any liability against the Group. 792,879 771,897
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

23. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Group at present does not offer derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps, Cross Currency Swaps, Forward Rate
Agreements or Foreign Exchange Options. The Group’s Treasury and Investment Banking Groups buy and sell derivative
instruments such as Forward Exchange Contracts (FECs) and Equity Futures (EFs).

23.1  FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

FECs is a product offered to clients to hedge FX risk. The traders use this product to hedge themselves from unfavourable
movements in a foreign currency, however, by agreeing to fix the exchange rate, they do not benefit from favourable movements
in that currency.

FECs is a contract between the obligor and the Group in which both agree to exchange an amount of one currency for another
currency at an agreed forward exchange rate for settlement over more than two business days after the FECs is entered into
(the day on which settlement occurs is called the value date). FECs is entered with those obligors whose credit worthiness has
already been assessed, and they have underlined trade transactions.

If the relevant exchange rate moves unfavourably, the Group will loose money, and obligor will benefit from that movement
because the Group must exchange currencies at the FEC rate. In order to mitigate this risk of adverse exchange rate movement,
the Group manages its exposure by hedging forward position in inter-bank foreign exchange.

232 EQUITY FUTURES

An equity futures contract is a standardized contract, traded on a futures counter of the stock exchange, to buy or sell a certain
underlying scrip at a certain date in the future, at a specified price.

The Group uses equity futures as a hedging instrument to hedge its equity portfolio against equity price risk. Only selected
shares are allowed to be traded on futures exchange. Equity futures give flexibility to the Group either to take delivery on
the future settlement date or to settle it by adjusting the notional value of the contract based on the current market rates.
Maximum exposure limit to the equity futures is 10% of Tier | Capital of the Group, based on prevailing SBP Regulations.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Group’s exposure in equity futures and forward exchange contracts. Positions
in equity futures and forward exchange contracts are marked-to-market and are included in measures of portfolio volatility
including Value at Risk (VaR). Forward exchange contracts and equity futures are also included in capital charge and Risk
Weighted Asset calculation in accordance with SBP Regulations.

The accounting policies used to recognize and disclose derivatives are given in note 4.21.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

24. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:
a) Loans and advances 23,859,186 17,035,031
b) Investments 18,436,042 18,854,826
¢) Lendings to financial institutions 93,870 189,798
d) Balances with banks 106,818 99,183
e) Securities purchased under resale agreements 1,173,967 88,382
o 43,669,883 36,267,220
[0}
E 25. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
X
§ Deposits 22,104,113 17,253,694
= Borrowings 2,302,209 2,442,229
ﬁ Subordinated debts 653,603 376,035
164 25,059,925 20,071,958




Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017
26. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 415,748 328,076
Consumer finance related fees 80,538 85,378
Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 809,492 524,761
Credit related fees 123,343 135,549
Investment banking fees 186,465 272,179
Commission on trade 592,296 509,239
Commission on guarantees 502,400 494,130
Commission on remittances including home remittances 96,994 73,319
Commission on bancassurance 228,946 231,821
Others 79,848 52,342
3,116,070 2,706,794
21. GAIN ON SECURITIES
Realized gain / (loss) on:
Federal Government securities 237,818 1,392,979
Provincial Government securities - -
Shares (10,631) 606,508
Non Government debt securities 1,780 -
Foreign securities - -
Mutual funds 31,136 63,556
260,103 2,063,043
28. OTHER INCOME
Rent of property 9,359 13,485
Loss on sale of fixed assets 28.1 (5,253) (10,551)
Rent of lockers 38,525 30,228
Gain on sale of non-banking assets 28.2 226,792 4,323
Recovery of expenses from customers 148,658 162,856
418,081 200,341
28.1  This includes an amount of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. Nil) on account of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets realized on disposal.
28.2  GAIN ON SALE OF NON-BANKING ASSET
2018
Cost Revalued Cash Gain on Mode of
Name of party amount received sale disposal
Rupees ‘000
AH. International (Pvt) Limited 395,292 517,566 735,000 217,434 Buy back
Shafi Exports (Pvi) Limited 69,104 100,849 110,207 9,358 Buy back
464,396 618,415 845,207 226,792
2017
Cost Revalued Cash Gain on Mode of
Name of party amount received sale disposal
Rupees ‘000
AH. International (Pvt) Limited 3,686 5,000 5,000 - Buy back
Shafi Exports (Pvi) Limited 47,960 49,924 54,247 4,323 Buy back
51,646 54,924 59,247 4,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000

2018

2017

29. OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL COMPENSATION EXPENSES 8,502,023 8,064,405
PROPERTY EXPENSE
Rent and taxes 1,692,027 1,477,504
Insurance 93,144 94,814
Utilities cost 547,660 495,135
Security (including guards) 546,841 531,780
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 230,124 228,038
Depreciation 430,449 378,391
3,540,245 3,205,662
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EXPENSE
Software maintenance 256,653 (100,543)
Hardware maintenance 41,898 32,676
Depreciation 186,905 563,034
Amortisation 195,294 196,476
Network charges 221,761 162,221
902,511 853,864
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Directors’ fees, allowances 8,250 6,494
Fees and allowances to shariah board 4,940 3,965
Rent, taxes, insurance etc. 186,866 162,357
Legal and professional charges 110,524 104,951
Brokerage and commission 81,567 55,523
NIFT clearing charges 53,463 57,494
Repair and maintenance 254,147 250,389
Communications 417,668 380,369
Stationery and printing 216,611 178,977
Marketing, advertisement and publicity 114,548 152,296
Donations 43,388 -
Auditors’ remuneration 13,126 11,319
Travelling and conveyance 872,272 703,591
Depreciation 405,481 385,010
Subscriptions 32,567 29,098
Training and development 19,305 19,767
Other expenditure 461,012 323,265
3,295,735 2,824,865
16,240,514 14,948,796




Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

29.1  TOTAL COMPENSATION EXPENSES
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed 4,007,601 3,934,080
i) Variable

- Cash bonus / awards etc. 665,984 621,248
4,673,585 4,555,328

Charge for defined benefit plans 29.1.1 586,359 378,032
Contribution to defined contribution plan 37 263,112 255,175
Rent and house maintenance 1,578,787 1,535,987
Utilities 345,968 337,546
Medical 485,054 474,313
Conveyance 344,721 310,477
Other staff cost 29.1.2 224,437 217,547
8,502,023 8,064,405

29.1.1 This includes charge for gratuity fund and leave encashment.

29.1.2 This includes EOBI contribution by the Group, incentive to consumer sales staff, dearness allowance, cash handling allowance
and staff group insurance etc.

292 This includes donation given for ‘Diamer Bhasha and Mohmand Dams Fund’ and contibution made to Armed Forces Institute
of Cardiology through Fauji Foundation amounting to Rs. 42,523 thousand and purchase of Suzuki Bolan along with allied
expense for ‘Care for Special Persons Foundation’ of Rs. 865 thousand. Donation was not given to any donee in which the
Group or any of its directors or their spouses had any interest.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

29.3  AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Statutory auditors of the Bank
Audit fee 3,795 3,300
Fee for the audit of provident and gratuity funds 300 220
Special certifications, half year review, audit of consolidated

financial statements and sundry advisory services 4,781 4,200
Out of pocket expenses 1,321 1,219
10,197 8,939

Auditors of Wholesale Bank Branch, Bahrain
Audit fee 2,929 2,380
13,126 11,319

30. WORKERS' WELFARE FUND
Opening balance 670,060 500,227
Charge for the year 159,940 169,833
Reversal for the prior periods 30.1 (700,000) -

(540,060) 169,833
Closing balance 130,000 670,060
30.1  The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 held that the amendment made in the law introduced

by the Fedral Government for the levy of Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) was ultra vires of the constitution. The Federal Board
of Revenue has filed review petition against this order which is currently pending. During 2015, the Sindh Workers’ Welfare
Fund Act, 2014 (the Sindh Act) was promulgated under which the applicability of WWF has only been affected in the Province
of Sindh. Based on legal advice obtained, the Group has reversed outstanding provision of WWF amounting to Rs. 700,000
thousand pertaining to areas other than Sindh province and carried the provision relating to province of Sindh amounting to
Rs. 130,000 thousand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

31. OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 905 23,568
Premium paid to Deposit Protection Corporation - (subsidiary of SBP) 31.1 190,162 -
191,067 23,568

31.1  This premium is paid as required by the Deposit Protection Corporation’s (a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No. 4 dated June 22,
2018.

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

32. PROVISIONS / (REVERSAL OF PROVISIONS) AND WRITE OFFS - NET

Provision for diminution in value of investments 8.3.1 1,048,772 108,351
Provision / (reversal of provision) against loans and advances 9.4 467,347 (1,189,533)
Impairment loss on available for sale investments - 30,047
(Reversal) / provision against other assets 13.4.1 (14,903) 33,025
Reversal of provision against intangible assets - (11,193)
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 101,909 -
Reversal of provision against assets held for sale - -
Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (142,536) (147,129)
Reversal of provision against cash and bank balances (14) -
1,460,575 (1,176,432)
33. TAXATION
Current 2,009,641 2,265,570
Prior years’ 1,578,208 243,344
Deferred (1,139,672) 715,001
2,448,177 3,223,915
33.1  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT
Profit before taxation 6,879,455 8,345,601
Tax at applicable tax rate of 35 percent (2017: 35 percent) 2,407,809 2,920,960
Effect of:
- charge for prior years 39,183 243,344
- permanent differences 1,185 8,440
2,448,177 3,172,744

332  The Honourable Islamabad High Court (IHC) in its order dated March 13, 2018, disallowed provision against Non-Performing
Loans (NPLs) during tax years 1995 — 1996 to 2008, the period prior to enactment of the Seventh Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has also upheld the IHC order. Consequently, the tax demand
raised in re-assessment orders has been paid by the Group. The Group has recognized prior year tax charge against this
disallowance net off actual write offs and recoveries from tax years 2009 to 2019 related to NPLs disallowed. In this respect,
aggregate prior year tax expense recorded during the year is Rs. 1,660 million along with the related deferred tax asset of
Rs. 1,497 million.

333  TAXSTATUS

i) The Group has filed tax returns for and up to tax year 2018 (year ended 31 December 2017). The assessments for and up to
tax year 2017 were amended by the tax authorities mainly in the matters of admissibility of provisions against doubtful debts
and diminution in the value of investments, bad debts written off, apportionment of expenses to income exempt from tax or
taxable at a lower rate and basis of taxation of commission and brokerage income.

Askari Bank Limited

Tax payments made in relation to the matters currently pending are being carried forward as receivable, as management is
8 confident of their realization as and when the appeals are decided.
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ii) Consequent upon the amalgamation with and into the Group, the outstanding tax issues relating to Askari Leasing Limited
(ALL) are as follows:

Tax returns of ALL have been filed for and up to tax year 2010. The returns for the tax years 2003 to 2010 were amended by
the tax authorities mainly in the matter of admissibility of initial allowance claimed on leased vehicles. On appeals filed by
ALL, partial relief was provided by the CIR(A) by allowing initial allowance on commercial vehicles. Re-assessment has not yet
been carried out by the tax department. A tax demand is however not likely to arise after re-assessment.

For and up to the assessment years 2002-2003, reference applications filed by the tax authorities in the matter of computation
of lease income are pending decisions by the Islamabad High Court. However the likelihood of an adverse decision is considered
low due to a favourable decision of the High Court in parallel cases.

2018 2017
34. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year - Rupees in ‘000 4,429,310 5,121,686
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares - numbers 1,260,260,180 1,260,260,180
Basic earnings per share - Rupees 3.51 4.06

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group, therefore dilutive earnings per share have not been
presented separately.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 44,239,325
Balances with other banks 4,093,412 3,193,835

Call money lendings = 750,000
53,281,057 48,183,160

2018 2017

36.  STAFF STRENGTH NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Permanent 6,640 6,591

On Bank’s contract 898 943

Total staff strength 7,538 7,534

In addition to the above, out of total employees, 5 (2017: 6) employees are working abroad.

37 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

37.1  GENERAL DESCRIPTION
The Group operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. Contributions are made in accordance
with the actuarial recommendation.

The benefits under the gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 years or earlier cessation of service in lump
sum. The benefit is equal to one month’s last drawn basic salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof.

372 The number of employees covered under the defined benefit scheme are 6,611 employees (2017: 6,582 employees).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

37.3  PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The actuarial valuation was carried out for the year ended December 31, 2018 using “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The main
assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate - per annum 10.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum 10.25% 8.75%
Expected rate of return on plan assets - per annum 10.75% 9.25%
Duration 10.84 years 11.18 years
Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 2005 SLIC 2001 - 2005

mortality table mortality table

Rupees in ‘000 Note 2018 2017

374 RECONCILIATION OF PAYABLE TO DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,782,116 2,505,491

Fair value of plan assets (2,741,274) (2,042,650)
Benefits payable 12,009 26,685
Net liability 52,851 489,526

375  MOVEMENT IN DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Obligation at the beginning of the year 2,505,491 2,192,580
Current service cost 278,585 261,864
Interest cost 224,074 189,648
Re-measurement (gain) / loss (47,892) 58,839
Benefits paid by the Bank (166,133) (170,755)
Benefits payable (12,009) (26,685)
Obligation at the end of the year 2,782,116 2,505,491

37.6  MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Fair value at the beginning of the year 2,042,650 1,808,216
Interest income on plan assets 203,902 170,845
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets over interest

income gain / (loss) 37.8.2 (43,130) (116,540)
Contributions by employer 730,670 350,884
Benefits paid (166,133) (170,755)
Benefits payable - opening (26,685) -
Fair value at the end of the year 2,741,274 2,042,650

37.7  MOVEMENT IN (RECEIVABLE) / PAYABLE UNDER DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME
Opening balance 489,526 384,364
Charge for the year 298,757 280,667
Contribution by the Bank - net (730,670) (350,884)
Re-measurement (gain) / loss recognized in OCI during the year 37.8.2 (4,762) 175,379
Closing balance 52,851 489,526
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Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
37.8  CHARGE FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
37.8.1  COST RECOGNIZED IN PROFIT AND LOSS
Current service cost 278,585 261,864
Net interest income on defined benefit liability 20,172 18,803
298,757 280,667
37.82  RE-MEASUREMENTS RECOGNIZED IN OCI DURING THE YEAR
(Gain) / loss on obligation
- Experience adjustments (47,892) 58,839
Return on plan assets over interest income 43,130 116,540
Total re-measurements recognized in OCI (4,762) 175,379
37.9  COMPONENTS OF PLAN ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 183,901 3,263
Government securities 1,859,754 1,396,646
Term Finance Certificates 274,926 207,802
Shares 89,646 79,755
Mutual funds 333,047 355,184
2,741,274 2,042,650
37.10  AMOUNTS FOR CURRENT AND PREVIOUS FOUR ANNUAL PERIODS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
As at December 31,
Defined benefit obligation 2,782,116 2,505,491 2,192,580 1,813,892 1,492,354
Plan assets (2,741,274) (2,042,650) (1,808,216) (1,813,892 (1,492,354)
Benefits Payable 12,009 26,685 - - -
Deficit 52,851 489,526 384,364 - -
Experience adjustments
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (47,892 58,839 - 51,437 135,344
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets - - - - -
Return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in interest income (43,130) (116,540) - 34,266 (2,296)

37.11  SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Sensitivity analysis is performed by changing only one assumption at a time while keeping the other assumptions constant.
Sensitivity analysis of key assumptions is given below:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumptions assumption assumption assumption
Rupees in ‘000

Discount rate 1.00% (278,353) 324,722

Salary increase 1.00% 337,119 (293,176)

Mortality rate change 1 year 579 (583)
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Rupees in ‘000

37.12  Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 298,401
37.13  Expected charge for the next financial year 298,072

37.14  MATURITY PROFILE

Rupees in ‘000 Undiscounted
Periods Payments
Year 1 134,086
Year 2 117,187
Year 3 131,646
Year 4 155,321
Year 5 129,328
Year 6 to year 10 1,555,253
Year 11 and above 10,030,443

37.15  FUNDING POLICY

The Bank carries out the actuarial valuation of its defined benefit plan on a periodic basis using “Projected Unit Credit Method”.
Contributions are made annually in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.

37.16  SIGNIFICANT RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME:

Investment risk The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.

Longevity risk The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured
at the plan level over the entire retiree population.

Salary increase risk The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability
accordingly.

Withdrawal risk The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the

benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

38. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal monthly contributions
are made both by the Bank and by the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary of the employee. Payments
are made to the employees as specified in the rules of the fund. The total assets of the fund as at December 31, 2017 were
Rs. 4,250,161 thousand (December 31, 2016: Rs. 3,902,384 thousand) as per latest available audited financial statements of
the fund.

38.1  THE DETAILS OF SIZE AND INVESTMENT OF THE PROVIDENT FUND ARE AS FOLLOWS:

2018 2017
g Rupees in ‘000 Un-audited Audited
g Size of the Fund 4,658,185 4,212,443
X Cost of investments 4,588,893 3,960,838
§ Fair value of investments 4,433,191 3,973,840
g Percentage of investments 98.51% 94.03%
<
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38.2

BREAKUP OF PROVIDENT FUND INVESTMENTS

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Percentage Rupees in ‘000 Percentage
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,368,394 51.61 2,948,567 74.44
Market Treasury Bills 894,144 19.48 - -
Term Finance Certificates 368,000 8.02 - -
Mutual funds 708,724 15.44 762,640 19.25
Shares 249,631 5.44 249,631 6.30
4,588,893 100.00 3,960,838 100.00

All the investments out of provident fund trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

39. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
39.1  GENERAL DESCRIPTION
The Bank grants compensated absences to all its regular employees as per effective service rules. Provisions are recorded in
accordance with the actuarial recommendations.
Under this unfunded scheme, regular employees are entitled to 30 days privilege leave for each completed year of service.
This policy has been revised during 2018 and now unutilized privilege leaves are accumulated upto a maximum of 90 days
(previously 120 days) out of which 45 days (previously 60 days) are encashable at the time of separation from service on the
basis of last drawn gross salary.
39.2  PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
The actuarial valuation was carried out for the year ended December 31, 2018 using “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Present
value of obligation as at December 31, 2018 was Rs. 574,690 thousand (2017: Rs. 357,931 thousand). Expense for the year
of Rs. 287,602 thousand (2017: Rs 97,365 thousand) has been included in administrative expenses. The main assumptions
used for actuarial valuation are as follows:
2018 2017
Discount rate - per annum 10.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum 10.25% 8.75%
Leave accumulation factor - days 8 8
40. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
President & Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Fees - - 8,250 6,494 - -
Managerial remuneration 32,125 50,287 = - 1,197,118 1,092,109
Allowances 2,359 5,360 - - 195,736 182,143
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,634 3,898 - - 71,041 71,155
Contribution to defined contribution plan 1,330 3,897 - - 70,658 65,810
Rent and house maintenance 7,064 14,034 = - 406,311 381,044
Utilities 1,810 3,859 - - 95,785 90,173
Medical 1,671 3,508 - - 88,741 83,331
Bonus 11,695 17,398 - - 193,888 183,259
Others 11,524 3,974 - - 14,786 1,989
71,212 106,215 8,250 6,494 2,334,064 2,151,013
Number of persons 2 1 12 15 454 428
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Executive means all executive employees, other than the President & Chief Executive, whoes annual basic salary exceeds
rupees twelve hundred thousand. President & Chief Executive and certain other executives are provided with the Bank
maintained vehicles.

Further, senior executives are entitled to certain additional benefits in accordance with the Bank’s policy.

Directors’ boarding and lodging expenses for attending meetings of the Bank are borne by the Bank and are included in
administrative expenses.

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for securities classified by the Group as ‘held to
maturity’. Securities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. Fair value of unquoted equity investments is
determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest available audited financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to the absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market
rates for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy as stated in note 4.7.

Fair value of remaining financial assets and liabilities except fixed term loans, staff loans, non-performing advances and fixed
term deposits is not significantly different from the carrying amounts since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature
or are frequently repriced in the case of customer loans and deposits.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

41.1  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Pakistan Stock Exchange) for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) available at Mutual Fund Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP), Reuters page, Redemption prices and determined by valuers on the panel of Pakistan Bank’s Association.

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Federal Government The fair values of Federal Government securities are determined on the basis of rates /
securities prices sourced from Reuters.

Non Government debt Non Government debt securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by MUFAP.
securities

Foreign Government debt Foreign Government debt securities are valued on the basis of rates taken from custodian
securities of the securities which are usually drawn from Bloomberg.

Unit of mutual funds Fair values of mutual funds are determined based on their net asset values as published at

the close of reporting period.

Fixed assets and non-banking Land and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are valued on a periodic

assets acquired in basis using professional valuers. The valuation is based on their assessments of the
4 satisfaction of claims market value of the assets.




The table below analyses the financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. Valuation of investments is carried
out as per guidelines specified by the SBP.

2018
Rupees in ‘000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ON BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS - MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Investments
Federal Government securities - 237,893,228 - 237,893,228
Shares 4,002,441 - 305,680 4,308,121
Units of open end mutual funds - 971,446 - 971,446
Fully paid preference shares 59,745 - - 59,745
Non Government debt securities - 1,210,281 4,206,108 5,416,389
Foreign securities - 413,663 - 413,663
FINANCIAL ASSETS - DISCLOSED BUT NOT
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 11,171,395 - 11,171,395
OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 36,434,542 - 36,434,542
Forward Sale of foreign exchange - 22,483,955 - 22,483,955
Forward agreements for lending - - - -
Forward agreements for borrowing - - 20,806,907 20,806,907
2017
Rupees in ‘000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ON BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS - MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 296,824,632 - 296,824,632
Shares 3,379,259 - 24,040 3,403,299
Units of open end mutual funds - 1,652,135 - 1,652,135
Fully paid preference shares 66,720 - - 66,720
Non Government debt securities - 904,521 5,613,569 6,518,090
Foreign securities - 228,426 - 228,426
FINANCIAL ASSETS - DISCLOSED BUT NOT
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Investments
Federal Government securities - 6,263,446 - 6,263,446
OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 26,354,478 - 26,354,478
Forward Sale of foreign exchange - 9,083,720 - 9,083,720
Forward agreements for lending - - 1,515,752 1,515,752
Forward agreements for borrowing - - 49,250,012 49,250,012

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or
change in circumstances that caused such transfer takes place. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the

17
year.
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2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Level 3 Level 3
412 FAIR VALUE OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fixed assets
Property and equipment (freehold and leasehold land) 8,084,238 4,789,727
Other assets
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 5,298,464 5,001,571
42, SEGMENT INFORMATION
421 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:
2018
Branch Corporate Treasury Consumer Islamic Foreign  Head office Total
Rupees in ‘000 banking banking banking banking  operations / others
PROFIT AND L0SS
Net mark-up / return / profit (13,701,567) 10,796,536 16,911,770 2,041,682 1,864,845 581,932 114760 18,609,958
Inter segment revenue - net 25,378,081 (8,182,335)  (16,582,367) (1,213,144 - 221,706 378,059 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 2,084,341 1,501,007 1,366,088 217,419 226,417 2,322 223,999 5,621,593
TOTAL INCOME 13,760,855 4,115,208 1,695,491 1,045,957 2,091,262 805,960 716,818 24,231,551
Segment direct expenses 9,332,509 369,262 179,674 625,997 1,821,327 81,455 3,481,297 15,891,521
Inter segment expense allocation 108,216 475,004 3,706 97,104 - - (684,030) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,440,725 844,266 183,380 723,101 1,821,327 81,455 2,197,267 15,891,521
Provisions 708,445 577,302 ®) 20,058 37,358 9,931 107,489 1,460,575
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,611,685 2,693,640 1,512,119 302,798 232,577 714574 (2,187,938 6,879,455
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 17,756,676 810416 29,951,560 - 3,809,342 874,204 78,849 53,281,047
Investments - 13,389,091 223,738,330 - 8,169,564 13,627,192 1,309,810 260,233,987
Net inter segment lending = = = = = = = =
Lendings to financial institutions - - - - - - - -
Advances - performing - net of provision 36,991,679 222,393,797 - 19304293 46549799 9,621,704 6,701,958 341,563,230
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 787,659 547,041 - 148,992 60,225 - - 1,543,917
Others 2,291,938 10,957,788 3,457,096 585,079 2,173,734 189,483 30,174,023 49,829,141
57,827,952 248,098,133 257,146,986 20,038,364 60,762,664 24312583 38,264,640 706,451,322
Assets attributable to discontinued operations - - - - - - 214,757 214,757
TOTAL ASSETS 57,827,952 248,098,133 257,146,986 20,038,364 60,762,664 24,312,583 38,479,397 706,666,079
Borrowings 4373261  13569,235 12,789,274 1,000,000 8,999,361 10,854,144 1,117,048 52,702,323
Subordinated debts - - - - - - 9,993,600 9,993,600
Deposits and other accounts 453,308,568 77,602,229 - 29564 42,338,600 272,887 45,078 573,596,926
Net inter segment balances (415,500,624) 138,536,860  242,645941 17,070,983 - 11,386,676 5,860,164 -
Others 12,035,062 15,696,169 199,652 1,535,279 5239249 1,039,532 946,413 36,691,356

54,216,267 245404493 255,634,867 19635826 56,577,210 23553239 17,962,303 672,984,205
Liabilities associated with

discontinued operations - - - - - - 81,513 81,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54216267 245404493 255634867 19,635,826 56,577,210 23553239 18,043,816 673,065,718
Equity 3,611,685 2,693,640 1,512,119 402,538 4,185,454 759,344 20435581 33,600,361
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 57,827,952 248,098,133 257,146,986 20,038,364 60762664 24312583 38,479,397 706,666,079
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 67,749,459 336,263,367 71,602,764 - 5,934,661 8,011,980 858,129 490,420,360




2017

Branch Corporate Treasury Consumer Islamic Foreign  Head office Total
Rupees in ‘000 banking banking banking banking  operations / others

PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit (11,442,303) 8,541,663 15,801,186 1,531,403 1,374,345 418,736 (29,768) 16,195,262
Inter segment revenue - net 20,417,408 (6,391,304)  (13,378,199) (786,421) - 124,536 13,980 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,664,286 1,893,007 1,896,634 206,009 153,264 60,927 241,977 6,116,104
TOTAL INCOME 10,639,391 4,043,366 4,319,621 950,991 1,527,609 604,199 226,189 22,311,366
Segment direct expenses 8,547,121 343,266 170,907 752,791 1,636,462 90,836 3,600,814 15,142,197
Inter segment expense allocation 102,374 399,665 - - - - (502,039) -
TOTAL EXPENSES 8,649,495 742,931 170,907 752,791 1,636,462 90,836 3,098,775 15,142,197
Provisions (904,458) (489,166) 28 20,635 126,285 - 70,243 (1,176,432
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,894,354 3,789,601 4,148,686 177,565 (235,138) 513,363 (2,942,829) 8,345,601
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 15,773,246 508,445 26,731,274 - 4,159,061 261,003 131 47,433,160
Investments - 12,359,208 285,671,765 - 6,733,697 8,491,804 1,700,274 314,956,748
Net inter segment lending - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - 1,500,000 - 750,000 - - 2,250,000
Advances - performing - net of provision 31,012,422 160,703,218 - 17606037 34292726 8,355,925 4931,800 256,902,128
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 657,091 837,912 - 192,745 103,210 - - 1,790,958
Others 2,950,000 5,381,646 6,891,913 560,919 1,965,779 167,005 21,360,420 39,277,681

50,392,758 179,790,429 320,794,952 18,359,701 48,004,473  17.275737 27992625 662,610,675

Assets attributable to discontinued operations 327,949 327,949

TOTAL ASSETS 50,302,758 179,790,429 320,794,952 18350701 48004473 17275737 28,320,574 662,938,624
Borrowings 5,345,571 10,982,878 46,385,125 - 2,410,152 6,460,118 3,467 71,587,311
Subordinated debts - - - - - - 4,992,800 4,992,800
Deposits and other accounts 438,454,708 49,474,030 - 38,373 37,650,774 180,020 7,146 525,305,051
Net inter segment balances (410,064,889) 110478917 270,116,165 15,671,631 9,937,548 3,860,628

Others 13,763,014 5,065,003 144,976 2,472,132 4,452,181 81,550 1,888,629 27,867,485
47498404 176,000,828 316646266 18,182,136 44513107 16659236 10,752,670 630,252,647

Liabilities associated with

discontinued operations - - - - - - 140,741 140,741
TOTAL LIABILITIES 47,498,404 176,000,828 316,646,266 18,182,136 44513107 16,659,236 10,893,411 630,393,388
Equity 2,894,354 3,789,601 4,148,686 177,565 3,491,366 616,501 17427163 32,545,236
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 50,392,758 179,790,429 320,794,952 18,359,701 48004473 17275737 28320574 662,938,624
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 222,794,437 108,165,341 81,797,991 - 6,667,661 2,198,378 1,180,147 423,403,955
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422 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS

Geographical segment analysis

Rupees in ‘000 2018
Pakistan Middle East Total

PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit 18,028,026 581,932 18,609,958
Inter segment revenue - net (221,706) 221,706 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 5,619,271 2,322 5,621,593
TOTAL INCOME 23,425,591 805,960 24,231,551
Segment direct expenses 15,810,066 81,455 15,891,521
Inter segment expense allocation - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 15,810,066 81,455 15,891,521
Provisions 1,450,644 9,931 1,460,575
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,164,881 714,574 6,879,455
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 52,406,843 874,204 53,281,047
Investments 246,606,795 13,627,192 260,233,987
Net inter segment lending - - -
Lendings to financial institutions - - -
Advances - performing - net of provision 331,941,526 9,621,704 341,563,230
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 1,543,917 - 1,543,917
Others 49,639,658 189,483 49,829,141

682,138,739 24,312,583 706,451,322
Assets attributable to discontinued operations 214,757 - 214,757
TOTAL ASSETS 682,353,496 24,312,583 706,666,079
Borrowings 41,848,179 10,854,144 52,702,323
Subordinated debts 9,993,600 - 9,993,600
Deposits and other accounts 573,324,039 272,887 573,596,926
Net inter segment balances (11,386,676) 11,386,676 -
Others 35,651,824 1,039,532 36,691,356

649,430,966 23,553,239 672,984,205
Liabilities associated with discontinued operations 81,513 - 81,513
TOTAL LIABILITIES 649,512,479 23,553,239 673,065,718
Equity 32,841,017 759,344 33,600,361
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 682,353,496 24,312,583 706,666,079
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 482,408,380 8,011,980 490,420,360
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Rupees in ‘000 2017

Pakistan Middle East Total

PROFIT AND LOSS
Net mark-up / return / profit 15,776,526 418,736 16,195,262
Inter segment revenue - net - - -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 6,055,177 60,927 6,116,104
TOTAL INCOME 21,831,703 479,663 22,311,366
Segment direct expenses 15,051,361 90,836 15,142,197
Inter segment expense allocation - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 15,051,361 90,836 15,142,197
Provisions (1,176,432) - (1,176,432)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7,956,774 388,827 8,345,601
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and bank balances 47,172,157 261,003 47,433,160
Investments 306,464,944 8,491,804 314,956,748
Net inter segment lending - - -
Lendings to financial institutions 2,250,000 - 2,250,000
Advances - performing - net of provision 248,546,203 8,355,925 256,902,128
Advances - non-performing - net of provision 1,790,958 - 1,790,958
Others 39,110,676 167,005 39,277,681

645,334,938 17,275,737 662,610,675
Assets attributable to discontinued operations 327,949 - 327,949
TOTAL ASSETS 645,662,887 17,275,737 662,938,624
Borrowings 65,127,193 6,460,118 71,587,311
Subordinated debts 4,992,800 - 4,992,800
Deposits and other accounts 525,625,031 180,020 525,805,051
Net inter segment balances (9,937,548) 9,937,548 -
Others 27,785,935 81,550 27,867,485

613,593,411 16,659,236 630,252,647
Liabilities associated with discontinued operations 140,741 - 140,741
TOTAL LIABILITIES 613,734,152 16,659,236 630,393,388
Equity 31,928,735 616,501 32,545,236
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 645,522,146 17,275,737 662,938,624
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 420,605,577 2,798,378 423,403,955

43, TRUST ACTIVITIES
The Group is not engaged in any significant trust activities. However, the Bank acts as security agent for some of the Term
Finance Certificates it arranges and distributes on behalf of its customers.
44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fauji Consortium comprising of Fauji Foundation, Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
(the Parent) holds 71.91% of the Bank’s share capital at the year end. The Bank has related party relationships with entities
under common directorship, its directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise
significant influence and employees’ funds.

The Bank enters into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms
as for comparable transactions with person of similar standing. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement
benefits and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribution plan. 17
Remuneration to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Details of transactions with related parties and balances as at the year end are as follows:

18 2017
Companies Companies
with common with common
Key  directorship, Other Key  directorship, Other
management  having equity related management  having equity related
Rupegs in ‘000 Parent Director personngl under 20% parties Parent Director personngl under 20% parties
Investments
Opening balance - - - 217,634 - - - - 173263 -
Investment made during the year - - - 154,796 - - - - - -
Investment redeemed / disposed
off during the year - - - (26,322) - - - - - -
Transfer in / (out) - net - - - (296,975) - - - - (1,515,001) -
Closing balance - - - 49,133 - - - - 217,634 -
Advances
Opening balance 781,073 695 397,255 3,797,303 - 799,921 114 311,909 4,534,697 -
Addition during the year /
adjustment 97,898,658 21,104 70238 32,784,743 - 83124716 10,030 175934 18,746,267 -
Repaid during the year /
adjustment (89,098,452) (63,482) (74,429)  (31,663,208) - (83,143564) (10,356) (135,736)  (20,352,242) -
Transfer in / (out) - net - 36,134 (60,524)  (1,115,375) - - 907 45,148 868,581 -
Closing balance 9,581,279 451 332540 3,803,463 - 781,073 695 397,255 3,797,303 -
Other Assets
Interest / mark-up receivable 52,483 3,671 65,415 23,533 - - - 56,346 27,229 -
Security deposits receivable 3,600 - - - 3,600 - - - -
Subordinated debts
Opening balance - - - 24,970 - - - - 24,980 -
Redemption / sold during
the year - - - (10) - - - - (10) -
Closing balance - - - 24,960 - - - - 24970 -

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance 5,770,715 29,001 186,588 7,210,018 3,042,573 5462689 13,377 147552 7,296,044 1,106,985
Received during the year

/ adjustment 356,365,334 310,892 704636 248,876,185 18,009,853 273,936,342 104,743 1,017,896 193985526 8,330,529
Withdrawn during the year

/ adjustment (352,326,164) (299,993) (676,343) (251,057,728)  (17,858,065) (273,628,316) (85,151) (986,380) (193,534,427)  (7,132,435)
Transfer in / (out) - net - (15,008) (55,165) 159,156 - - (3,968) 7,520 (537,125) 737,494
Closing balance 9,809,885 24,892 159,716 5,187,631 3194361 5,770,715 29,001 186,588  7,210018 3,042,573
Other Liabilities
Interest / mark-up payable 16,717 68 1,390 37,455 8,840 20,651 20 1,592 16,598 6,513
Payable to staff retirement

fund - - - - 52,851 - - - - 489,526
Security deposits payable - - 287 161,946 - 494 - 504 59,772 -
Contingencies and

Commitments
Other contingencies 55,910 - - 1525313 - 50,000 - - 1,878,456 -

In-addition to above, rent free sub-branch is operating at FFC head office, Sona Tower.
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2018 017
Companies Companies
with common with common
Key directorship, Other Key directorship, Other
management  having equity related management  having equity related
Rupees in ‘000 Parent Director personnel under 20% parties Parent Director personngl under 20% parties
Income
Mark-up / return / interest eamed 127,757 3,250 13,055 325,324 - 43474 14 13,254 321,600 -
Fee and commission received 83 - - 23,881 - 80 - - 44,025 -
Dividend income - - - 7,963 - - - - 7,185 -
Net gain on sale of assets
held for sale - - - - - - - - - -
Other income - - - 749 - - - - - -
Expense
Mark-up / return /
interest expensed 685,007 649 5677 583,493 21679 268,101 643 4,907 408,832 103,285
Contribution to employees funds - - - - 993,782 - - - - 535,842
Remuneration and
allowances paid - - 423612 - 4940 - - 480,361 - 3,965
Post employment benefits - - 23914 - - - - 30,160 - -
Fee and commission paid - - - 261 22,125 - - - 62 19,755
Fee paid 8,250 - - - - 6,494 250 - -
Rent of property / service
charges paid 23,321 904 - - - 24,285 - - - -
Dividend paid - - - - - 2265705 6 22 - -
45, CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS
The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it could continue
to provide adequate returns to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk. It is the
policy of the Group to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholder’s return is also recognized and the Group
recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 12,602,602 12,602,602
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 29,036,877 25,390,764
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 5,747,573 -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 34,784,450 25,390,764
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 5,064,335 7,594,064
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 39,848,785 32,984,828
Risk Weighted Assets (RWASs):
Credit Risk 269,107,754 217,502,181
Market Risk 9,771,875 19,252,086
Operational Risk 39,361,691 35,905,392
Total 318,241,320 272,659,659
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 9.12% 9.31%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 10.93% 9.31%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.52% 12.10%

As of December 2018, the Group must meet a Tier 1 to RWA ratio and CAR, including CCB, of 9.4% and 11.90% respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Market and Credit Risk while Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) is used for Operational Risk.

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
LEVERAGE RATIO (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital 34,783,749 25,390,764
Total Exposures 1,157,947,222 1,064,541,996
Leverage Ratio 3.00% 2.39%

LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 278,917,759 283,558,343
Total Net Cash Outflow 154,131,589 153,812,783
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 180.96% 184.35%

NET STABLE FUNDING RATIO (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 584,918,449 536,617,394
Total Required Stable Funding 312,211,738 243,419,172
Net Stable Funding Ratio 187.35% 220.45%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions issued
from time to time have been placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is available at http://akbl.com.pk

46. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group believes that effective risk management is key to achieving desired level of return while maintaining acceptable
level of risk exposure. Robust risk management processes and framework are in place to achieve the Group’s overall objectives
through a well thought out strategy, which enables the Group to effectively manage Credit, Market, Operational and Liquidity
risk in a proactive manner.

The Group’s approach is to ensure that risk management is deeply and firmly embedded in the culture of the Group. All
employees are therefore considered responsible for identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks within
the scope of their assigned responsibilities. As a result of changing risk environment, the Group continuously monitors and
conducts holistic assessment of complex transactions on an integrated basis.

The Group has a Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in place and is updated regularly by the Group’s Risk
Management Division. BRMC is responsible for reviewing the extent of design and adequacy of risk management framework.
BRMC oversight ensures that risks are managed within the level of tolerance and risk appetite of the Group.

46.1  CREDIT RISK:

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability is impaired
resulting in economic loss to the Group. The Group takes necessary measures to control such risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties with increased likelihood of default and continually assessing
the creditworthiness of counter parties.

The Group has built and maintains a sound loan portfolio in terms of a well defined Risk Management Policy approved by

the Board of Directors. Its credit evaluation system comprises of well-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review

procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in its lending activities and ensuring quality of asset portfolio. Advances

portfolio constitutes around 49% of the total asset base and is also the largest source of credit risk for the Group. Moreover,

more than 80% of Group’s capital requirement pertains to credit risk. The Group’s advances portfolio is well diversified across
2 various business segments, industries and geographical locations.
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Risk mitigants have been put in place at all stages of credit risk cycle i.e. identification, measurement, monitoring, controlling
and reporting for effective risk management. Accordingly, portfolio monitoring function is in place at the Group with dedicated
resources to ensure that risk is not only minimized but is optimized in risk / return perspective.

Credit Risk Review is conducted at obligor as well as at portfolio level to ensure adherence to regulatory as well as the Group’s
policies and procedures. The review process ensures that a sound and proactive risk management culture is maintained
across the Group. Scope of Pre-Approval Risk Assessment has been enhanced, covering the entire Corporate, Commercial and
SME portfolios along with consumer and Agri Finance within discretionary powers of Head Office Credit Committee (HOCC).
Internal audit division is reviewing the advances portfolio on a post approval basis.

CREDIT RISK - GENERAL DISCLOSURES
The Group follows the Standardized Approach for its credit risk exposures, which sets out fixed risk weights corresponding to

external credit ratings or type of exposure, whichever is applicable.

Under the Standardized Approach, the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to counter-parties by
External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIS) duly recognized by the SBP. The Group selects particular ECAIs for each type
of exposure. The Group utilizes the credit ratings assigned by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA), Japan Credit Rating
Company Limited — Vital Information Systems (JCR-VIS), Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors (S&P).

TYPES OF EXPOSURE AND ECAIS USED

FITCH Moody’s S&P PACRA JCR-VIS ECA scores
Corporates - v - v v -
Banks 4 v 4 v v -
Public sector enterprises - - - v v -

FITCH, Moody’s and S&P ratings (as applicable) are used where sovereign exposures are denominated in USD.

MAPPING TO SBP RATING GRADES

For all exposures, the selected ratings are translated to the standard rating grades given by the SBP. The mapping tables used
for converting ECAI ratings to the SBP rating grades are given below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

LONG TERM RATING GRADES MAPPING

SBP Rating grade FITCH Moody’s S&P PACRA JCR-VIS ECA scores
1 AAA Aaa AAA AAA AAA 0,1
AA+ Aal AA+ AA+ AA+
AA Aa2 AA AA AA
AA- Aa3 AA- AA- AA-
2 A+ Al A+ A+ A+ 2
A A2 A A A
A- A3 A- A- A-
3 BBB+ Baat BBB+ BBB+ BBB+ 3
BBB Baa2 BBB BBB BBB
BBB- Baa3 BBB- BBB- BBB-
4 BB+ Bat BB+ BB+ BB+ 4
BB Ba2 BB BB BB
BB- Ba3 BB- BB- BB-
5 B+ B1 B+ B+ B+ 56
B B2 B B B
B- B3 B- B- B-
6 CCC+ and Caal and CCC+ and CCC+ and CCC+ and
below below below below below 7

Particulars of the Bank’s significant on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk in various sectors are analyzed as
follows:

Gross lending Non-performing lending Provision held

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

46.1.1  LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Credit risk by public / private sector
Public/ Government - - - - - -
Private 148,606 2,398,606 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606
148,606 2,398,606 148,606 148,606 148,606 148,606
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Gross investments

Non-performing investments

Provision held

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
46.1.2  INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 420,000 - - - - -
Textile 336,970 370,644 336,972 370,644 336,972 370,644
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 1,068,271 1,634,165 1,068,270 1,074,165 1,068,270 1,074,165
Automobile and transportation equipment - - 18,770 27,170 18,770 27,170
Electronics and electrical appliances - 284,874 - - - -
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 2,604,170 2,604,170 - - - -
Transport, Storage and Communication 656,175 1,093,625 - - - -
Telecommunication 226,836 261,481 226,836 261,481 226,836 261,481
Banks and financial institutions 1,736,525 1,947,998 - - - -
Government 255,354,622 301,584,589 - - 164,020 -
Foreign Government 421,818 228,590 - - 2,659 -
QOthers 18,770 213,097 - 185,925 - 185,925
262,844,157 310,223,233 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,817,527 1,919,385
CREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR
Public / Government 255,354,622 301,584,589 - - 164,020 -
Private 7,489,535 8,638,644 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,653,507 1,919,385
262,844,157 310,223,233 1,650,848 1,919,385 1,817,527 1,919,385
Gross advances Non-performing advances Provision held
Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
46.1.3  ADVANCES
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 6,052,398 4,685,884 351,035 497,180 196,686 253,532
Mining and Quarrying 2,274,965 1,668,097 - - - -
Textile 48,018,815 41,707,804 12,335,315 12,000,289 11,696,354 11,280,933
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 20,292,417 9,251,785 211,248 16,464 211,248 15,549
Cement 5,911,502 4,482,630 401 401 401 401
Sugar 9,166,459 7,181,562 6,190 - 1,548 -
Footwear and Leather garments 1,485,763 1,647,088 404,057 62,083 404,057 41,519
Automobile and transportation equipment 944 527 869,820 447278 242,224 424,497 219,443
Electronics and electrical appliances 3,547,871 2,647,185 1,113,552 1,116,900 1,113,552 1,116,900
Construction 5,126,602 3,884,905 645,001 657,364 625,303 636,304
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 28,193,363 22,138,997 1,671,611 1,675,648 1,671,611 1,675,648
Wholesale and Retail Trade 9,822,151 9,301,176 564,157 573,524 474,639 476,626
Exports / Imports 285,452 62,557 - - - -
Transport, Storage and Communication 7,840,196 6,906,053 505,905 732,530 350,664 502,141
Financial 11,880,936 5,670,568 - - - -
Insurance 90,055 100,228 - - - -
Services 9,004,661 11,298,355 585,846 495,927 554,056 460,497
Individuals 33,516,454 29,753,031 2,111,521 2,004,025 1,958,569 1,809,240
Public / Government 116,597,785 86,590,715 - - - -
Edible oil and ghee 4,474,849 2,677,099 549,956 460,614 706,946 460,614
Rice Processing (husking, semi-wholly milled etc.) 6,506,316 6,145,409 2,505,178 2,314,493 2,402,950 2,161,590
Refined petroleum and products 5,696,168 1,931,457 16,841 637,606 14,773 634,503
Basic iron and steel 9,939,210 8,129,835 484,825 883,630 449,834 880,647
QOthers 22,590,056 15,607,430 2,147,169 2,382,125 1,855,481 2,335,982
369,258,971 284,339,670 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069
CGREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR
Public / Government 116,597,785 86,590,715 - - - -
Private 252,661,186 197,748,955 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069
369,258,971 284,339,670 26,657,086 26,753,027 25,113,169 24,962,069
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

46.1.4  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Credit risk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 6,129,724 521,678
Mining and Quarrying 19,021 1,969,910
Textile 7,253,299 7,512,284
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 6,226,111 8,991,322
Cement 2,368,297 2,115,251
Sugar 784,968 150,583
Footwear and Leather garments 369,847 1,586,669
Automobile and transportation equipment 614,480 470,370
Electronics and electrical appliances 3,404,697 1,471,734
Construction 17,555,031 19,964,673
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 19,719,704 6,450,221
Wholesale and Retail Trade 820,264 7,574,547
Exports/Imports 100,000 -
Transport, Storage and Communication 549,234 2,913,793
Banks and Financial Institutions 149,611,212 38,724,527
Telecommunication 328,041 328,037
Financial - 1,073,379
Insurance 12,899 5,000
Food and allied 3,025,000 158,751
Services 3,813,805 5,355,056
Individuals 2,409,179 3,077,528
Public / Government 207,044,313 210,218,866
Others 58,261,234 102,769,776

490,420,360 423,403,955

CREDIT RISK BY PUBLIC / PRIVATE SECTOR

Public / Government 207,044,313 210,218,866
Private 283,376,047 213,185,089
490,420,360 423,403,955

46.1.5 CONCENTRATION OF ADVANCES

The Bank’s top 10 exposures on the basis of total funded and non-funded exposures aggregated to Rs. 277,045,219 thousand
(2017: Rs. 206,278,955 thousand) are as following:

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017
Funded 99,159,075 67,864,752
Non Funded 177,886,144 138,414,203
Total Exposure 277,045,219 206,278,955

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 expsoures aggregated to Rs. 337,790,859 thousand (2017: Rs. 301,124,868
thousand).

The above does not include any classified exposure.
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46.1.6  ADVANCES - PROVINCE / REGION-WISE DISBURSEMENT AND UTILIZATION

2018
Disbursements Utilization

Punjab Sindh  KPK including Baluchistan Islamabad  AJK including

Rupees in ‘000 FATA Gilgit-Baltstan
PROVINCE/REGION

Punjab 724,902,945 || 682,459,555 26,971,774 3,146,499 54,116 12,230,609 40,392

Sindh 473,805,677 4,599,423 || 463,372,536 3,118,712 37,409 2,674,137 3,460

KPK including FATA 5,023,212 99,349 8,530 4,901,075 4,300 4172 5,786

Balochistan 358,865 25,284 4,880 4,953 318,646 4,002 1,100

Islamabad 70,640,639 7,940,268 2,326,342 90,723 47,335 60,218,496 17,475

AJKincluding Gilgit-Baltistan 533,400 42,153 2,665 145,312 600 1,716 340,954

Total 1,275,264,738 695,166,032 492,686,727 11,407,274 462,406 75,133,132 409,167

2017
Disbursements Utilization

Punjab Sindh  KPK including Baluchistan Islamabad  AJK including

Rupees in ‘000 FATA Gilgit-Baltstan
PROVINCE/REGION

Punjab 543,154,676 || 519,231,646 11,262,373 2,486,665 63,885 10,074,478 35,629

Sindh 410,066,784 5,691,615 || 400,877,250 2,153,227 21,564 1,322,008 1,120

KPK including FATA 3,718,177 81,581 21,645 3,377,757 2,200 230,395 4,599

Balochistan 249,470 26,126 12,992 2,000 205,852 1,700 800

Islamabad 47,775,274 11,256,490 1,047,582 111,536 18,062 35,332,138 9,466

AJKincluding Gilgit-Baltistan 685,281 47,984 7,558 266,564 5,952 9,785 347,438

Total 1,005,649,662 536,335,442 413,229,400 8,397,749 317,515 46,970,504 399,052
46.2  MARKET RISK:

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of a financial institution will be adversely affected by
movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit spreads, resulting
in a loss to earnings and capital.

The Group is exposed to market risk from both its banking and trading books. Trading book for the Group includes all Held for
Trading (HFT) assets along with AFS securities that are held with intention of short term trade. All assets not included in trading
book are included within the Banking book.

The Group’s Risk Management Process seeks to identify, measure, monitor, and control market risks in order to shield against
adverse movements in market factors and to attain an efficient risk / return profile of its open positions. The Risk Management
Division has developed and implemented market risk policy and risk measurement / monitoring methodology for review and
reporting of market risk.

The Group makes use of the globally established Value at Risk (VaR) methodology to measure traded market risk. Additionally,
sensitivity analysis is carried out to gauge the impact of extreme market movements on traded exposures, such as fixed
income securities and equity capital market instruments.

Further, stress testing is used to analyze the impact of both the abnormal market movements across different portfolios as
well as to assess non-traded market risk, in particular interest rate risk in the banking book. The performance of the Group’s
traded portfolios is evaluated through the use of risk / return analysis. Risk is kept under check through the revaluation of all
traded market risk exposed positions on a daily basis, and controlled by ensuring that these positions do not breach regulatory
limits and the Group’s own internally established risk tolerance limits.

Annual Report 2018

18

hy}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Basel Ill Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for market risk.
Total capital charge for market risk is Rs. 781,750 thousand (2017: Rs. 1,540,167 thousand).

46.2.1  BALANCE SHEET SPLIT BY TRADING AND BANKING BOOKS

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000 Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 - 49,187,645 44,239,325 - 44,239,325
Balances with other banks 4,093,402 - 4,093,402 3,193,835 - 3,193,835
Lendings to financial institutions - - - 2,250,000 - 2,250,000
Investments 248,254,020 11,979,967 260,233,987 275,041,009 39,915,739 314,956,748
Advances 343,107,147 - 343,107,147 258,693,086 - 258,693,086
Fixed assets 12,791,827 - 12,791,827 9,885,958 - 9,885,958
Intangible assets 741,361 - 741,361 842,869 - 842,869
Deferred tax assets 3,773,779 - 3,773,779 100,755 - 100,755
QOther assets 32,522,174 - 32,522,174 28,448,099 - 28,448,099

Assets attributable to discontinued operations 214,757 - 214,757 327,949 327,949

694,686,112 11,979,967 706,666,079 623,022,885 39,915,739 662,938,624

46.2.2  FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk, or the risk that the Group’s earnings and / or capital can fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates, arises out from the Group’s foreign exchange exposure which consists of foreign currency cash in hand, nostro / vostro
accounts, forward contracts, forward bookings with exporters, foreign bills purchased, foreign currency placements with SBP
and the Group’s Wholesale Bank Branch, foreign currency lendings / deposits and capital investments in offshore operations.

The Group’s treasury manages consolidated foreign exchange exposure by matching foreign currency assets and liabilities
in spot and forward. The foreign exchange exposure and nostro balances are maintained within regulatory limits and VaR is
calculated for consolidated foreign exchange exposure on a daily basis. The impact of a change in USD / PKR parity on the net
open position is also determined through daily sensitivity analysis.

2018
Foreign currency Foreign currency Off-balance Net foreign
(Rupees in ‘000) assets liabilities sheet items currency exposure
United States Dollar 53,156,310 62,261,533 8,866,423 (238,800)
Pound Sterling 388,758 4,401,088 3,930,921 (81,409)
Japanese Yen 6,880 418 (7,758) (1,296)
Euro 716,843 2,748,793 1,168,113 (863,837)
Other European currencies 6,763 - - 6,763
Other currencies 1,149,276 382,172 (7,112) 759,992
55,424,830 69,794,004 13,950,587 (418,587)
2017
Foreign currency Foreign currency Off-balance Net foreign
(Rupees in ‘000) assets liabilities sheet items currency exposure
o
% United States Dollar 38,383,247 51,443,407 12,538,446 (521,714)
E Pound Sterling 538,559 4,155,268 3,400,780 (215,929)
s Japanese Yen 10,542 12 (9,462) 1,068
9:“ Euro 439,188 1,920,550 1,341,001 (140,361)
% Other European currencies 19,136 - (6) 19,130
< Other currencies 629,917 122,038 - 507,879
18 40,020,589 57,641,275 17,270,759 (349,927)




2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book

Impact of 1% change in foreign
exchange rates on

- Profit and loss account - 142,766 - 178,832
- Other comprehensive income - = - _

46.2.3  EQUITY POSITION RISK

Equity position risk is the risk that the value of equity positions inside the trading book and banking book will change as a
result of general and specific equity market movements. Equity positions are monitored on daily basis through management
action triggers.

The Group classifies its direct equity investments into held for trading, available for sale, and held to maturity. Held for
trading equity exposures are of a short term nature and are undertaken to earn profit by exploiting market imperfections and
short term price fluctuations. Equities held in the available for sale portfolio are kept with the intent of earning profit due to
underlying fundamental strength of each security. Strategic investments are undertaken in line with the long-term strategy
of the Group, i.e. to build strategic interest in other concerns. The Group may also carry indirect equity exposure through
financing against shares and reverse repos against shares.

At the end of FY 2018 Group’s entire equity investment portfolio was classified as available for sale. Pretax impact of 5%
change in equity prices on other comprehensive income are provided below;

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Impact of 5% change in equity
prices on
- Profit and loss account - - - -
- Other comprehensive income (196,161) - (165,259) -

46.2.4  YIELD / INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK C(IRRBBI-BASEL Il SPECIFIC

The Group’s interest rate exposure arises out from its investment, lending and borrowing activities. Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB) in its various forms is the risk of adverse changes in earnings and/or capital due to (i) timing differences
or mismatches in the maturity/repricing period of financial assets and liabilities (repricing risk), (ii) differences in the basis used
for calculating interest rates received and paid (basis risk), (iii) and options implicit or explicit in the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities (options risk). The Asset and Liability Management Committee of the Group monitors and controls mismatch of
interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities on an ongoing basis through its regular meetings. The Market Risk Management
Department monitors interest rate in the banking book from an earnings and economic value perspective.

Key IRRBB measures include:
1. Interest Earnings at Risk (IAR): the rolling 12-month impact of a parallel shift in interest rates on Net Interest Margin.

2. Change in Economic Value of Equity (EVE): the impact of a parallel shift in interest rates on the present value of the Group’s
cash flows.

3. Repricing Gaps: mismatch between the Group’s assets and liabilities in terms of repricing time bands. Repricing assumptions
for non-contractual assets and liabilities have been set based on a behavioral study.

2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000) Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Impact of 1% change in interest rates on
- Profit and loss account 187,870 - (83,402) -

- Other comprehensive income 241,914 (112,193) (640,181) (1,174,622)

1

B Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

46.2.5 MISMATCH OF INTEREST RATE SENSITIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet instruments is based on the earlier of contractual re-pricing or
maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on settlement date.

2018
Efectie Exposed to yield / interest risk Noninrest
Yield / Over 1 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Qver 2 Over 3 Over 5 bearing
Interest Upto 1 t03 to6 Monthsto 1 t02 t03 t05 010 Above10 financial
Rupees in ‘000 rate Total Month ~ Months  Months Year Years Years Years Years Years  instruments
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Assets
(Cash and balances with treasury banks 49,187,645 7,946,957 = = = = = = = - 41,240,688
Balances with other banks 340% 4093402 2,691,856 - - - - - - - - 1,401,546
Lendings to financial institutions 8.18% - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 6.70% 260,233,987 86,362,408 39,143,162 38521376 22,131591 33514316 14817524 6880302 12,084,638 - 6758670
Advances 7.52% 343107147 108,727,112 169,371,785 40163309 13505710 2113630 1549035 2565112 1422033 3,689,421 =
Other assets 10,749,320 = = = = = = = = - 10,749,320
667,371,501 205,748,333 208514947 78,684,685 35637301 35627946 16,366,559 9445414 13506671 3689421 60,150,224
Liabilities
Bills payable 15,512,880 - - - - - - - - -1 15,512,880
Borrowings 475% | 52,702,323 || 44,932,094|| 1404603 || 5176,884 - 62,914 62914|| 1062914 - - -
Deposits and other accounts 397% (573,635,856 172,941,149 | 111,528,281 | | 92,767,054 | | 24,332,148 | | 2,589,341 127,439 354,198 = - | 168,996,246

Liabilities against assets subject to

finance lease - - - - = 8 = = = - -

Subordinated loans 866% | 9,993,600 -|| 3993,600| | 6,000,000 - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 11,178,294 = = = = 4 = = = - || 11,178,294
663,022,953 217873243 116926484 103943938 24332148 2652255 190353 1417112 - - 195,687,420
On-balance sheet gap 4348548  (12,124910) 91,588,463 (25,259,263) 11,305,153 32,975,691 16176206 8,028,302 13506671  3,689421 (135,587,196)
Off-halance sheet financial instruments
Purchase and resale agreements - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale and repurchase agreements 775% 20,806,907 20,806,907 - - - - - - - - -
Commitments to extend credits 19,875,831 19,875,831 = = = = = = = = =
0ff-balance sheet gap (40,682,738)  (40,682,738) - - - - - - - - -
Total yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (52,807,648) 91,588,463 (25,259,263 11,305,153 32,975,691 16,176206 8,028,302 13,506,671 3,689,421 (135,587,196
Cumulative yield / interest risk sensitivity gap 38780815 13521562 24826715  57,802406 73978612 82,006,914 95513585 99,203,006
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MISMATCH OF INTEREST RATE SENSITIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2017
Efecte Exposed to yield / interest risk Nomineest
Yield / Over 1 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 2 Over3 Over5 bearing
Interest Upto 1 t03 06 Monthsto 1 t02 t03 to5 010 Above 10 financial
Rupees in ‘000 rate Total Month Months Months Year Years Years Years Years Years instruments
On-halance sheet financial instruments
Assets
(Cash and balances with treasury banks 44239325 6,998,986 - - - - - - - - 37,240,339
Balances with other banks 266%  3,193835 2,003,756 - - - - - - - - 1,190,079
Lendings to financial institutions 553% 2,250,000 1,750,000 - 500,000 - - - - - - -
Investments 654% 314956748 60251726 79,866,091 14146848 8228874 50,162,004 40729450 37923117 16694789 1736110 5217739
Advances 6.35% 258,693,086 83331819 126,461,094 29914352 10,196,771 1,550,144 1004557 1423423 1331078 3479848 -
Other assets 9,946,063 - - - - - - - - - 9,946,063
633,279,057 154,336,287 206,327,185 44561200 18425645 51,712,148 41734007 39346540 18025867 5215958 53,594,220
Liabilities
Bills payable 10,769,262 - - - - - - - - - 10,769,262
Borrowings 4.70% | 71,587,311|| 60,815,038 | 5705697|| 4,926,146 - 46,811 46,811 46,808 - - -
Deposits and other accounts 342% |525,805,051| |161,728,302 | |103,925,087 | | 89,083,222 | | 19,766,565 | | 1,564,786 141,245 419392 - || 149,176,452

Liabilities against assets subject to

finance lease - - - - - - - - - - -

Subordinated loans 7.5%% | 4,992,800 -|| 3995200 997,600 - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 9,381,543 - - - - - - - - -|| 9,381,543
622,535,967 222,543,340 113625984 95,006,968 19,766,565 1,611,597 188,056 466,200 - - 169,327,257

On-alance shegt gap 10,743,090 (68,207,053) 92,701,201 (50445,768)  (1,340,920) 50,100,551 41,545,951 38,880,340 18,025867 5215958 (115,733,087)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

Purchase and resale agreements 6.08% 1515752 1,000,668 - 515,084 - - - - - - -

Sale and repurchase agreements 567% 49250012 47593754 1048963 607,295 - - - - - - -

Commitments to extend credits 14,826,508 14,826,508 - - - - - - - - -
(ff-balance sheet gap (62,560,768)  (61,419,594) (1,048,963 (92,211) - - - - - - -
Total yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (129626647) 91652238 (50,637,979) (1,340920) 50,100,551 41545951 38,880,340 18,025867 5215958 (115,733,037
Cumulative yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (37,974409) (88512388) (89,853,308) (39752757) 1,793,194 40673534 58,699,401 63,915,359

46.25.1
46.25.2
46253

46.254

46.3

Yield risk is the risk of decline in earnings due to adverse movement of the yield curve.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates.

Assets do not include fixed assets of Rs. 12,791,827 thousand (2017: Rs. 9,885,958 thousand), Intangible assets of
Rs. 741,361 thousand (2017: Rs. 842,869 thousand) and other assets consisting of advances, advance rent and other
prepayments, advance taxation, non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims, mark to market gain on forward foreign
exchange contracts-net, suspense account, stationary and stamps in hand and acceptances of Rs. 19,938,596 thousand
(2017: Rs. 16,962,971 thousand).

Liabilities do not include other liabilities consisting of unearned commission and income, advance payments, acceptances,
branch adjustment account, mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts-net, provision against off-balance
sheet items, withholding taxes payable, federal excise duty and Workers’ Welfare Fund of Rs. 10,483,645 thousand (2017: Rs.
7,716,682 thousand).

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and external events.
The Bank strives to manage operational risk within acceptable levels through sound operational risk management practices.

Board Risk Management Committee defines the operational risk appetite and tolerance limits. Operational risk governance
structure adopted by Bank is embedded within three lines of defense: Strategic, Macro and Micro.

The Bank already has in place an Operational Risk Management framework which is aligned with global best market practices.
The Bank has dedicated functions to manage Operational Risk, Business Continuity Risk and Information Security Risk
governed through comprehensive frameworks in line with international best practices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

46.3.1  OPERATIONAL RISK-DISCLOSURES BASEL Il SPECIFIC
Basel Il Basic Indicator Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Operational Risk.

46.4  LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk reflects an enterprises inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Group’s liquidity position is managed
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO). ALCO monitors the maintenance of financial position ,liquidity
ratios, depositors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
deposits and liquidity contingency plans. Moreover, core retail deposits (current accounts and savings accounts) form a
considerable part of the Group’s overall funding and significant importance is attached to the stability and growth of these

deposits.

46.4.1  MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - BASED ON CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE BANK

2018
Over 1 Over7 — Over 14 Over 1 Over2  Over3 Over 6 Over 9 Over 1 Over 2 Over3
Upto 1 to7 to14  daystot to2 to3 t06 109 months t02 t03 t05 Over
Rupees in ‘000 Total day days days month months months  months months o1 year years years year 5 year
Assets
Gash and balances with treasry banks 49187645 1586698 9,520,189 11,106,888 26973870 - - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 4093402 109648 1382200 767839 1864015 - - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial insttutions - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 260,233,987 62177 8651697 361,264 542081 40533223 2806925 4026462 262539 104257406 2413496 4288116 6103385  7,979456
Advances UBI07147 MO 48B4 72960 G2796069 32221636 36851857 26100582 19715054 12634306 14550131 16164056 41303180 85276703
Fixed assets 12,791,821 4100 24,601 28,701 69,703 12617 e 21290 207,556 207,556 692217 532,730 611512 10,054,877
Intangible assets 41,361 2,503 15,021 17,524 42559 16,724 16,724 49439 48,006 48,006 1883% 116358 99,695 80407
Deferred tax assets 37187119 i Q1087 498210 1209939 14872 14873 4619 4619 166,490 139212 416276 126399 =
Other assets 52,174 - - - 7610189 - - - - - 5073459 5073459 490605 9844462
06451322 2171339 98284849 13509815 121108925 72859072 41842996 30434082 20277774 117313764 23057000 2859095 53764776 83236905
Assets atiributable to discontinued operations 214757 - - - - - - - - 214757 - - - -
06666079 2171339 98284849 13509815 121108925 72859072 41842996 30434082 20277774 117528521 23057030 28590995 53764776  83.286905
Liabiliies
Bils payable 15,512,880 164,69 988174 || 1152870 || 2,799,827 188,160 188,160(| 564479 || 4733257 || 4733257 - - - -
Borrowings 52702323 || 518,324|| 2696937 || 9209492 || 8811609 || 702302|| 702302(| 5970618 - - 62813 62813 || 1062813
Deposits and other accounts 573506,926 || 2160920 || 13816,088 || 17,902,958 || 39,123,700 | | 12,587,223 | | 26239505 | 13398674 || 5,970,289 | | 18427852 | 102,518,050 | 99,867,856 | | 105,237,308 || 116,344,503
Liabilties against assets subject to
finance lease = = = = = = = = = = = = = =
Subordinated oans 9,993,600 - - - - - 800 - - 800 1600 1600 3200{| 995,600
Defered ta liabiltes - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabilfes 2178476 || 362867 || 2177202 || 2540069 || 6,159,514 - - - - || 4969412 | 2484706 || 1242353 1242353
672984205 3206807 42552801 30835380 56894550 13477685 27130767 19933771 10703546 23161909 107551875 102416975 107545674 127,572,456
Liabilties associated with
discontinued operations 81513 - - - - - - - - 81513 - - - -
673085718 3206807 42552801 30835389  56,894550 13477685 27130767 19933771 10703546 23243422 107551875 102416975 107545674 127,5724%6
Net assets 3600361 (1035,468) 55732048 (17326574 64214375 59381367 14712229 10500311 9574228 94265099 (84494845) (73825,960) (33760,898) (44,336,551)
Share Capital 12,602,602
T Reserves 15,368,694
= Unappropriated proft 3,710,867
E Surplus on revaluation of assets
< Contuedoeratons 1609197
@ Discontinued operations 518
j‘: Non-controling inerest 43218
< 33600361
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46.4.1  MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - BASED ON CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE BANK

217
Over 1 Over7  Over14 Qver 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over9 Qver 1 Over2 Over 3
Upto 1 to7 to14  daystot t02 t3 to6 o9 months t02 t03 to5 Over
Rupees in ‘000 Total day days days month ~ months  months  months  months  to1year years years year 5 year
Assets
Gash and balances with treasury banks 423035 1427075 8562450 9989525 2426025 - - - - - - - - -
Balances vith other banks 3,193,835 7684 586105 683789 1660631 - - 16562 - - - - - -
Lendings to financial ingtitutions 2,250,000 - 1,000,000 - 750,000 - - 500,000 - - - - - -
Investments 314936,748 83475 8314037 20562 19726 61757769 17074105 307523 8716783 407022 56242768 42856480 41230252 22,801,035
Advances 28693066 5028057 1467846 1422503 46474935 20179166 30694415 17562562 16618023 14327592 14720617 12857348  27,889001 49452021
Fired assets 9,885,958 6,174 o 821 10495 69,195 69195 203614 197515 197515 755088 62106 760844 6820559
Intangible asses 842,869 1807 10841 12647 0715 16,654 16654 48,898 48407 48407 18543 181207 155102 86,057
Deferred fax assets 100,755 - - - (1023) - - - - 165267 nam o 468 (341802 -
Other assets B448099 214769 1288613 1503382 3651071 - - - - - 443855 443855 4304384 8608768
062610675 6830041 41266930 13875629 108919553 82022784 47854369 21545934 25580728 1545803 76422749 61370925 73997781 87768440
Assets attibutable to discontinued operations 37,949 - - - - - - - - W - - - -
062938624 6830041 41266930 13875629 108919553 82022784 47854369 21545934 25580728 15473752 76422749 61370925 73997781 87768440
Liabilities
Bills payable 10769262 || 114334{| 686,005 800339 || 1943679\ 130623| 130622(| 391870 || 3285895 3,285,895 - - - -
Borrowings 71,587,311 || 46301734 || 2104172 || 12315664 || 2420178|| 3276518)| 4929612 - - 46811 4811 4811 -
Deposits and other accounts 525,805,051 || 2,905,125 || 13219559 || 16,821,804 || 35,025,082 | | 12615755 || 24076473 || 14849262 || 9522028 || 11945277 || 92,310,926 | 91,051,010 || 96,193,979 | | 105,268,821
Liablities against assets subject to
finance lease - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Subordinated loans 4992800 - - - - - 800 00 - 1,000 2000(| 500000|| 501,600|| 3967,200
Deferred tax fabiites - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabtes 17098223 | 292717|| 1,796,300 || 2049016 || 4976,186 - - - - =[] 4012001 (| 2006001 || 1,003001|| 1,003,001
030252647 3312176 62063598 21775331 54260561 15175556 27484413 20170944 12807923 15282172 96371738 93603822 97745301 110,259,022
Liabilties associated with
discontinued operations 140741 - - - - - - - - 140,741 - - - -
630393368 3312176 62053598 21775331 54260561 15175556 27484413 20170944 12807923 15372913 96371738 93603822 97745301 110,259,022
Net assets 2545236 3526865 (20786659 (7899702 54698992 66647208 20369956 1374900 12772805 100839 (19,048989) (32.232.807) (23,747610) (22490,562)
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 12,032,263
Unappropriated profit 2,703,887
Surplus on revaluation of assets
Continued operations 5,142,254
Discontinued operations 19877
Non-contralling interest 44353
32,545,236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

4642 MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - BASED ON EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE BANK

2018
Over 1 Over3 QOver 6 QOver 1 QOver 2 Over 3 Over 5
Upto 1 t03 to6  Monthsto t02 to3 to5 to10  Above 10
Rupees in ‘000 Total Month Months Months 1 Year Years Years Years Years Years
Assets
(ash and balances with treasury banks 49187645 49,187,645 - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 4,093,402 4,093,402 = = = = = = = =
Lendings to financial institutions - - - - - - - - - -
Investments 200233987 88383514 42425539 24205589 23100535 35988493 16346609 9887679 16430673 3465356
Advances M3I0747 TSN 543 T26T94T1 40739515 37,366,880 25146525 24174350 25495064 24636501 20347298
Fived assets 12,791,821 127,105 145,233 212,980 5111 692,217 532,730 611,512 606,164 9448715
Intangible assets 741,361 71,607 33,448 49438 96,011 188,395 116,369 99,695 80408 -
Deferred tax assets 3713719 2,206,359 29,745 44619 211,109 139,272 416,276 726,399 - -
(Other assets 32522174 7,611,308 - - - 5074206 5074206 4920818 4920818 4920818
706,451,322 24208483 115313436 65252141 61,189646 67,229,168 46660530 41741167 46674564 38,182,187
Assets attributable to discontinued operations 214,757 = = = 214,757 = = = = =
706,666,079 224208483 115313436 65252141 61404403 67229168 46660530 41,741,167 46,674,564 36,182,187
Liabilities
Bills payable 15512880 | | 5,105,567 - 9407991 | 9,466,514 - - - - -
Borrowings 52,702,323 | | 44932,093| | 1,404,603 5,176,884 - 62,914 62914 | 1,062915 - -
Deposits and other accounts 573,596,926 | | 74515512 || 38650491 || 13503597 || 24293218 | 102,319,759 | | 99,857,857 | 105,060,562| | 57,697,965| | 57,697,965
Liabilties against assets subject to finance lease - - - - - - - - - -
Subordinated loans 9,993,600 - 800 - 800 1,600 1,600 3200/ | 3985600 | 6,000,000
Deferred tax liabiliies - - - - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 20178476 | | 11,239,653 - - S| 4969412| | 2484706| | 1242353 621,176 621,176
672,984,205 135792825 40055894 19621280 33760532 107353685 102407077 107,369,030 62,304,741 64319141
Liabilities associated with discontinued operations 81,513 - - - 81,513 - - - - -
673,065,718 135,792,825 40055894 19621280 33842045 107353685 102407077 107,369,030 62304741 64319141
Net assets 33600361 88415658 75257542 45630861 27562358  (40124517)  (55746,547) (65,627,863  (15,630,177)  (26,136,954)
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 1 5,568,694
Unappropriated profit 3,710,867
Surplus on revaluation of assets
Continued operations 1,649,197
Discontinued operations 5123
Non-controlling interest 43218
33,600,361
2017
Over 1 Over3 QOver 6 QOver 1 QOver 2 Over 3 Over 5
Upto 1 to3 to6 Monthsto 02 to3 to5 t010  Above 10
Rupees in ‘000 Total Month Months Months 1 Year Years Years Years Years Years
Assets
(ash and balances with treasury banks 44239325 44239325 - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 3193835 3193835 - - - - - - - -
Lendings to financial institutions 2,250,000 1,750,000 - 500,000 - - - - - -
Investments 314,956,748 61,706,100 78,056,410 2505045 9062963 56507498 42894352 40835242 20307688 3,001,450
Advances 258,693,086 48,336,014 55687484 26349408 27535609 20769064 16773598 24290768 22,376,564 16574577
Fived assets 9,885,958 191,407 138,390 203,614 395,029 755,058 | 760,844 611,749 6208811
Intangible assets 842,869 56,010 33,308 48,898 96,814 185,473 181,207 155,102 86,057 -
Deferred tax assets 100,755 (210,265) - - 165,267 2 416,278 (341,802 - -
Other assets 28448099 6,657,835 - - - 44385% 4438556 4304384 4304384 4304384
662610675 165920261 133915592 29606965  37,255682 82806926 65325047 70004538 476886442 30,089,222
Assets attributable to discontinued operations 327,949 - - - 321,949 - - - - -
662,938,624 165920261 133915592 29606965 37583631 82806926 65325047 70004538 47686442 30,089,222
Liabilities
Bills payable 10,769,262 | | 354,357 - 653,116| | 6,571,789 - - - - -
Borrowings 71,587,311 | | 60,815,038 || 5,705,697 4,926,143 - 46,811 46,811 46,811 - -
Deposits and other accounts 525,805,051 | | 69,477,571 || 36423206 || 15666,785| | 19,766,565 | | 92,309926 | | 90,886,385 || 96,099,115 | 52,587,720| | 52,587,718
Liabilties against assets subject to finance lease - - - - - - - - - E
Subordinated loans 4,992,800 - 800 200 1,000 2,000 500,000 501,600| | 3,987,200 -
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - - - - -
Other iabilties 17,008,223 | | 9,074,217 - - - 4012003 || 2,006,002| | 1,003,001 501,500 501,500
630252647 142911183 42129763 21246244 26339354 96370740 93439198 97650527 57076420 53,089,218
Liabilties associated with discontinued operations 140,741 - - - 140,741 - - - - -
630,393388 142911183 42129763 21246244 26480095 96370740 93439198 97650527 57076420 53,089,218
Net assets 32545236 23009078 91,785,829 8360721 11103536  (13563814)  (28,114151)  (27,645989)  (9,389.978)  (22,999,9%)
Share Capital 12,602,602
Reserves 12,032,263
Unappropriated profit 2,703,887
Surplus on revaluation of assets
Continued operations 5,142,254
Discontinued operations 19877
Non-controlling interest 44.353
32,545,236




46.5  DERIVATIVE RISK

The Group at present does not offer structured derivative products such as interest rate swaps, forward rate swap, forward
rate agreements or foreign exchange options nor does it deal in market making and foreign exchange hedging.

Group’s derivative exposure is limited to hedging transactions undertaken by Treasury in instruments such as forward
exchange contracts.

The Risk Management Division monitors Group’s overall derivative exposure in forward exchange contracts, which are marked
to market and are included in Group overall portfolio measures of volatility including value at risk (VaR). Further, VaR is
separately monitored for forward exchange contracts. Derivative exposures are also included in Group’s capital charge and
risk weighted asset calculation in accordance with SBP regulations.

41. GENERAL

471 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 21, 2019 has proposed the following appropriations, which will be
approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2018 do not include the effect of the appropriations which will be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ending December 31, 2019 as follows:

Rupees in ‘000 2018 2017

Transfer from unappropriated profit to:
Proposed final cash dividend - Re. 1 per share (2017: NIL) 1,260,260 -
General reserve 2,450,607 2,703,887

472  Captions as prescribed by BPRD Circular No. 2 dated January 25, 2018 issued by the SBP in respect of which there are no
amounts have not been reproduced in these consolidated financial statements except for the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated profit and loss account.

48. RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES
There have been no significant reclassifications in these consolidated financial statements except amount of Rs. 6,116
thousand for the year ended December 31, 2017, which has been reclassified from other assets to other liabilities.

49. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on February 21, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the

Group.
A
1 . \ ) Cw
-
' AN ) M b
Abid Sattar - Saleem Anwar Rehan Laiq Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Lt Gen (R) Syed Tarig Nadeem Gilani
President & Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Director Chairman
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
Name of From To Total
1,961 1 100 77,849
2,950 101 500 851,737
1,994 501 1,000 1,532,776
4,304 1,001 5,000 10,901,844
1,882 5,001 10,000 13,872,852
920 10,001 15,000 11,619,854
836 15,001 50,000 21,879,336
378 50,001 500,000 53,804,530
32 535,001 1,000,000 24,375,319
20 1,005,001 2,000,000 27,769,513
20 2,030,001 5,000,000 70,599,430
9 5,125,001 10,635,000 71,346,500
4 22,925,001 271,885,000 409,061,916
1 542,565,001 542,570,000 542,566,724
15,311 1,260,260,180
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
PARTICULARS ~ SHAREHOLDERS
Directors, CEQ, Children 6 103,500 0.0082
Associated companies & Related Parties 9 920,398,417 73.0324
Executives/Employees of the Bank 17 240,843 0.0191
Public Sector Companies & Corporations 19 28,373,684 2.2514
Banks, DFI & NBFI, Insurance Companies, Takaful,
Modarabas, Pension Funds 39 33,339,201 2.6454
Mutual Funds 27 50,565,811 4.0123
General Public (Local) 14,972 188,374,308 14.9473
General Public (Foreign) 6 8,780 0.0007
Others 200 31,806,471 2.5238
Foreign investors (Foreign Companies) 16 7,049,165 0.5593
Total 15,311 1,260,260,180 100.0000
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES & RELATED PARTIES 9 920,398,417 73.0324
FAUJI FOUNDATION GROUP
Fauji Foundation 2 90,629,884 7.1914
Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited 2 543,768,024 43.1473
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 1 271,884,009 21.5736
RELATED PARTIES
Trustees of FFC Employees Gratuity Fund 1 4,954,500 0.3931
Trustees Of FFC Mgnt Staff Pension Fund 1 1,332,000 0.1057
Trustees of Askari Bank Limited Employees Gratuity Fund 1 915,000 0.0726
Trustees of Askari Bank Limited Employees Provident Fund 1 6,915,000 0.5487
MUTUAL FUNDS 27 50,565,811 4.0123
CDC - Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 80,813 0.0064
CDC - Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund 1 3,999,442 0.3174
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1 23,821,856 1.8902
CDC - Trustee Faysal MTS Fund - MT 1 8,000 0.0006
CDC - Trustee Atlas Stock Market Fund 1 2,000,000 0.1587
CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 1 9,165,000 0.7272
CDC - Trustee Pakistan Capital Market Fund 1 367,500 0.0292
CDC - Trustee NAFA Multi Asset Fund 1 214,000 0.0170
CDC - Trustee Askari Asset Allocation Fund 1 20,000 0.0016
CDC - Trustee APF-Equity Sub Fund 1 65,000 0.0052
CDC- Trustee NAFA Asset Allocation Fund 1 431,500 0.0342
CDC - Trustee NAFA Financial Sector Fund 1 1,546,500 0.1227
CDC - Trustee NAFA Stock Fund 1 1,200,000 0.0952



Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

CDC - Trustee First Habib Stock Fund 1 101,000 0.0080
CDC - Trustee Askari Equity Fund 1 100,000 0.0079
MCBFSL - Trustee Pak Oman Advantage Asset Allocation Fund 1 20,000 0.0016
CDC - Trustee First Habib Income Fund - MT 1 137,000 0.0109
CDC - Trustee HBL Multi - Asset Fund 1 45,000 0.0036
CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 1 728,000 0.0578
CDC - Trustee Lakson Equity Fund 1 5,129,000 0.4070
CDC - Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund 1 1,005,200 0.0798
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Value Fund 1 93,000 0.0074
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Stock Fund 1 149,500 0.0119
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund 1 90,000 0.0071
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Income Fund — MT 1 1,000 0.0001
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund — MT 1 4,500 0.0004
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund - MT 1 43,000 0.0034
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDING 6 103,500 0.0082
Lt Gen Javed Igbal (Retd) 1 500 0.0000
Dr. Nadeem Inayat 1 500 0.0000
Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy 1 101,000 0.0080
Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf 1 500 0.0000
Mr. Mushtaq Malik 1 500 0.0000
Brig Saleem Ahmed Moeen, Sl (Retd) 1 500 0.0000
EXECUTIVES / EMPLOYEES OF THE BANK 17 240,843 0.0191
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES & CORPORATIONS 19 28,373,684 2.2514
BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, NON-

BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE COMPANIES, MODARABAS 39 33,339,201 2.6454
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) - INDIVIDUALS 14,972 188,374,308 14.9473
GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) - INDIVIDUALS 6 8,780 0.0007
FOREIGN COMPANIES 16 7,049,165 0.5593
OTHERS 200 31,806,471 2.5238
TOTAL 15,311 1,260,260,180 100.0000

Note 1: For the purpose of reporting trades in the shares of the Bank, as per requirement of 5.6.1 (d) of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, Executive(s) mean person(s), who have access to price sensitive information.

Note 2: Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy, Independent Director purchased 100,000 shares during the year. Except this, there have been no trades
in the shares of the Bank, carried out by it’s Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children.
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FORM OF PROXY

ASKARI BANK LIMITED

I/We S/o/ D/o/ W/o of being member(s) of
Askari Bank Limited (the Bank), hold ordinary shares vide Folio/CDC Account No. ,do
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Ms. Folio/CDC Account No. of

failing him/ her, Mr./Mrs./Ms. Folio/CDC Account No. of

as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held on Monday, March 25,
2019 at 10:00 am at Topi Rakh Complex (Galaxy Hall), Army Heritage Foundation, Ayub National Park, Jhelum Road, Rawalpindi and at any adjournment

thereof.

Signed this day of March 2019.

(Please affix revenue stamp of Rs.5)

Signature of Member
(The signature should agree
with the specimen registered

with the Bank)
Witnesses No. 1: Witnesses No. 2:
Name: Name:
C.N.I.C. No.: C.N.I.C. No.:
Address: Address:
IMPORTANT NOTES:
A.  General:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him/her. No person shall act as a proxy, who is not a
member of the Bank except that Government of Pakistan / State Bank of Pakistan / corporate entity may appoint a person who is not a member.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or his/her attorney duly authorized in writing. If the member is a corporate entity (other than
Government of Pakistan and State Bank of Pakistan), its common seal should be affixed on the instrument.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy, together with Power of Attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited, with
the Company Secretary, Askari Bank Limited, 4th Floor, NPT Building, F-8 Markaz, Islamabad not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

4. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

5. If a member appoints more than one proxy, and more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by a member, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered
invalid.

B.  For CDC Account Holders

1. Copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form.
2. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

3. Incase of Government of Pakistan / State Bank of Pakistan / Corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall
be submitted along with proxy form to the Bank.
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www jamapunjl.pk

Key features:

G2 Licensed Entities Verification

cn Scam meter®

/M Jamapunji games®

@ Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

@ Online Quizzes
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Jama Punji is an mesior
Educalion istatve of

Securites and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

4 Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from PSX)

3 Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
[§ Financial calculator

m Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

@ Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

n o
jamapuniji.pk @jamapunji_pk

"Mobile apps are also available for download lor android
and ios devices
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